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MESSAGE =.0.

The results attained by Companhie Vale do Rio Doce in 2002 added tuster
to the 60th anniversary celenration of the worid's largest iron ore
producer. Over the past six decades, CVRD has consistently shown the
skill to overcome all chatienges and transform them intoc cpportunitizs
for solid and sus:ained growth.
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| would like to thank all those who have takenr part in this victorious
march and made it possible to reach objectives perhaps unthinkabte
at the time the Company was founded. Indecd, in a year marked by
stow growth in the world economy, difficult international financial
markets and the natural volatility of the Brazilian economy due 0
presidential elections, CVRD had record sales and booked one of the
three best results in its history, R$ 2.043 billion.

Even more, the Company consolidated its position as the world leader
in the transoceanic iron ore market, with record sales of 164 million
metric tons. 29.4% of the global market. The highest cash flow generated
since CVRD's privatization was also due to sales recorcs for atumma,
potash and in logistics and general cargo services.

The year 2002 saw the finishing touches of the privatization of Companhia
ale do Rio Doce, begun in 1997. In March, the Brazilian Treasury and
the National Social and Economic Development Bank - BNDES sold off
nearly 33% of the Company's common shares. Investors from 17 countries,
and particularly 584,588 Brazilian workers, showed, their confidence

in the Company’s future by becoming shareholders.

in 2002, CVYRD's new corperate
governance modei was fully
implemented, alang with cumplete
rohrmu[ai"orw of the rows of tne
Jirectors and Exe

card. A rmgh ight was n
cenctusion, after many yeavs

cutive

[

+

¢l the Compaf“y:wf&cy .
stratagic p.ann:ng, 0 tine with :ﬁe
investment priorities established
by shareholders. Focusing on
diversified growth in minin
activities - based arocund the
‘mplementaticn ¢f its own
crojects - and on development ¢f
new partnerships in tog:stic
electricity, the strategy undar
way seexs to 5-r~anw n the
positicn already reached by
CVRD as one of the world's
greatest mining companies
Today CVRO enjoys a singular
positicr ‘'n the mining market,
irn view of ample investmen
oppourlunities backed by an
enviable set of new projects,
not cnly identified but b:m“
impiementec.
capital outlays of US$ 6 bitlion in
the next five years. The conslant

These will demand

ennanrcemer
s ersured by consistent
investments in mineral
exploration, a sector in which
CVRD spoent USS 45 million in
2002 and pians fc invest,
together with the BNDES,

US$E 72 million in 2003.
Additionally, in assoc:ation wiin
the mining company A'wrmagamd
a subsidiary was established |
take advantage of rew mmera;
oppcriunities in the south ¢f
Peru and i Chile, narticu.ary
inveiving coppen

t of ihese opportunities
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To this planned organic growth, we can add successful acquisitions in
line with the Company's focus on mining, as has recently occurred
sucessfully [CVRD's concluded its exit from the paper and pulp sector
and consotidated its action in the iron ore sector, with the successive
acquisitions of Socoimex, Samitri and Ferteco, along with the
purchase of 5C% of the common capital of Caemi, with excellent
results in 2002).

Besides this, the Company restructured its holdings in the manganese
and ferroalicy area - resulting in 2 business that generated cash flow
of sorme US$ 9C miltion in 2002 - including acquisition of sole ownership
of Rio Doce Manganése Europe in France and Elkem Rana in Norway,
renamed Rio Doce Manganese Norway. In the same form, the CVRD
Group increased its holding in Alunorte and bought Mineracao Vera
Cruz, expanding its oppariunities for investment in the promising
aluminum sector. Over the past 18 months, we have bought out the
interests of foreign partners in the Sossego and Salobo projects,
tooking to fully exploit the synergies provided by the infrastructure
avaitable in Carajds and the integration with the other copper projects.

Recent developments in the steel area are closely aligned with the
Company's strategy for growth. The association with Nucor - one of the
leaders of the consolidation process among American steel producers
- to build a pig iron mill in the northern United States opens solid
perspectives for greater penetration of the American market.

Simitarly, the attraction of European and Asian companies for investments
in Brazit to produce steet slabs aimed at the North American market
will open new opportunities for iron ore sales in the long term, in view
of the relatively modest share of the world's largest market CVRD
currently has. Finally, the proposal to acquire the shares held by
AcesitafAcos Planos do Sulin Companhia Siderdrgica de Tubaréo
seeks to preserve the value and liquidity of our holding in that
company, and at the same time make possible the construction of its
third blast furnace, which should represent additional firm demand of
approx:mately four million tons a year of iron ore.

CYRD Annual Report!



Over the past six years, CVRO's total investmaonis nave surnassoe ino

USS 5 billion mark. The guality of the assets nvclved arc {ne execut ¢

of the underlying strategy make us optimistic abeut the sze of their
contrioution toward buitding vawue for our shareho.cers.

The new dimensions of CVRD also demand important imarevemenis
its management instruments, especially in bight of the now co3arcte
governance mode. implemented. Clear performance asse

have peen estanlished, based on the generation of shar

S
ehoider vaive

model. Shared services have been centralized, with tho srargout boine

supply management for the Group, focusing on cost reductions and
productivity gains.

Alsc, US$ 37 miliion is being invested in a compieie remoaeung o
the Company's technoiogy platform, with impiemertaiion of CR!

in line with the best business practices. Along witn thooo initicives,
emphasis was maintained on improving the oircady cxcoacni auaiily
of the 29,349 professionals of the CVRD Group, enabling swceessve

productivity gains.

The generation of opportunitics to overcoma poverty, with the hen
of investments in education and creation of 1obs, aiony with
environmental protection, are top priorities and aiso a dany concen
of CVRE's management and employees.
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I would to ihank ‘ne

sunperi of the shareholders toward
implementing the ambitious
schedute of changes under
way, including the necesss
awest:iture and a firm
comm:tment to the be
corporate goverrance praclices

Pl

now pul n place. Dikewise, |
wol.d like {c express my
reccgnriuion of the quality and
dedicat'on of CVXD's employecs,
without which nothing we achieves
would have neen paossible.

y

the wortd over, wnose partnership
has been the engine of tha
Company’s sotic growth throughout
its nistory and encourages us o

offer always betler producss.
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Companhio Vale do Rio Suce - CVRD was created by the Brazilian
government on Jure 1, 1942 and privatizec on Moy 7, 1997 CVR 3 1s

the larges: diversified mining company 17 the Amearicas. Besides m ning,
it owns associated businesses 1n logistics and power yererat.on.

)

World leader in tne nrnduciion and export ¢f iron ore and peli

n
e
™
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is 3150 one of the most important global producers of manganese and
ferroauioys. it also produces bauxite, gold, potash
awuminum. As one of Brazil's main supn
CVYRD owns and apnerates railrcads, port tferminals anc warenouses
besides conducting coastal shipping. it a h lec
projocts, three of which are ‘noperation. The Compary aisc na:
holdings in producers of steel and fertitizers.
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CVRD currently has operations in T4 Bracilian siaies: Pars
Tocantins, Sergipe, Bahia, Miras Gerals, Espirite Sante, Rio de
Sdo Paulo, Goids, Maio Grosso do Sul, Rio Grance go Sul, Sania
Catarira and Amasonas. Aoroad, it has sudsidiary ane alfiliatec
companies in the United States, Argentina, Chile, Pery, France, Norway
and 3earain, and offices in New York, 3russels, Tokys 2nd Shenghal.
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Mining: Iron ore mine in Carajas Logistics: Vitéria a Minas Railroad

Electric power: lgarapava Hydroelectric Station




Reuters institutional
Investor Survey 2002
chose CYRD a5 “Best
Mining and Metals Company
of Latin America”

and “Best Company of
Brazil” for its investor
relations activities.

~

CVRD obtained the
Anefzc-Fipecafi-Serasa
2002 Award for the quatity
and transparency of its
financial statements.

N

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Mission completed and value for shareheolders

Companhia Vale do Rio Doce has been fully meeting its commitments
regarding corporate governance, strengthening its financial transparency,
information disclosure and protection of investor rights.

in October 2001, the Board of Directors approved a corporate governance
model based on principtes of stability, transparent decision making
and clear roles and responsibilities. The model was put in place in
2002, including the full functioning of the five committees of the
Board of Directors - Strategic, Financial, Governance and Ethics,
Executive Development and Auditing.

The Annual General Meeting, held on December 27, 2002, approved
new Bylaws, which fully incorporated the corporate governance model,
clearly establishing the duties and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors, the Committees and the Executive Board.

The new Bylaws eliminated class B preferred shares, simplifying the
shareholding structure. There were also changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors. The number of seats was raised from 9 to 11,
and the right of minority shareholders to elect one member was
formalized. Also, the term in office of board members was reduced to
two years.
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500D CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ONTRIBUTES TO BUSINESS
oot n Gorporate EFFICIENCY, GENERATING RETURNS
oo e negsne | | FOR SHAREHOLDERS 50 THE
- Best Mining and Metals

Company in Brazil. COMPANY CAN GROW WHILE RAISING
THE LEVEL OF SOCIAL WELL-BEING.

P

During the year, a set of policies Oraanizatinnat Siruciure
and rules was approved - on
information disclosure, securities
trading, shareholder return and a
code of ethics for the Executive
Directorate of Finances - which
together represents the practical Sharehaldings and Business
application of the corporate : ?f?’fﬂl(’?memﬂ o
governance model to specific issues. e T

o . F Mineral
Among these initiatives, special _ refrousinerais

mention should go to the new
shareholder remuneration policy,
a first for Latin America, which
eliminated an important
competitive disadvantage in
relation to the Company’s main C.E.0. Non-Ferrous Minerals
competitors. Starting in 2003, at Ruger Aunield Moy Hornarge.:

the end of each January, CVRD i
will announce the minimum
remuneration to be paid out
during the year, conferring greater
predictability to shareholder
return. For 2003, this sum will be L Planning and Management
equivalent to US$ 400 million, as Fatriel Stelar
announced on January 30.

foerarda Sorise

Human Resources
and Corporate Services

Finance

Pl Dafbiua

Logistics




Y/

i 3
F MATOGRESSO ) — _
BOSY N s
N

] \!
/]

N




ﬁi&

| -

CVRD Annua_l. Repor

{
'

e

N
General Logend Brazil Map Legerd
R, tron Ore Mining -
A Dayite Mind o
g Bauxite Mining A
A, Manganese Mining y: Northern System
’53“: Coupper Projecis -—
R, Kaolin Mining 2 8, Wi
'Y’P Potash Mining
= (od Mining 3 Ry
] Pelletizing Plant
Alumina Refinery 4 e Albras
Altuminum Smelter ' Alunorte
Steel Mils ‘
Fertihizers Plant ! 5 -
| Ry mve
i = Shipping ‘
Port Facilities ‘ & 4 Ceirar
EE !iydioeleciric Plants
] $ Torestry fode Poety s M
| Maritime Ternaeg:
ffices Abre i . . ‘
a Qffices Adroad ‘\ loe  Sl0 Luis Pelietiang Plan:
— COVRD Railrnads (,
: B ae TmL
Affitiated Raiiroads I - M
J P
=FC ¥ e orenda Droslolro
— VM
CEN 1o e Sibro
FNS "
FCA ¥ |qorapava Rydreeles.ric
Ferroban Piart
FCA holds passage rights 12
Ferroban W NFS
FCA operation Lsiminas
Coastal shipping
13 .
b  Fonfértit
Werld Map Legend "
), Southern System
A
B o5l - United States B wak
T I
8 <
ﬁ ROA - United Slaies I.I.O Ferteco
c . 1%
E ROl - Balgium EE 0 Hydeocloc i Plan
o
B ROMN - Norway 17
AT Porig Esirelz
13 Hydroelectric Plant
ﬁ Cardillera de las Minas -
Peru 18 - .
4—  [ubardo Port Cumuniox
F
ﬁ Nisky Mayo - Peru W
H:spanobras
6 ) Nibrasoe
ﬁ CMLA Companig Minera e abrsccs
Latino Americana - Chite -abrasee
Kebrasco
H D] i3 - -
E S.crar Argentina E\[/RU Peliclizing Plants
<
I
E RUML - Irance Yo Sarmarco
J 20
E GUC  Bzhramn 4 Sepeiba Port
K Docenave
ﬁ RCASIA - China L Va'csul
L 1
@ RDASIA - Japan 2 Ry Urucum




SHAREHOLDING COMPOSITION

| New investors generate equilibrium

The sale of 78.8 million common shares owned by the Brazilian
government and the BNDES in 2007 produced significant changes and
balanced the shareholding composition of Companhiza Vale do Rio Doce.
Alongside the group of controlling shareholders, of which the Company’s
employees are part, there is now strong presence of Brazilian retail

| investors (10.4% at the end of 2002} as well as national and international
institutional investors.

On December 31, 2002, the holding of foreign investors was 42.5%.
The stock funds constituted with resources from the Fundo de Garantia
por Tempo de Servico - FGTS (Severance Pay Guarantee Fund) took on
4.6% of CVRD's capital and made 584,588 Brazilian workers into new
shareholders. Valepar consolidated its controlling position - with
52.3% of the common shares and 33.6% of the total capital - by
incorporating into its holdings 25,272,641 common CVRD shares
formerly owned by Litel S.A.

At the end of 2002, there were 123,733,488 ADRs outstanding. Of this
total, 58,059,311 represented common shares (RIO] and 65,669,177
class A preferred shares (RIOPR). Each ADR is equivalent to one
common or class A preferred share.

\

x

J At December 31, 2002, CVRD had 388,559,056 shares in circulation,
p 249,983,143 of these common and 138,575,913 preferred A. On this
j same date there were 4,715,170 common and 4,481 preferred A

' shares held in treasury.

1

|

‘ Shareholding Composition of CYRD
at December 31, 2002

| Total Capital

{ 4.6% FMP - FGTS | | 1.3% National Treasury

4.9% BNDESPar / FPS 1.2% CVRD Treasury

\ 33.6% 1
\/) Valepar

Golden Share
31.9% ADR National Treasury
(one share)

5.8% Retail Investors

\(Brazi) &i\

|

1

|

|
6.1%
Institutional
Investors

l [Brazil)

?

\

|

10.6% Foreign Institutional
Investors




RECOGNITION
OF VALUE

Based on its potlicy of
transparency and ethics,
Companhia Vale do Rio Doce
and its employees received a
series of honors and awards
in 2002.

Best Total Shareholder
Return - 2002 GVA Study -
Fundacao Cetulio Vargas
and The Boston Consulting
Group. CYRD was one of the
three Brazilian companies
that systematically had the
best total shareholider
returns in 20C1 and over
the last five and ten years.

Best New CEOQ/Miami 2002
- Latin America Awards
Event - Awarded te CYRD
President Roger Agnelli.

President Roger Agnelli
was distinguished with the
Order of Rio Branco by
decree of the Presidency of
the Repubtlic on July 4, 2002.

Rio de Janeiro Business
Leader - Gazeta Mercantil
Business Leaders Forum -

The Willy Korf Award for
Young Excellence, given by
American Metals Market

Best in Investor Relations -
Reuters Institutional
Investor Survey 2002 - Best
Mining and Metals
Company in Latin America,
Best Company in Brazil.

Best Listed Brazilian
Company - Abamec Rio de
Janeiro 2002 - Julio Cesar
Belisario Vianna Award.

Roger Agnelli was one of
the ten personalities
honored with the Os
Notdveis {“The Notables”)
award, given by the Jornal
do Commercio.

N g Company President Roger and World Steel Dynamics

f ) Agnelli was elected magazines, was awarded
M fitabl Business Leader of the to Paulo Antonioc de Scuza,
: 0st pro itab € company State of Ric de Janeiro. a CYRD technology analyst.
in Brazil - Isto& Dinheiro
magazine - 100 top profit-
earners for 2001.

\ J \

s ™~

The Railroad Applications
Special Interest Group
Student Paper Contest
2002 Award was given to
Jodelson Aguilar Sabine,
an information technology
structure analyst, by the
University of San Jose,
California, U.S.A.




Consolidated Gross Revenue
by Product - 2002
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Consolidated Gross Revenue
by Market - 2002
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CVRD IN 2002: OVERCOMING CHALLENGES

The records for revenue and cash flow and the good financial performance
in 2002 are a result of the competitiveness and outstanding sales
performance of Companhia Vale do Rio Doce, anchored by the quality
of its products, services and the focus on serving the needs of
customers. CVRD was once again the company that contributed most
to reducing Brazil's external financing needs.

Despite a highly adverse international scenario, with a stagnant
world economy, corporate problems in the United States and the
political-econamic crisis in Argentina, besides volatility in the
Brazilian economy, the Company had the third best net profit in its
history in 2002: R$ 2.043 billion. Operating profit was markedly better,
growing roughly 60% in the year.

Some factors determined the reduced result in relation to the previous
year. In 2001, a result of R$ 1.771 billion was booked on discontinued
operations, basically due to the capital gain on sale of equity holdings
(CSN, Bahia Sul and Cenibral. In 2002, the R$ 111 million so generated
came from sale of Florestas Rio Doce S.A. If we discount the effects of
these one-time events, the net profit (pro forma) for 2002 would have
been R$ 1.932 billion, against R$ 1.280 billion in 2001, even though the
fall in the value of the Brazilian real against the U.S. dollar in 2002 -
52.2% - was much greater than that registered in 2001 - 19%.

Consolidated gross revenue, R$ 15.267 billion in 2002 according to
Brazilian GAAP, set a record and was 38.6% greater than the prior
year's R$ 11.015 billion. Nearly 86% of the gross revenue was originated
in Brazil. The other 14%, R$ 2.073 billion, was produced by subsidiaries
and joint ventures abroad. The gross revenue denominated in foreign
currency was approximately 83% of the total revenue.

CVRD's consolidated exports in 2002 were US$ 3.173 billion. Net exports
(exports minus imports) totaled US$ 2.824 billion, responsible for
21.3% of Brazil's trade surplus for the year.




Consolidated cash generation,
measured by EBITDA - earnings
before financial expenses, taxes,
depreciation and amortization -
hit a record of R$ 6.857 billion,
an increase of 33.7% over the
previous year's R$ 5.128 billion.
Unlike profits, which in the short
term suffered the negative
impact of the devaluation of the
real, cash flow, due to the
breakdown by currencies of the
Company's revenues and costs,
benefits from the exchange rate
picture. In the long run the
positive effect on cash flow tends
to more than offset the initial
negative impact on profits.

The high ratio of EBITDA/Gross
revenue, 46.7%, reveals the
excellent capacity of CVRD to
convert revenues into operating
profits. Obtaining adequate
margins is very important so that
a mining company, whose business
is highly capital-intensive, can
generate rates of return sufficient
to adequately remunerate the
cost of its capital investments.

Dealings involving ferrous minerals
[iron ore, pellets, manganese
and ferroalloys) were responsible
for 73.3% of the consolidated
EBITDA, tallying R$ 5.029 billion.
Aluminum contributed 11.5%,
steel 6.1%, logistics services
5.8% and non-ferrous minerals
(gold, potash and kaolin] tipped
in with 3.3%.

(5 8% Logistics

Composition of Consolidated EBITDA - 2002

6.1% Steet

73 3% FP"'OU‘. )

&

11 5% Atuminum

3."% MNon-Fearr

Gils

R$ 6.857 billion

Selected Financial Indicators - Consolidated
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[ PERFORMANGCE OF THE BUSINESS AREAS

FERROQUS MINERALS

Iren ore and pellets: tailor-made sclutions boost customer competitiveness

Company of the Year in the

the most important eward
in the Brazitian mining and
metallurgy sector.

formance reflecis not cmy the nign cvaviy of Jis iron

Minera! Sector - Brasil Based on 3 ciear and well-cef ﬁed maragement moeden Com jg nhia |
Vale da Rio Douce has been conducting its busmcss:s in cansislent and
Minersl 2002 - This titie is olanred form, b"*cmg significant improvements 'o- 70 ¢ miry. The
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Company in Latin America
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35,187 miliion tons, 17% greater than the previous
card petleis reached 28.729 million tons, a rise of 9.4%. Of the
' 1

s went to the external market, 15% more thar in 2007,

e cuorsntoaled gross revenue from sales of tron ore and pellets totated
=S 8.778 villion in 2007 - R$ 5.987 billion for ore and R$ 2.741 billion

L
sropelleis. Thig value corresponds to 57.2% of the Company's total
aress revenae and represonts a jJump of 47.5% over the prior year

neralerer oo orices of iron ore and pellets for 2002 were only ostablished

zttnz ond of May, in the moest drawn-out negotiations in recant

nnraZos. Tne result was a generalized cul in prices, varying frem
~le standard sinter feed from the Southern System to 5.47% for

2oastturrace petiels.

Consolidated Iron Ore and Pellet Sales
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Top HR in Bahia -

Associacao Brasileira de -
Recurseos Humanos da E
Bahia {Brazilian Human
Resources Association of
Bzhia) and Associagdo dos
Cirigentes de Marketing e
Vendas da Bahia
(Marketing and Sales
Directors’ Association of
Bahial. Award given to E
Sibra - Eletrosiderdrgica |
Brasileira S.A.
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Manganese
High quality for the steel industry

erals includes full Ce\/r‘uuﬁ"ff“f
es, based on its commitment
for the stect industry. The
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a
-
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CVREO's strategy in the area ¢l ferro ine
of the manganese and ferroalloy busirzes
as a suaplier of high-quatity rass m

complementation and synergy with the iron ore and pellets business
provide econamies of scale in marketing ar :

Currently, CVRD owns and operates four manganese mines - Azutl,
Jrucum, MMN and Morro da Mina -

and seven mills tumrng out
ferroailoys - CorumbBa, Santa Rita, Barbacens, Rancharia, Sao Joao
del Rey, Sibra and Rio Doce Manganése Furope ?RuM:}, »hese

operations are (,1’1smbu‘ed geographicatly in four Brazihaﬁ states -

Pard, Mato Grosso do Sul, Minas Gerais and Bahia - along with France.
In 2002, CVRD set a record for nuiput ¢f manganese ore, 2.33 million tans,
2 29.5% increase over 2007, Totsl sales were 665 thousand tons. Sales

of ferroalioys reached 239 thousand tons. Cecnsolidated gross revenue

fram manyganese and ferrcalloys was R$ 845 million, a rise of 34,6%
over the previous year
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Manganese: Ferroatloys at Sibra and mine at Morro da Mina
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NON-FERRCUS MINERALS
Gold

! In search of new deposits

Recovery of CVRD's gold preduction will really get rolling with start-up
of the copper mines in Carajas. Estimates are that these projects can
produce about 685 thousand ounces of gold a year starting in 2007,
which will help offset copper production costs. Besides this, the Company
continues to invest in mineral prospecting, to identify new deposits.

At present, CVRD operates the Fazenda Brasileiro mine in Bzahia,
which is forecast to turn out 112 thousand ounces of refined gold in
2003. The recoverable gold reserves demonstrated at 2002 year-end
were approximately 225 million ounces.

In July 2002, Igarapé Bahia, the Company’s largest gold mine, was
shut down. The copper ore under the remaining pit, which also
contains gold, will be exploited in the future, making use of the
existing installations.

The price of gold followed an upward trend during the year, reaching
a peak of US$ 350 per troy ounce in December 2002, the highest
guotation in the last five years. CVRD, which began producing this

| mineral in 1984, has since then produced 5,890 thousand ounces of
' refined gold, 315 thousand ounces of this in 2002.

Gold sales, all going to the export market, added up to 331,479 ounces
in 2002, against 508,472 ounces in 2001. Gross revenue in 2002 was
R$ 280 mitlion, 15.4% below that in the previous year, basically due to
reduced output, since the price in dollars per troy ounce was 14.4%
higher than in 2001.

Gold: Fazenda Brasileiro underground mine



Most Socially Responsible
Company in the North
Region ~ Exame magazine,
in its Guia Exame de Boa
Cidadania Corporativa
("Good Corporate
Citizenship Guide”) -
Award given to Pard
Pigmentos 5.A.

Kaolin
Winning new markets

With installed production capacity
of 600 thousand tons annually,
Pard Pigmentos S.A., a subsidiary
of CVRD, developed a new line
of products and implemented a
marketing strategy aimed at
selling kaaolin to the United States.

Besides Century HC, the main
product of PPSA, Para Print and
Century S were produced in
industrial scale in 2002. These
products are targeted at
producers of coated paper and
yield excellent characteristics for
the final products, opening
perspectives for new sales in
upcoming years, mainly as a
result of negotiations to expand
shipments to Europe.

The sales volume of PPSA in 2002
was 337 thousand tons, 89% of
this going for export. Net revenue
was R$ 115 million and cash
generation was R$ 52 million.

Ihe 8.5% exnensicn of Brozilien egriculture in 2007 causen o slronyg

rise in demand for fertilizers, whose raw material is 202550 o ende.
The Yaguari-Vassouras mine In Sergice is (nc onuy d:
this input for Brezilian inqustry, whicn mainly relicgs o-

In 2007, sales and output were th2 nighest since Lol ecivilios
at the Taguari-Vassouras mineg, Pot 0
fotalea 7321 thousand tons, a 43.2% riso in relat T Tz volume
was made possible by production of 677 thousa o by using
LD stocks. Potash sales generated gross revenuc o Ky 777 imilan
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t
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CVRD Annual Repo
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2nd Volvo Logistics Award
- Tecnologistica - CYRD
was indicated by the
magazine's readers as
cne of the ten best
logistics companies in
Brazil, according to a
survey conducted by the
Coppead institute of
Administration of Rio de
Janeiro Federal University.

N J

The revenue obtained from these
operations reached R$ 250 miltion,
a jump of 96% over the previous
year. Various rccords were vroken,
such as for monthly soybcans
and soy meal carried by the EFVM
and the FCA together, 336 thousand
tons in April, and the loading of
432 thousand tons of general
cargo at the Sundry Products
Terminal in June.

Imintermodal service, which
involves carrying containers oy
rail and coastal shipping,
complemented by highway
transport, revenue grew 44% o
R$ 170 million in 2002. The
implementation of express tra:in
service and restructuring of
coastat shipping have been
crucial for this cxpansion.

Container mavement of the Yils ¥eihg Tarmina?

Revenue tram Ralirond
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BUSINESSES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AND EQUITY HOLDINGS
Aluminum

Strategic focus on bauxite and alumina

Companhia Vale do Rio Doce has a key strategic position in the
aluminum industry, being a huge producer and supplier of bauxite
and alumina for the national and international markets. Aware of
this responsibility, CVRD has been investing to expand capacity of
these products.

The Company's dealings in the aluminum sector contributed 11.6% of
its total consolidated revenue. Gross revenue in the aluminum area was
R$ 1.747 billion in 2002, a 58.1% increase over the R$ 1.118 bitlion in 2001.

MRN produced 9.919 million tons of bauxite in 2002, corresponding to
90% of its installed capacity. This was 7% below the 2001 output due to
lower demand in the first half of the year and the interference caused
by expansion work in the second half. Sales for the year totaled
9.928 million tons, 9% less than in 2001. Of this total, 26% went for
export. Net revenue was R$ 539 million, 7% higher than the previous
year, and operating cash flow was R$ 330 million.

Alunorte produced 1.656 million tons of alumina, 3.2% higher than in
2001 and slightly above its nominal capacity of 1.6 million tons yearly.
Sales added up to 1.640 million tons, a new record, with 46.8% exported.
Net revenue was R$ 785 million, a 14% rise over the previous year.
Alunorte’'s EBITDA grew 10%, reaching R$ 239 million for the year.
Safety ~ Asscciagdo
Brasileira de Prevencao de
Acidentes [Brazilian
Accident Prevention
Asscciation] - Alunorte
and Albras won the Annuat
ABPA Safety Competition.

Technological Innovation -
Finep Technological
Innovation Award - Alunorte
and Albras.

(.

1 )

Social Value 2002 - Valor
Econémico newspaper -
Award given to Albras.

L




Expansion of refining capacity to 2.4 million tons a year was concluded.
Start-up of the third production tine occurred in January 2003. Outlays
to boost capacity at Alunorte totaled US$ 277.6 million, with a cost per
ton of US$ 350, highly competitive by aluminum industry standards.

In June 2002, CVRD acquired for R$ 118.9 million, through Aluvale, the
12.62% of Alunorte capital previously held by MRN. Aluvale increased
its stake in Alunorte to 62.1% of its common shares and 57.03% of the
total capital. This allows MRN to concentrate only on its core
business, producing bauxite, and will enable CVRD to capture greater
value generated by future increases in Alunorte’s capacity.

Albras produced 407.7 thousand tons of primary aluminum, 23% more
than in 2007. This growth was a consequence of the end of electricity
rationing in 2001, the coming on line of expanded capacity, and also
operational improvements.

Sales totaled 406.3 thousand tons, of which 97% went for export.
Albras obtained net revenue of R$ 1.5 billion in 2002, 36% higher than
the previous year. Its EBITDA reached R$ 644 miltion, 38% above that
booked in 2001.

In 2002, Valesul attained primary production of 92.2 thousand tons,
surpassing the 2001 production by 12 thousand tons. Its sales totaled
90.1 thousand tons for the year, of which 46% were exports. The
company took in net revenue of R$ 410 million, 36% greater than
the pricr year. Operating cash flow was R$ 114 million, a jump of 38%
over 2001,

The Machadinho Hydroelectric Station, in which Valesul has a 7% stake,

began generating electricity in 2002. This allowed Valesul to reach
self-sufficiency in peak power consumption.

Valesul: stockyard for aluminum ingots and billets
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, CYRD W:iLL BE ABLE

NTS SCHEDULED IN HYDROELECTRIC
TO GENERATE 12 MILLION
OF THE DECADE.

Porto Estrela Hydroelectric Station: protection
against energy price volatility

ELECTRIC POWER
Own generation brings benefits to society

Currently, 9.9% of CVRD's electricity consumption is generated by its
own power plants. With the investments scheduled, based on concessions
to build and operate new plants, the Company will be able to meet
some 50% of its projected consumption by the end of the decade,
providing benefits to other sectors of the Brazilian economy and
soclety at large through greater energy availability.

By concentrating its investments in hydroelectric facilities, the
Company protects itself from price volatility of carbon fuels, besides
ensuring electricity supply and increasing competitiveness. With
consumption of approximately 14.1 mitlion MWh in 2002, CVRD and its
subsidiaries, affiliated companies and joint ventures were responsible
for 4.5% of Brazil's electricity consumption.

CVRD has stakes in ten hydroelectric stations, three of which are in
operation. Two more are scheduled to come on line in 2003 - Candenga
and Aimorés - and five are awaiting start of construction. The
investments to build power plants and in the licensing of future
undertakings added up to US$ 78 million in 2002.

In 2002, CVRD developed a department specialized in selling electric
power, seeking a balance for all its operating units between own
generation and power purchased from other generating companies.
The Company participated in the first public auction for sale of electric
power by government-owned generators.
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In July, 3 consortium in which CVRD has a 30% stake was the winning

bidder to build and operate the Estreito Hydroelectric Station, located

on the Tocantins- Maranhao state border. This preject will have installed
capacity of 1,087 MW and will begin operating in 2007.

In December 2002, the first phase of the Funil Hydroelectric Station
started generating. This is a partnership between CVRD and Cemig,
located in Minas Gerais, with installed capacity of 180 MW. The plant
was constructed in 27 manths, a record for undertakings of this size.
The value of the investment was US$ 47.6 million, equivalent to
US$ 519 per installed kitowatt. CVRD's share of the power generated
by Funil will be allocated to the Tubarado Port Complex.

The Company’s portion of the power generated by the Igarapava and
Porto Estrela stations was directed to its Itabira and Timbopeba
operating units, as well as for sale to the market. Because of the
electricity generated by the two plants, these operating units were
able to cut their energy costs by US$ 13 million in 2002,

Funil Hydroelectric Station: increased self-generation
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Tracks of the Carajas Railroad taking steel slabs
to the Port of 530 Luls

STEEL

Good results leverage the steel industry

In 2002, the Brazilian steel industry obtained significant results. CST,
the world's biggest steel slab exporter, beat its production record with
output of 4.9 million tons, and total sales of 4.6 million tons. Net revenue
was R$ 2.84 billion, 43% higher than in 2001. CST's EBITDA totaled
R$ 1.1 billion, an impressive rise over the R$ 563 million obtained the
previous year. The improved result was due mainly to recovery of steel
slab prices in the international market, along with the effects of
exchange rate variation.

The sales volume of CSl reached a record of 1.83 million tons of
finished products, a 10% increase over 2001. As a result of the good
sales performance and better margin on products, net revenue
reached US$ 754 million, 18% higher than the year before. Operating
cash flow totaled US$ 101 million.

In 2002, Usiminas set a new sales record, with 7.7 million tons of finished
steel products. This volume represented a 17% rise in relation to sales
on 2001, Net revenue was R$ 6.69 billion, 37% more than in the previous
year. EBITDA was R$ 2.4 billien, 56% above that booked in 2001.
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FERTILIZERS

Profits generate additional dividends

Companhia Vale do Rio Doce has an 11.1% stake in Fosfertil, a company
that produces and sells phosphate and nitrogen based fertilizers. In
2002, CVRD received R$ 6.4 million in dividends and interest on
stockholders™ equity from Fosfertil. In January 2003, it received
additional dividends of R$ 16.9 million, from retained earnings.

In 2002, Fosfertil and its subsidiary Ultrafertil increased their sales
volume by 5%, selling a total of 1,515 thousand tons of fertilizer
nutrients, of which 56% were phosphate based and the other 44%
nitrogen fertilizers. The net revenue of Fosfertil was R$ 1.4 billion,
an increase of 23% over the previous year.

PAPER AND PULP
Conclusion of divestiture

As a part of its long-term strategic guidelines, Companhia Vale do Rio
Doce is selling assets that do not have synergy with its main business
interests. In September 2002, CVRD concluded sale of its holding in
Florestas Rio Doce S.A. - FRDSA, for R$ 191.4 million, composed of
3%9.7 thousand hectares in Espirito Santo and 8 thousand hectares
in Minas Gerais.

With the purchase of the stake held by Nissho |wai Corporation in
Celmar, in December 2002, CVRD became the sole owner of that
company. Celmar maintained its 29.4 thousand hectares of eucalyptus
forests in Maranhado and held to its studies of alternative projects for
use of this wood, which will be of great importance to other projects
under study in the metals area.




Pelletizing plant in S0 Luis: expanded production capacity

INVESTMENTS AND STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT

The CVRD Groun's invesiments in 2002 reached US$ 898.2 millior,
mes! of this gong to proiects - USS 435.7 mitlion.

e in the area of ferrous mirerals, US$ 328 miilion was spent,

US$ 136.2 mitlion of this -eferring to investments in nrojects
% 87.6 million went for construction anc infrastructure works at

the Sao Luls Pelletizing Plant, which began commercial operation in
the second haif of the year, and US$ 35.7 million to expanc the outficw
capacity for the iron crec oroduced by the Aomhem System. This sum
includes consiruction of Pier Il at the Perta da Madeira Maritime
Terminal and expansion of the iron ore stockyards, in which the
rospective outlays were US$ 18.4 million ang US$ 74.8 milion

» US$ 68,4 million was allocated to logistics projects, with US$ 28.3 miliion
going to acguire locomotives and US5$ 30.2 miliion to expand goneral
cargo capacity -n the Southern System.

|
nn>
RS

* The implementaticn of copper activities started tc ~ealize the exc
potential of Carajas to produce this meta:.. The buyout of partners in
tnc Sossego and Salobo projects will atlow greater use of the

synergies fram expiciting CVRD's existing infrastructure in the regian

The goal is to position CVRD among the wer.d's largest copper
producers by the end of the decade, with a minimum capital outlay,
cempetitive gperating costs anc operational safety and guaiity

Work on the Sos53eqo preject, the

Caompany's birst copper venture,

~ e + i >

{5 orogrossing according o tne
3! 207

omqu I schodule. In 2007, Lhe

milticn. The land grading work

c
clvit constructicn and
inste.lation ar t
eratling start-up In the second
guarter of ZCG4.
Tre 118" project forecasts annual
production of 45 thousand tons
of cathedic copper from
oxidated ore, through of the
'\,X W technology. T

feasibility study was finishoed in
Decemper Y007 and indicated

5 I - i
S as Ty ey Ty M ¢ . 3 Il IEaNy
improvemaoents thal are teing

he pre

incorporated in the final
feasibility stuay. Siart ug
's planneo for the seconag
nall of 2002,

Phasae [V of iihe igarapé Bahia
project invoives asseszment of
the expioitation of sulphated
:cppcr crc from the Alemac
deposit, which underties trhe
f:na; o:t of the goid mine,
ceactwvated in June 2007. The
feasivitity study of this orciect
Lobe suomiited 1o analysis
nd approval 'n 2003,

2 @
- @

m

ir June, CVRRD acauired from Angio
American, for USS 5C.9 miilion,
futi contirol of Salcbo Metais,
cwner of the 5Saiobs prolec!

with the objective of enabiirg s
conception and implementation
S0 as to maximize the existing

synergies in Carajas.
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The 5alobe nroject has reserves of 784 million tons of ore with a
copper content of C.96% and 0.6 gram of gold per ton, one of the
worid's greatest uniapped coopper reserves. During 2002, CYRE revised
the studies Lo deveiop this project, considering two processes: hyaro
and pyrometadurg.c. The results lead to a lorecast start-up date of 2007.

The studies mealized for the Alemdo and Cristalino projects inveived

conclus:on of core sampling of the deposits, evaluation of the

metallurgical processes and the first economic evaluation exercises.

The pre-feasibility stuaies will be finisned in 2003. Alemao conlains

the highest content among the Carajas projects, with resources not yet

defined, but certairly above 150 million tons. Cristalino looks to have

more mcdest yields, out can tenefit from investments in logistics for ‘
outflow of the preduction from the nearby Sossego project.

e The continuing works cn the Yermelho nickel deposit scek to
determire the projecied value and monitor the operating results of
the mincs. The pre-feasibility study, conducted with speciatis?
compan:es with internationat standing in the nickel industry, will o
concluded in the second halt of 2003, An extensive pilol campaign
began in Australiz in November 2007, with encouraging prelirminary
resuits. The sirategy is to proceed cauliously, sccking the viabitity of
this attractive deposit, which can also benefit from the oxisting
Carajds infrastructure.

* The project to expand capacity of the Taguari-Vassouras potash mine
ir the sta'e of Sergipe tcok resources of US$ 7.9 million in 20072
This new production capacity, of 850 thousand tons, should enter
cperation in mid-2005.

e Alunorte invested US$ 147.5 million to expand alumina production
capacity from 1.6 million to 2.4 mitlion tons a year. MRN, in turn,
invested USS 112 million to boost yearly bauxite production capacity
from 11 million tons to 6.3 miilion tons.

« The construction of hydroelectric plants involved investments of
US$ 78.1 million. Maost of this went to the Aimorés [US$ 40.2 miltion]
ond Candonga [US$ 16.4 million! stations, and to conclusion of the
Furil statior (US$ 17.2 million), which came on line in December
2002, Canderga, with 140 MW of installed capacity, and Aimorés,
witn 330 MW, wiil start operating at the end of 2003.

= A capital infusion was made in Celmar of US$ 47.1 million. whose
purpose was to amortize the principal and intercst on a long torm
loan ard mainta:n the forest-planting activities. The Celmar assets
witi bo inlegrated to the project to produce pig iron in the North
regicn of Brazit.

s [nvestments in maintenance and the envirecnment were US$ 238.1 million
in 2007, with the major slice going for replacements and
inprovenents in the forrous minerals area. A further US$ 14.2 mitlicn
was spent or information technology, and US$ 6.9 millicn on
technological research.
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Mention should also se made of
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'he foliowing sira

Formetion of a JO Nt venture with Antof agasly g, sie of tne wrgest
copper preducers in Latin America, Lo explors mi
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in the south of Peru

Creation of Comgania Mirera _atino Amcricana - CMLA & cumaany
establisiied 1n Cnile, which wiil be responsible Tor e mncral
activities i Chie and Argentina.

A cooseralion agreerment with Nucor, one of inc lgadors 10 the

United States steel industry, for jomz explcr:‘pc“ cfocooriunilies (o
preduce procuc:s derived from iron ore.

Restruciuring of the manganese and ferroaliny b

2

detisiine of Sihra anc CPFL and

3

acguisition of
I3

of ferroatloys located in Norway, for USS “7.4 milion o wigs rereineu
R.0 Jove Mangenese Norway.

Organicatienal ,esf"utmm

g of lagistics onerations, sagmeniing ne

BN
[SROSS]

rﬂarket Intc five business urils - agriculiure,
cremicals, steel products and mtermodat -2
corridors, wilth tne goal of expanag:ng anc beller ce

portfolio of proaucts 2nd services.

fional

‘ntroduction of new logistics services, with devclopmeort o ntograted
sotations supgorted by glesi-gereration softwors ond wiln
supply-chair management for clients in the

S
hl
9]
O
C
=

glher segments

Formation ¢t a partnership with Milsui ’“(* une of Jegen's (orqost
compan.es and a gicba. ciayer in ine ogis
intermecal frarsport

nlegration of the activitics of mineral exploraiion and oo
development, progr
and efferts at grea

ess In {he Mmuiticommocity oxo.orat
ter g eograpMc mve:smcat:o#




MINERAL EXPLORATION

Ensuring growth

Dwversificatier of the mineral products portfolio of Companhia Vale do
Rio Doce i the resull of 2an extensive program of mineral prospecling.
“ne Company is aware of the importance of finding new reserves to iis
consobdation ard growth 'n ihe mineral sector.

in 2407, spending on mineral exploration and technologicat development
was the highest i the Company's history, US$ 51.9 million. Of thes
tctal, USS 39 mullion was spent by CVRD and US$ 12.9 mitlion by the
BNDES, under the Mineral Risk Contract signed in 1997 for the
Caraés rineral province.

Nearly 74% of the budget for 2002 went to Carajés, including actions
imynlving copper, nickel, gold, platinum group metals and manganese.
These activities are based on 2 combination of the region’s outstanding
rranergl potential with the availabiity of excelient infrastructure for
iplementing new projecis, aiong with the substantial set of mi wr?t
rights. The existence of a targe numoer of prejects in the pre feasibin
arc feasibility siages also contributed o the hign demand for funas

Atotal of USS 106 mitlion was spent in the rest of Brazil. In the state
oi Para, excluding Caraids, the focus was on kaolin in the Rio Capim
basin and bauxite in the I-hmnr)mmaf region. The copper exploration
;)I'UC‘,!(N!‘ tusk i the slates of Ceard, Praui and Pernambuca, whore
cas wore found will promsing u:tnmiiuna i gold prospecting,
pr*orwv wern! to the states of Matc Grosso and Goids, while for nickel
the program covered the Narlreast and Soultheast regions of the country,
During 7007, CVRD consoudated (is actions in mineral exploraticon
a2hroad, mimi geographic diversification in areas of high geological
lertibyy, Witk vesimerts of around JS% 2.7 million, the program
corcentrated on the discevery of copper and gold deposifs in the
Andes regien. To compiement these programs, efforls were begun
f idonidy ‘?p”or*um*ics in Africa, Asig and Cenada. the idea s to

ey alrgie

rassnratons with established companies, where

!
554 Jee can o be brovahi Lo bear, and o execute

o]

complomentany

crograms of own pr :

1
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Smelting of rock samples to assay for precious
metals at the Mineral Development Center in
Minas Gerais

Fazenda Brasiteiro Mine: mining gold
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SHAREHOLDER RETURN
CVRD stock, an excellent investment in 2002

The constant commitment to shareholders and strong cash flow have
becn keys to consolidaling the repuiation of Companhia Vale do Rio Doce
as an excellent asset to hold in investor portfolios. Good prospects for
sustainea growth also help to preserve the already recognized
financial solidity of CVRD.

Indecd, despite an unfaverable scenario, CVRD's shares performed
impressively in 7007, both in relative and absolute terms, racking up
tneir best performance since 1999. The increased demand for the
Company’'s shares and their consequent appreciation Is the result of
the positive evaluation of the way CVRD executes its long-term strategy,
its advances in cornorate governance and the opportunities for
profitable growth in upcoming years.

Ihe increase In risk-aversion among international investors was shown,
for example, by the contrast between the 21% fall in the MSCI - World
Index, a gtobal indicator of stock prices, and the rise of 19% in the JP
Morgan Globai Governrment Bond Index, showing that investors have

been seeking refuge in government bonds, deemed safer than equities.

The doubts sown by the country’s presidential elections in 2002 also
helped to increase risk aversion to Brazilian financial assets. Some
exampies of this were the exaggerated fall in the prices of Brazilian
foreign debt and the sharp devaluation of the real against the dollar.




In the domestic market, CVRD’s
common shares registered an
overall rise of 97.9%, against a
fall in the Sdo Paulo Stock
Exchange {Bovespal index of
some 17%. The 584,588 Brazilian
workers who used resources
from their FGTS (Severance Pay
Guarantee Fund] accounts to buy
common CVRD stock at R$ 54.42
per share in the global offer of
March 2002 saw their investments
gain 89.1% in just nine months.

The performance of the
Company's ADRs on the NYSE
also was very good. RIC,
representative of comman
shares, sold a global offer at
US$ 24.50 and closed the year at
US$ 28.91, an 18% rise. RIO started
trading on the NYSE on March
21, 2002. The price of RIOPR, the
ADR representing preferred
shares that have been traded on
the NYSE since June 2000,
reached US$ 27.50 on the last
trading day of the year, a rise
16.5%. During the year, CVRD's
common shares were traded an
the NYSE at an average premium
of US$ 1.35 per ADR over the
price of preferred shares.

CVRD’s market capitalization
reached a US$ 11.037 billion at
the end of 2002, an increase of
US$ 1.864 billion over the
US$ 9.173 billion registered

at year-end 2007.
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Sundry Products Terminal in Yitoria: moving goods and generating wealth

There was a considerable rise in the liquidity of CVRD's shares, whose Dividends Paid
trading volume went up 83.5%, from 168.1 million shares in 2001 to
259.1 million in 2002, At the same time, most trading in the shares
migrated to the NYSE, where the percentage of transactions went up U5%$ millien
from 35.9% in 2001 to 56.1% in 2002. This change reflected the significant

increment in the number of ADRs in circulation, from 57.7 million at 120 1 266
December 31, 2001 to 123.7 million at the end of 2002. 1000 A
The total shareholder return (TSR} is a measure of value creation for =
stockholders, reflecting the return on the Company’s shares in the form i %
of capital gains plus dividends and/or interest on stockhotders’ equity. ik i |
The TSR is correlated with expected shareholder return and the use of | - .
free cash flow. k ‘i
| i
In 2002, the TSR measured in U.S. dollars was 24.2%, an exceptional @%‘
return, even more so when considering the low returns and high volatility /
in the stock markets in 2002. Over the period 1998-2002, the TSR in
doilars was 14.4% a year, once again evidencing the good
remuneration provided by the Company to its owners.
Alongside the capital gains from the rise in market valuation, CVRD in RS per share
2002 distributed in the form of interest on stockholders’ equity '
R$ £4.985 per share, split into two instaltments, of R$ 2.305 on April 30 8 50
and R$ 2.68 on December 10, a total payout of R$ 1.915 billion. Over ; Y e
the past five years, the dividend yield on CVRD shares has averaged, in N ﬁ}
dollars, 7.2% a year. ¢ ;
According to the GVA 2002 survey, conducted by the Boston Consulting ; i
Group and the Fundacdo Getulio Vargas, CVRD was one of the three - |
top Brazilian companies systematically providing the highest total l 1 ‘
shareholder returns in 2001 and in the last five and ten years. 0 |
- 7
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Cuittays on logistios projects programmed tar 2013 are conceontrated in

U0 ravt cars and 146 iocomatives Lo haul rron ore -
mithion = and general cargs, mainly transport of agricuttural
; - USH 97.0 mitlion, construction material - US$ 34.2 million,
and steel products - US$ 11.7 mitlien. The remaining caoital
wpenditures vmt g he constr uctlum of gra:.n siles and to increase
le terminal, spectalized in unioacing solid
oke and amhracz\

AZ(E
OO(-

will be hivested Lu expand the togistics cavanty

with U5S 4.8 mitlion going to build Pier

muorithne Terminal, o the first phdue ol his
in 2004, the terminal’s capacity witl be

nred (rrwrr' %i'res nrrent 5h mM inn tons a year o 70 miliion fons.

Cevelupment of the Brucuty and Faboca Nava iron ore mines in the
Scuthern Systam is meant to replace the capaci tal wit wost
Scuthern System is meant to replace the capacity that witl be {ost
from future depletion of the mines ot Capancma [in 2003), Iimbopeba

{in 7004) and Cdrrego do Meio [in 2007!, besides aiming to meet
mcreased fulure demand.

Brucutu s the most important reserve in the Southern System in
terms of are guantity and quatity. US$E 19.7 miltion will be spent in
02 to start a project to build a bereficiotion plant, whose final
oijeclive 1s (o reach cananity of 17 millicn tons a yoar in 2308

Brucutu Mine: high-quality iros ore
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INVESTMENT BUDGET 2863

By business area

By category
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Aberje Brazil 2002 Award
- Internal Newsletter
Category, given to the
Jornal da Yale, airmed at
employees. In 2002, CYRD
also won eleven regional
awards for communication
given by the Brazilian
Corporate Communication
Association [Associacdo
Brasileira de Comunicacao
Empresarial - Aberje]

Jornal da Vale: information brings together
empioyees ail over the country




CYRD Aunnal Repr

= ©.opobiey nf trarcparency the Yale@inlormar nrag 15
- cot Lobavier, CYRD cimed ot ail e—rﬂail users and
s mosories ol awards ond Dreseris News on various subjects

cf inierest. The new Jornal da /ale

NerNaL Sewsierarn

cingerforms oi recognition n 200

~hows ne

Y s e sl mo e OVl . T .
ACgaAniy s ntel Pal painic, BVRY Company's goneral situalion and

Soooniated to seeping ds more Jormalion on iis
emgloyees eagaged noals facets projects and aclions 'n the 74 slatcs
e Loinpany s evolation. The where it operates. the No Turne
SEaTen Ve Lnstalves Hial {0n SR orogram s aimed al
fonuie beoimprove coorational cmuloyees who work [ shifis,

Lrocesses s always encouraged,

i~ 2002, CVRD won 71 rogione. . r

e Commun.caticn

Assciction [Associacdo Sras’leins |

Lmpresa=a. inception | ) highightod the

‘i"e";f;}. To communicate botter relationen of CVRD win g

TR CMIDIOY0CS, SYHIOMIGCany omplovess s ntoracricn wite tae
decmiienly o Novermbe CormuNIiies waore L oaaraies
cooed e Sers Velealos anc s copcern for ine

JSix Vehicies ] proiect. li"*r"(:(?
“lihese communication vehicles
“eoout in place in 201

roationa with ai{ s

S e teaad s ey
N .- i iy . \l
I 9] (SRR by (¥ UV\. )

b Jtl)kl“‘
tlow up of changes and fo ot oo
achivvernenls, beardes fostering ko Oy
LoTe acthive :}m’i:updl;on ol all to1 Al

altowed




Annual Report 2002

CYRD ATTRACTS

, DEVELOPS AND STIMULATES TALENTED

PE P&.ED CREATING A CHALLENGING ORGANIZATIONAL

ENVIRCNMENT
AND VALUE GE

THAT FOSTERS PRCFESSIONAL GROWTH

NERATION.

~e CVRO OS0LTOCS DOy s gnial 1o inc siralany

or growtns 2ng vaiee-Crestion moups atiract, devewsn and retam

no foe e Cumos clgs on ot Grniznlonal Ginsience
that is cot™ channy 'ztong Tor ol cimgloyees
PROFESSIONAL GROWTH

Sta: LH:L; colnvoncoong czd ol 2007 tre tiumar Resources Dogarimaont
DOOaN resruCiu 0 15 KEY STCCEB3CS Croiinwing

detineu a0t st v\L:‘T.“C“C:‘_.: sToinnc the orafe

0i CIDLCY2es,

Corporate University

Thc modc. fosignon  n 2007 swokoa 10 onshistisrsiie A

centnung eduselian and saucoy tng growincg demand

devolopnent willbe immpleenton nutng the second
Professional Specialization Programs

Atotate’ 1720 cologo oducotod srnens e s perhioinaled,




~

\

CVRD Annual Repc

Training at the locomotive shop in Vitéria

Supervisor Training

e

5 lizea training was given to 437 supervisors.

Specia

Management Updating

Each manager recetved 40 hours of further training, in Brazil and abroad. |

Postgraduate, MBA, Master’s and Doctorate Education

A total of 134 prefessionals participated in closed programs - tailor made
for CVRD - and "8 in reguiar university programs,

Professional Training and Internships

Professional training ana expe~ience was offered to 278 apprentices, and
inlernships were onened for 474 high school and 775 college students.

Scholarships

[

‘his pregram encourages educational advancement by reimbursing
schooling costs. Last year, 340 employees received scholarsnips tor
secandary iearning and 1,298 for university study.




QuE PROFISSA
SEU FILHO VAL EER?

vaie Viver Program: Bringing employees rogether

CAREERS AND SUCCESSIONS

The succession plan is considered a cornerstone of HR strategic
planning. Its objective is to ensure the Company remains innovative
and competitive, reaching its full potential. The actions undertaken
in 2002 were significant and provided various opportunities for
professional advancement:

Opportunities Bank

This is CVRD's internal recruitment and selection program. In 2002,
there were 136 positions offered, attracting 1,007 applicants. Nearly
120 employees were reallocated.

Management Assessment

The purpose is to map the managerial profile of CVRD's executives,
checking the degree of alignment with the skills required for
management positions and the Company’s business strategies.

There were 227 assessments conducted in 2002, followed by individual
interviews, with the results making up part of the employee’s individual
development plan.

Trainee Program

In 2002, CVRD revitalized its trainee program. Lasting 11 months, this
program consists of behavioral and technical training, including the
participation of new employees in a strategic project under the
orientaticn of a menteor. Of the 12 thousand applicants, 50 professionals
of various backgrounds were chosen.

RELATIONS WITH UNIONS

CVRD’'s good employee relations extend to the posture adopted
toward the labor unions representing its workers. Negotiations
are conducted yearly with each union to reach an overall collective
bargaining agreement, complemented by regional negotiations, seeking
to reflect the diversity of each region where the Company operates.




WORKING CONDITIONS

Besides the professional development of its employees, CVRD recognizes
the importance of each one to the Company's performance and considers
that good working conditions are fundamental to reach its goals.

Profit Sharing

Companhia Vale do Rio Doce uses variable remuneration strategies by
distributing a share of profits to its employees. The criteria are negotiated
with a committee elected by the employees. The targets are set annually
and the results monitored quarterly. All employees received an average
of 2.6 times their monthly salary as profit sharing for 2002.

Occupational Health and Safety

Concerned with cutting the number of occurrences and reducing their severity,
CVRD revised its actions for preventing accidents and preserving the physical
integrity of its employees. In 2002, accident rates fell 36% from the previous
year. In 2003, the occupational health and safety program will continue to
be a cornerstone of CVRD's policy.

Private Pension Plan

Created by CVRD, the Fundacdo Vale do Rio Doce de Seguridade Social
- Valia is a closed, nonprofit, complementary social security plan with
financial and administrative autonomy. With 27 sponsoring companies and
over 45 thousand participants {active, retired and pensioners], its overall
profitability reached 23,62% in 2002, with a surplus of R$ 104 million,
making for an accrued surplus of R$ 293 million.

Vale Viver |“Life Worth Living”) Program

One of the main instruments to strengthen employee relations is
Vale Viver. Aimed at promoting healthier lifestyles, fortifying
company-family ties and improving working conditions, its activities
are based on five pillars: health, safety, culture, communication
and environment. In 2002, approximately R$ 3 mitlion was invested
in this program.

Benefits

All employees and their dependants are entitled to supplementary medical
assistance, which offers coverage for outpatient and in-hospital
treatment, dental care and prescription drug costs. Beneficiaries have
free choice of care providers, with part of expenses being reimbursed.
Other important fringe benefits offered to employees are
reimbursement for school material, group life insurance, funeral

assistance and reimbursement of daycare/nursery school costs for
employees’ children up to the age of five years.
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Gongo Saco lron Ore Mine: sustainable economic development

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAE

Ine environmentat gusitty of the activities, procucts and services of

Rin Nuoe s a strategic facter indicpensaiie to its

pemmenpss and very survival in wne intornat.onal marketplace.
isting on standards that surpa

active stance, in

J‘.

larty discioses
neesses, proguct
rotiirmo by - }s o h N g oyt
refurns to sharehoiders wilthout

companies 1o implement an enviren:
nthe ‘SO 14007 standard, CVYRD had received
of PUUZ. Allits iran ore e\<pcr’ come from

rougn equally cerlified port terming:s

J
's lctizing p\amts. in France, the subsidiary
ang e, a araducer of ferronlloyy, was 150 14001
coert:fied in 2687, and in 2007 roceived the Indusirial mxcellence Award
from the Insuitut Européer d'Administration des Affairs - Insead.

Iren and Colad Mining Cormplox at ltebira and Concelcass - Minas Gerais;
s Cenge Soco lron Ore Mine - Minas Gerais;

* Socicdade Mineira ceo Mineracaa Manganese Mine - Minas Gerais,

The abeve units are in add.tion to others already certifieg, ameng wh ch
are the Santa Lu7zia Mineral Development Center in Minas Gerals and

tne Carzids iren cre and menganese mines in the state of Pard, which
waore the first such mines in the world to receve 150 74007 ceriification
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CVRD Annual Repo:

THE ENVIRCNMENTAL QUALITY OF ITS ACTIVITIES
AND PRODUCTS 1S STRATEGIC AND ENSURES
CVRD'S CONTINUANCE AND COMPETITIVENESS
IN THE WORLD MARKET.

Top de Ecologia Award -
Vale do Ric Doce Natural
Reserve in Linhares -
Transferming a Protected
Area into a Sustainable
Business Unit, given by the
Associacao dos Dirigentes
de Vendas e Marketing do
Brasil - ADMB {Brazilian
Sales and Marketing
Directors’ Association].

Vale do Rio Doce Natural Reserve: environmental
education in the Atlantic coastal rainforest

ENVIR

RONM

RTNERS

OWRD nreseives over T4 mattion hectares U Pdr"iy UOH dm'(f.%] of
retive ferestiands, In the Amazun region, the Lu?pdﬂy helps the
inatituto Bra:‘lo.m do Moo Ambiente ¢ Fucur 0s Naturals Renovaveis

- lbama {Brazilian Envirenmental Agencyl in managing the Carajas
and Tapirape-Acuiri Natinnal Forests. These dense forests are among

Lo

the fargest remaining stands of primary forest in the south of Pard.

{Atiantic ceastal rainforest],

crthe Sooretama Biotogical inrve,
thousand neclares lover 54 thous
Vaie do Rio Doce Natural Reserve in

i

t o

TR
b

. . aAa

omngintatns inore onagn A/

!

| of qative forest in the

Linhares, Espirito Sante {veerw curd com br/linhares]. Together, these
recerves correspond o Y5 of the state’s remaoining Atlantic forest

o *mn&rmpﬂ*hd an itnnovative madel for
ugh controtled public access to 1%

s developed studies and technologios
m‘lwm s of seedlings of over 80( tropical
i ! nbative, applicable tv other protected arcas, the
Tornpany in 2007 was toncred with the FCO and Top de Ecologia awarde.




MINIMIZATION OF INPUTS AND OUTPUTS

Reduction of effluents, emissions and residues avoids unneeded waste
and the costs associated with their control, treatment and final disposal.
Measures to rationalize the main industrial inputs - electricity, fuels
and water - are longstanding at CVRD. Substantial investments are
made to technologically upgrade productive processes and control
systems, as well as to improve operational procedures.

WATER

CVRD has operations in 14 Brazilian states, ranging from the tropical
Amazon region to the semiarid Northeast of the country. This imposes
specific demands for adequate water management based on individualized
studies and solutions appropriate for each operational unit.

Reduced water consumption at the Tubarao pelletizing plants is an
example of the significant results achieved. Over the past ten years,
despite a 67% rise in annual pellet output, water consumption has

been cut by 48%.

AlR

The Company has been consistently improving its programs to minimize
atmospheric emissions. In 2002, new electrostatic precipitators were
installed at the Tubarao pelletizing plants in Espirito Santo, which added
to those already installed eliminate over 95% of particle emissions. The
automatic monitoring systems installed in Vitéria in Espirito Santo and
ltabira in Minas Gerais are among the mest modern in the world, allowing
emissions to be consistently maintained within established levels.

In mining activities, specific and routine procedures are adopted to
reduce atmespheric emissions, such as spraying down internal roads,
minimizing the exposure of benches and slopes, and planting arboreal
strips with species chosen to cut down particle emissions.

SOLID WASTE

The solid waste management program seeks to minimize generation and
rationalize final disposal. It stimulates recycling, reuse, co-processing,
or disposal in landfills under Company control when no other
alternatives are feasible.




Rehabilitation of the Picarrdo Mine

REHABILITATION OF MINED AREAS

CVRD applies the latest techniques to rehabilitate mined areas. At the
end of extraction, these areas can be used for other economic activities
or for environmental conservation. The funds necessary for future
recovery of its mines are assured by setting aside part of the revenue
obtained during the productive period.

[n 2002, CVRD invested nearly R$ 23 million in various projects to
rehabilitate mined areas.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE LIFE CYCLE
OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

With products sold the world over, CVRD pays close attention to the
environmental regulations placed on its customers, establishing
ongoing technical partnerships to identify opportunities to improve
the environmental quality of the processes and products they use.

The environmental guality of the products and services acquired by
CVRD is ensured by the requirement to demonstrate compliance with
all applicable regulations and by conducting regular environmental
audits. All service providers are duly qualified and trained and must
follow the same environmental procedures practiced by the Company’s
own employees.

RESPONSIBILITY TO FUTURE
GCENERATIONS AND COMMITMENT
TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL CAUSE

CVRD is a founding member of the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development - WBCSD and of its Brazilian counterpart, the Consetho
Empresarial Brasileiro para o Desenvolvimento Sustentavel - CEBDS.
It also participates in other governmental and technical forums
responsible for perfecting environmental laws and standards. This
permits planning of the necessary preventive actions to maintain legal
and regulatory conformity at all times. The Company also participates
in the formulation and implementation of the United Nations Convention
on Climate Change and is a founding member of the International
Emissions Trading Association.




Environmentat education in Espirito Santo

ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIONS

The Company encourages and implements acuons (o mprove ths
environmental guality of the communities in the
its activities. It sponsors environmental educulic

na

")

already trained nearly 3.50C ecucators
the aress wherc it operates. These teac '{m} e
more than 23 thousand outlic and private sc
community members.

REHABILITATION IN MARIANA

in 2002 CVRD spent RS 1.5 million to rehatcilita
near the center of the historic city of Mariana in the oig

WILD ANIMAL PROTECTION CENTER

Built in Sdo Lus in parirership with thama
animals se.zed from noachers, for later reintroduct
habitats or consignment to 7oos or accredited breeders

ASSESSMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
OF PORT OPERATIONS

Under a partnership between CVRD and the Unwversidade |

Mzranhao, a study was conducled of the environ
gperaticns in Sac Lufs, Maranhdo state, which wiil s¢
protective measures.

VALE AMBIENTE ["WORTH THE ENVIRONMENT"}

in 2007, this program put on seven seminars,
18 presentations on sustainable developmant,
program among several municipal governments o
Bahia states. Il benefits some 2,000 teachers and

icaders, whe spread their such awareness (¢ the wide




MEU AMBIENTE ["MY ENVIRONMENT") ( W
This project informs residents of the watershed formed by the Santa Maria
da Vitéria and Jucu rivers, source of water for the greater Vitdria The Meu Ambiente Project
metropolitan area In Espirito Santo, of the importance of environmental | won the Findes/Consuma
preservation and proper water use. In 2002, Meu Ambiente was also i Award in the Environmental
implemented in the municipalities of Cariacica and Vila Velha. The Education Categoery, given
project benefits 11 thousand peuple. by the Espiritc Santeo
Federation of Industries -
VALE SEMEAR Findes and by the Conselho
(“WORTH PLANTING") Superior de Meio Ambiente

- Censuma (Superiocr

Vale Semear prepares municipal school teachers in the cities of . .
prei o 2 ‘ Environmental Council).

Linhares and Sooretama, in Espirito Santo, to include envitonmenial
studies in their curricula. In 2002, the project invoved 840 educators
and 8,910 students in the first through eighth grades in 15 schools.

. J
VALE 0 AMANHA ‘ R
(“VALUE TOMORROW”)
Begun in 2002, this project is developed in partnership with the
municipal sccretariats of education and the environment in Vitdria, ! ECO 2002 Awaﬂ'd =
Vila Velha, Cariacica, Scrra and Viana, in Espirito Santo. it trains ; CO”_SF-‘“'V&“O“ and _
primary school teachers in environmental education. These activities Environmental Educa_“Oﬂ
benefit 30C teachers and 3,600 studenis in 10 schools. Category - Vale do Rie
Doce Naturat Reserve in
EDUCATION FOR URBAN SANITATION Linhares, Espirito Santo
- American Chamber of
In 530 Luis, Maranhao, CVRD has been helping the local government Commerce - Amcham.
to implement selective trash collection systems, in a project that will
serve 200 thousand residents of the Anjo da Guarda, Vila Ariri, Vila
Bacanga, Vila Embratel and Vila Maranhac districts.
N /

TUESDAYS AT THE MUSEUM

The Tuesdays at the Museum environmental education project at the
Vale do Rio Doce Museurr in Vila Velha, Espirito Santo is aimed at
public and private school students in the greoater Vitoria metropolitan
area. tach month an average of 370 students participate.

CVRD COMMUNITY PROGRAM - MINING CIRCUIT

Started in June 2002, this program presenl!s the productive processes
and environmentatl control measures taker by CVRD. Nearly 14 thousand
people in ltabira, Marana, Catas Altas, Santa Rita do Curao, Anténio
Pereira and Curo Preto have visited the ltabira Mining Complex and
the Timbopeba and Alegria mines in Minas Gerais.

EXPENDITURES OF COMPANRIA VALE
D0 RIO DOCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGCEMENT = 2002

In 2002, the Company's expenditures on environmental actions reached
R$ 78 miilion, including asscciated and subsidiary companies, evaluated
by the equity method criterian,
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Jo Ri:) Dece, 2eiing mainly through its Fundacao Vale

Crvesis i educaetianel end social development

rors ey ity A ranl mAte
SroaraThs thal save real notey

yroscoie Delterment and can be

~leq inotner communities wnere the Company intoracis.

Fresent in nearty 303 municipalities and 14 statos of Brazit, CYRD nas
y¥s s04gnt T nelp develon (ne regions where i operates. lis relationship
with community leaders, civil sociely entities, private companies and

n

e puntc gowe- stimulates respect for cultural diversity, promotes

tne exaroise of arizenship end strengihens public policies to improve
trooocal guaebity of tfe.

‘ne rescurces that finance CVRD s social proiccts arn approved by the
+ f ;
Board or Drecters, FYRS the sacial arm of CVRD, also receves

funmcirg from goverament and private oartners, thus involving societly

<

atiarge o~ omeoelng sccizl needs. The nrojects generate results in tha
shorl, meciom and lorg lerme
SUM L a sgirit of voluntary
! and

Cconddencs in Braczils future, The veluniaors
1 .

IETY

‘eilo dovolosmant. tis a member of the Cthos

esoeasibility, of the Social Responsibility Council

Doce narticipates in business associalions
cno forums, contrituting Lo social ane econemic improvemen:
‘ I

ustrial teceration, and a founding
Courcil for Sustainable Develgpmcn‘r -

v counteraary, the Brezivar Business Council
Consclno tmoresarial Brastleiro para o

CERNSGL Throu n“ SYRD, it s also 8 membar
tens ant Companies [Gruso de Institutos
pro the Ferderations of Foundatons o‘ ;
(e Jerairgaad Fenirilo Sanin |

Escola que Yale program: education
and social development



Educacao nos Trilhos

Vsle informatica / CO!

Escola gue Vale

Vale do Ric Doce Museum

Main social projects:

[e}

[o]

o

Educacdo nos Trilhos ["Education on Rails”) promotes various
educational activities at the train stations and along the route of
the Carajads Railroad, benefiting nearly 450 thousand people a year

Escola que Yale ["School that Counts”] seeks to create better
working conditions in the public schools, enabling teachers to offer
learning that stimulates reflection and creativity. It benefits some 25
thousand people in Maranhao, Para, Minas Gerais and Espirito Santo.

Canal Futura ["Future Channel”) is a distance learning tool that
brings educational programming to 47 million potential viewers
throughout the cauntry.

Alfabetizacdo Solidéria ["Solidarity Literacy”] seeks to reduce
high rates of illiteracy and expand the supply of public education
to young people and adults. In 2002, CVRD's support for the
program benefited 13,500 people in 27 municipalities in Espirito
Santo, Bahia, Sergipe, Maranhao and Para.

Vale Informédtica/CDI promotes the social inclusion of nearly

21 thousand pecple in Para, Maranhéo, Minas Gerais, Espirito Santo,
Bahia and Sergipe, using computer technology as a mechanism for
the full exercise of citizenship.

The Vale do Rio Doce Museum, located in Vila Velha, Espirito Sante,
has received more than 220 thousand visitors since it opened in 1998,
In 2002, it offered several special exhibitions, including "Desiderata”
("Disideratum”], consisting of works by various Espirito Santo
artists; "Logradouro” ("Common Ground”), by the Rio de Janeiro
painter Marcos Chaves; and a special show by lvens Machado,
dubbed the "Engenheiro de Fabulas” ("Engineer of Fables”).

o Trem da Cidadania

<]

["Citizenship Train™] - a
locomotive pulling two air-
conditioned cars - offers
citizens of needy communities
in Maranhao an opportunity to
acquire documents and receive
basic medical and dental
treatment. It also develops
educational works along

the Carajas Railroad. It has
served more than 362 thousand
people in three years of activity.

The Vale Memdria ["Memories
of Vale”} program in 2002
published the book Histdrias
da Vale, which shows the
history of CVRD through the
eyes of more than 200 current
and past employees.

o Started in January 2002, the

Serra Peiada Social and
Economic Develcpment Program
is helping nearly 5 thousand
people by establishing projects
to support agriculture,
education and health.



CVYRD'S SCCIAL ACTION HELPS

Brazil Citizenship for TO DEVELOP THE COUNTRY

Exportation Award -

Arabian-Brazilian Chamber | AND TO |[MPROVE THE QUALITY

of Commerce (Cdmara de

Comércio Arabe-Brasileial | JF LIFE OF THOUSANDS OF BRAZILIANS.

and the Citizenship [nstitute
(instituto da Cidadanial -
in the Master 1 Category,
which recognizes initiatives
of great social impact.

Volunteer Work

In Rio de Janeiro, employee volunteers supported the Christmas
Without Hunger Campaign promoted by the organization Action for
Citizenship Against Hunger, Misery and for Life [Acdo da Cidadania
Contra a Fome, a Miséria e Pela Vida). In partnership with supplier
companies, CVRD put up a Solidarity Tree, a Christmas tree erected
next to its headquarters building. The traditional decorations were
substituted by supermarket carts replete with pasta, beans, rice,
cornmeal, flour, cooking oil and sugar. The campaign tc encourage
food donation was replicated in various operational areas of the
Company, resulting in collection of 278 metric tons of non-perishable
foods. For each kilo collected, CVRD donated ancther. More than
56 thousand staple food baskets were distributed to needy families.

In the North and South Systems, CVRD volunteers promoted campaigns
to donate toys, clothes and construction and school materials; made
presentations on safety and disease prevention; offered computer courses
and training in specialized trades; made available health and social
services; and carried out small repairs at schools, charitable institutions
and public spaces. All told, nearly 74 thousand people were helped in
Minas Gerais, Espirito Santo, Para, Maranhdo, Bahia and Sergipe.

Community effort: Christmas tree collects 278 tons of food



'RD Annuat Report 2002

Good relations with indigenous populations are essential to the success
of CVRD's operations in the area of influence of the Carajas Iron Ore
Project. For more than 20 years, the Company has given assistance to
the indigenous communities in the states of Maranhao and Para, with
actions in the areas of health, infrastructure, education, land demarcation,
environmental protection and vigilance, which have provided an
improved quality of life for some 17 thousand Native Brazilians.

All these activities are developed voluntarily, fully respecting Brazilian
laws and the technical orientations of the Fundacao Nacional do
indio - Funai, the government agency respansible for protecting the
rights of indigenous peoples. At present, CVRD directly assists the
actions of Funai in the Xikrin, Gavido and Sorord communities in Para;
and the Awad, Guajajara and Urubu Kaapor communities in Maranhao,
totaling nearly 3,300 people.

Among the actions carried out in 2002, special mention should go

to the support to Funai in demarcating the Awa Indigenous Territory,
and ongoing activities to improve the guality of life in the communities,
seeking sustainable development. These programs have resulted in

a marked increase in the indigenous populations in the areas served.

In 2002, Companhia Vale do Rio Doce spent approximately
R$ 11 million assisting indigenous communities in the areas
influenced by its operations.




SCCIAL REPORT IN NUMBERS

Years ended December 31 /in millions of reais

Parent Company

Basis for computation 2002 2001
Gross revenues 8,570 6,617
Operating profit 3.015 2,007
Gross payroll 457 375

2002 2001
% of % of
Gross Operating Gross Operating

Labor indicators Amount payroll profit Amount payrotl profit
Food 18 A 1 17 4 1
Compulsory social charges 174 38 6 147 39 5
Private pension plan {a) 55 12 2 45 12 2
Health 28 b 1 24 6 1
Education 22 5 1 21 6 1
Profit sharing 84 18 3 72 19 4
Other benefits 48 11 2 4, 12 2

Jotal - Labor indicators 429 94 16 370 98 16

2002 2001
% of % of
Operating Gross Operating Gross

Social indicators Amount profit revenues Amount profit revenues
Taxes (b} 633 21 7 305 15 5
Social investments 38 1 - 27 1 -

Social projects and actions 27 1 - 20 1 -
indigenous communities 11 - - 7 - -
Environmental expenditures 78 2 1 60 3 1
Operational 56 2 1 56 3 1
On outside programs and/or projects 12 - - 4 - -

Total - Social indicators 749 24 8 392 19 )

Headcount 2002 2001

No. of employees at end of year 14,289 13,620

No. of new hires during year 1518 2,558

fal In 2001, the contributions to the private pension plan did not include the transfer of shares from CSN to Valia in the amount of R$ 521
{Note 9.10 (j] of the Financial Statements); also not included is the provision for the early-retirement programs of R$ 78 in 2001 and R$ 43 in 2002.

{b] Excluding social charges and the income tax and social contribution to the limit of the amount of tax credits.
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GLOBAL ACTION



GLOBAL ACTIONS OF
COMPANHIA VALE DO RIO DOCE
Global and persona&izéd culture

Companhia Vale do Rio Doce supplies the world market with products
giving rise to innumerous objects present in of the daily lives of millions
of people the world over. After following transoceanic routes from
Brazil to ports in the four corners of the globe, the ores are variously
transformed and absorbed into local life in the form of new products
used by all - from cars to airplanes, stoves to computers, not to mention
providing structures and foundations for the building industry.

More than just a supplier of raw materials, CVRD is a restless company
with an enterprising spirit, always alert to opportunities to improve its
international business. By partnering with customers it gains the
insights needed to meet their specific needs. From an understanding
of these particularities, CVRD's professionals are able to formulate
personalized solutions for each segment of the international market.

Consolidation of the new corporate governance model enables CVRD to
gain ever-greater presence in a highly competitive world scenario.This
modern and cocnfident management model pushes the Company to
multiply its results. By concentrating its actuation in the areas of mining,
logistics and electric power, CVRD opens new fronts of development in
Brazil and the world, on track to ever more promising destinations.
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CVRD MADE A STRONG CONTRIBUTION*TeNERLEVAIRS
TRADE SURPLUS IN 2002, WITH EXPORTS WORTH

Industrial Excellence - the
magazines LUsine Nouvelle
and Wirtschaftswoche,
aleng with Insead, gave the
Industrial Excellence - Top
Steel Mill 2002 award to
Rio Doce Manganese
Europe - RDME.

Best Company of Latin
America in MIning and
Metals - Clobal Finance
and Reuters Institutional
tnvestior Survey 2002.

The rapid development of the Company’s activities starts from the
deep sense of restlessness and mettle of its employees, whose vision
of the future leads to a commitment to creating new opportunities.

Besides its huge and exceptionally high-quality mineral reserves, CVRD
has world-class infrastructure and an extremely efficient logistics system,
perfected and complemented during 60 years of uninterrupted activities.
Together these factors permit CVRD to see itself as one of the world's
top three mining companies by the end of the decade, recognized as a
world leader in the industry.

The global expansion of the Company is reflected in a very basic way
in the country's development and shows how much it is in tune with Brazil.
As a great engine of foreign exchange and jobs, Companhia Vale do Rio
Doce is fully aware of its important role in Brazilian society. This is the
new CVRD, a company with an attitude, ready to surpass all targets.
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PART I

Expressed in millions of reais
{amounts in tons refer to metric tons)

1 MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 COMPARED WIiTH THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

1.1 General Aspects

(a) The Companhia Vale do Rio Doce’'s segments of business are mining, logistics and energy, as follows:

= Ferrous minerals: iron ore and pellets as well as manganese and ferroatlloys;
* Non-ferrous minerals: gold, potash, kaolin and copper;

s Logistics: railroads, ports, maritime terminals and shipping;

e Energy: electric power generation; and

e Shareholdings: equity holdings in producers of aluminum, steel and fertilizers.

Ferrous Minerals

Iron Ore and Pellets

The main mining activities involve iron ore, through two world-class integrated systems for ore production and distribution, each
consisting of mines, railroads and maritime terminals. The Southern System, based in the states of Minas Gerais and Espirito Santo, has
total proven and probable iron ore reserves of approximately 2.3 billion tons. The Northern System, based in the states of Pard and
Maranh&o, has total proven and probable reserves of some 1.2 billion tons. Currently CVRD operates nine pelletizing plants, six of them
in joint ventures with international partners. The Company also has a 50% interest in Samarca, which owns and operates two pelletizing
plants. The S3o Luis pelletizing plant was inaugurated on March 26, 2002, with annual capacity of 4 million tons.

Iron ore export sales are generally made pursuant to long-term supply contracts which provide for annual price negotiations. Cyclical
changes in the world demand for steel products affect sales prices and volumes in the world iron ore market. Different factors, such as
the iron content of specific ore deposits, the various beneficiation and purifying processes required to produce the desired final product,
particle size, moisture content, and the type and concentration of contaminants (such as phosphorus, alumina and manganese] in the
ore, influence contract prices for iron ore. Contract prices also depend on transportation costs. Fines, lump ore and pellets command
different prices. Annual price negotiations generally occur from November to February, with separate prices established for the Asian
and European iron ore markets. In the Asian market, the renegotiated prices are effective as of April of each year. In the European market,
the renegotiated prices are effective as of January of each year. Because of the wide variety of iron ore and pellet quality and physical
characteristics, iron ore and pellets are less commodity-like than other minerals. This factor combined with the structure of the market has
prevented the development of an iron ore futures market. Currently, the Company does not hedge its exposure to iron ore and pellet price volatility.

Manganese and Ferroalloys

This activity is carried out through the subsidiaries Sibra, Urucum and Rio Doce Manganése Europe (in France). The ore is extracted from
the Azul Mine in the Carajds region, in the state of Pard, and the Urucum Mine in the Pantanal region in the state of Mato Grosso do Sul.
Beneficiation is done on site at both units.
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Non-Ferrous Minerals
Gold

Gold operations are carried out by the Company itself. These operations began in 1984 and currently there is one major mine in operation,
Fazenda Brasileiro, located in the state of Bahia.

Potash

The potash is found in natural deposits and is an important raw material for making fertilizers. The Company leases a potash mine in the
state of Sergipe from Petréleo Brasileiro S.A. -~ Petrobras. It is the only mine of its type in the country and its present capacity is some
600 thousand tons a year.

Kaolin

Kaolin is a fine white aluminum silicate clay, used in the paper, ceramic and pharmaceutical industries as a coating and filler. Kaolin
activities are conducted through the subsidiary Pard Pigmentos S.A. and through Cadam [indirectly through Caemi). Pard Pigmentos S.A.
began operations in 1994 with installed capacity of 300 thousand tons per year In the second half of 2002 it completed expansion to
600 thousand tons per year. Cadam carries out extraction and beneficiation of kaolin. The mines are located in the state of Amapa, near
the beneficiation and shipping instaliations, and in the state of Paré. Total productive capacity is 810 thousand tons per year.

Copper

CVRO's copper activities are still in the implementation phase. The Company holds 100% of the Sossego and Salobo mine projects in the
Carajas region, with estimated yearly capacity of 140 thousand tons and 200 thousand tons of copper, respectively, as well as participating in
joint ventures involving four projects in Brazil. These six projects contain approximately 1.7 billion tons of ore with an average metal content of 1.02%.

Logistics

The Company provides transport and related services to various clients. Built ariginally to serve the Campany's iron ore business, the
logistics system includes the Vitdria a Minas Railroad and Tubardo port complex in the Southern System, and the Carajas Railroad and
Ponta da Madeira Marine Terminal in the Northern System. In addition, in the last five years the Company has acquired stakes in four
privatized railroads. The principal cargo of CVRD's railroads is the Company’'s own iron ore, along with steel, coal, pig iron and limestone
carried for steel manufacturers located in the states of Minas Gerais and Espirito Santo. The railroads charge market rates for third-party
cargo, which vary based upon the distance traveled and the density of the freight in question.

Energy

The Company has equity holdings in ten hydroelectric plants, three of which are in operation, with another two scheduled to come on line
by 2004. Construction still has not begun on the remaining five projects. In 2002, the Company became part of another consortium to build
and operate the Estreito hydroelectric plant, located on the Tocantins-Maranhao state border. This project is designed for installed
capacity of 1,087 MW and should start operating in 2007. CYRD's investments in the sector seek to optimize the Group’s supply of electric
power. Depending on market conditions, the power generated by these plants will be sold or used in own operations.
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Equity Holdings
Aluminum Operations

The Company sells aluminum to an active world market in which prices are determined based on prices for the metal quoted on the
London Metals Exchange or the Commodity Exchange, Inc [Comex] at the time of delivery.

The wholly owned subsidiary Aluvale conducts aluminum operations basically through joint ventures. These include mining of bauxite,
which is refined into alumina and then smelted into aluminum for commercialization. Aluvale operates its bauxite extraction activities
through a 40% participation in the joint venture Mineracdo Rio do Norte S.A., which holds substantial reserves of bauxite with a low
separation index and high recovery rate. Aluvale has a 57.03% interest in the voting capital of Alunorte, which refines the bauxite into
alumina. The Company also acts in aluminum smelting through Albras, in which it detains a 51% interest, and through Valesul, of
which it owns 54.51%.

Steel

Commercial activities in the steel industry are conducted through the jointly controlled company CST, which sells steel slabs to the
domestic and foreign market; CSI, located in California, which manufacturers various processed steel products; and through the affiliated

company Usiminas.
(b} Acquisitions

Steel

On December 20, 2002, CVRD and Arcelor made & joint proposal to acquire the holding of Acesita S.A. in Companhia Siderdrgica de Tubardo ~ CST.
The average offer price to Acesita was US$ 21.58 per group of a thousand shares. [n order to acquire the indirect holding of Acesita in
the voting capital of CST, to gain control of the latter, KSC and CSI must waive their purchase preference on these shares. The increase
in CYRD's holding in CST will only be temporary. The proposed transaction reflects the intention already expressed by CVRD to participate
in the restructuring of the Brazilian steel industry, to facilitate its growth and thus create opportunities to expand the Company’s iron ore

and pellet sales.

Aluminum

On June 27, 2002, the Comrany acquired from its associated company Mineracdo Rio do Norte S.A., 12.62% of the capital of Alunorte for
R$ 119. With this acquisition, Alunorte became a consolidated subsidiary of CVRD.

On July 1, 2002, the Company, thraugh Vale do Rio Doce Aluminio S.A. - Aluvale, acquired 64% of the shares of its affiliate Mineracao Vera Cruz S.A. - MVC
held by companies of the Paranapanema Group, for R$ 6, becoming sole owner of MVC.

Copper

On June 19, 2002, CVRD bought out the interests held by Anglo American Brasil Ltda. controiled by Anglo American plc, in Salobc Metais S.A.
represented by 44,172,369 commaon shares corresponding to 50% of Salobo’s capital, in the amount of RS 136. After this acquisition, the
company holds 100% of Salobo. The Salobo project has recoverable reserves estimated at 784 million tons with a copper content of 0.96%,
in addition to 0.6 gram of gold per ton.

(¢} Divestitures

Pulp and Paper

On September 30, 2002, the Company and its subsidiary Florestas Rio Doce S.A. entered into an agreement with Aracruz Celulose S.A.
and Bahia Sul Celulose S.A. to sell the assets owned by FRDSA in the S30 Mateus region in the state of Espirito Santo. The value of the
transaction is R$ 191, realizing an intention announced publicly on June 10, 2002. The price covers approximately 40 thousand hectares
of planted eucalyptus forest and the assignment to Aracruz and Bahia Sul of the existing contract to supply wood to third parties. The
sale of FRDSA completed the divestiture by CVRD of its pulp and paper interests, determined as part of its long-term strategy.
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(d) The variaticns of the main currencies and indices in terms of percentages in relation to the real, which impacted the results of the

Company and its subsidiaries, jointly controlled companies and affiliates, were as follows:

A% Currencies / Indices Parity
Period U.S. Dollar Yen Gold 1GP-M TILP Us$ X R$ Us$ X Yen
2002 52.3 68.2 25.0 25.3 9.9 3.5333 118.87
2001 18.7 3.7 1.2 10.4 9.5 2.3204 131.27
2000 9.3 [2.2) (5.4] 10.0 10.8 1.9554 114.70
1999 48.0 62.6 6.9 20.1 13.2 1.7890 102.40

About 63% of the Company's gross revenue in 2002 (about 64% of the consolidated revenue] is derived from exports and part of domestic

sales is denominated in U.S. dollars, while the costs are mainly incurred in reais. Consequently, fluctuations in the exchange rate

between the two currencies have a significant impact on the operating cash flows.

Approximately 95% of the short-term and long-term loans of the Company at 12/31/02 {94% consolidated] are denominated in U.S.

dollars. As a result, exchange rate fluctuations have a significant impact on the financial expenses (Notes 9.12 and 9.21).

{e) In 2002, US$ 1,556 million in the trade balance was generated by the Parent Company (US$ 2,824 million consolidated]:

(in US$ million)
Parent company Consolidated
2002 2001 2002 2001

Trade Balance
Exports 1,804 1,963 3,173 3,297
Imports [248) [272) [349) [414)
2,824 2,883

1,556 1,691

Consolidated Trade Balance over the Past 5 Years - US$ Million
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1.2 Comments on the Parent Company Results

The net income of the Company in 2002 was R$ 2,043 compared with net income of R$ 3,051 in 2001 (the earnings per share corresponds
to R$ 5.32 in 2002 versus R$ 7.95 in 2001). The 2002 results include a gain on discontinued operations due to sale of the holding in
Florestas Rio Doce S.A. in the amount of R$ 111, and in 2001 include a gain on investments in the amount of R$ 1,771, mainly due to the
sale of Bahia Sul and Cenibra.

The gross margin remained stable at 4£9.8% in 2002, against 48.3% in 2001. The gross revenue rose 29.5% (from R% 6,617 in 2001 to
R$ 8,570 in 2002), while the cost of products and services increased 25.2% {from R$ 3,300 in 2001 to R$ 4,133 in 2002).

On December 20, 2002, the Company paid interest on stockholders’ equity of R$ 1,029, equivalent to remuneration of R$ 2.48 per
outstanding common or preferred share.

1.2.1 Gross Revenues

The 29.5% increase in gross ravenues (from R$ 6,617 in 2001 to R$ 8,570 in 2002}, reflects the strengthening of the dollar against the real
(85% of revenues are linked to the U.S. dollar] as well as growth in iron ore and potash sales volumes, as shown in the table below. The
increase in iron ore sales is due to growth of the Chinese, American and European markets as well as mining operations previously
belonging to Samitri. However, this latter event resulted in a decrease in gross revenue from railroad transport and port services, since
CVRD ceased to sell these services to that company and absorbed related costs as part of its own activities. The reduction in transport
services was 4,533 thousand tons.

Sales volume and revenues by products and services:

in thousands of ions

{except goid} in mitlions of reais

2002 28314 A% 28382 2081 A%

External market
Iron ore 91,495 77,441 18.1 3,932 2,732 43.9
Pellets 13,676 12,598 8.6 1,169 869 34.5
105,171 90,039 16.8 5101 3,601 41.7

Internal market
Iron ore 38,398 37,122 3.4 1,390 1,087 27.9
Pellets 2,773 2,787 [0.5) 336 278 20.9
41,171 39,909 3.2 1.726 1,365 26,4

Total

Iron ore 129,893 114,563 13.4 5,322 3,819 39.4
Pellets 16,449 15,385 6.9 1,505 1,147 31.2
146,342 129,948 12.6 6,827 4,966 37.5
Railroad transportation 58,143 60,371 (3.7 880 835 5.4
Port services 27,165 31,718 [14.4] 262 232 12.9
Gotd lkg) 10,310 15,815 [34.8) 280 331 (15.4)
Potash 731 503 45.3 272 166 63.9
Other products and services - - - 49 87 {43.7)

8,570 6,617 29.5
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Gross Revenue on 12/31/02 - R$ 8,570 / US$ 2,926

By Product By Currency

3% Gold

4% Potash and others

13% Logistics QQUF/

62% lron ore Us$ 85%

18% Pellets

1.2.2 Cost of Products and Services

The increase of 25.2% in the cost of products and services (from R$ 3,300 in 2001 to R$ 4,133 in 2002} is due principally to: increased
sales volume and the effect of exchange rate variation on 34% of the associated costs; amortization of goodwill of a merged company
[Samitril; increased expenses for maintenance of assets and equipment required to maintain their operating capacity; and an increase in
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment causing higher depreciation expenses.

Composition of costs of products and services:

2002 2001

4% Gold
3% Potash

7% Gold
2% Potash

1% Others

10% Logistics <];
(32% Pellets /| fi

50% Iron ore bé% Iron ore

2% Others

12% Logistics

31% Pellets
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Components of the cost of praducts and services and their variation far the year:

By Nature
Denominzted
R$ us$ 2082 2031 A%
Personnel 514 - 514 456 12.7
Material 411 191 602 442 36.2
Oil and gas 353 39 392 327 19.9
Outsourced services 517 36 553 417 32.6
Energy 121 - 121 100 21.0
Acquisition of iron ore and pellets 73 966 1,039 822 264
Others 97 181 278 223 24.7
2,086 1,413 3,499 2,787 255
Depreciation and depletion 536 - 536 475 12.8
Amortization of goodwill 98 - 98 38 157.9
Total 2,720 1,413 4,133 3,300 25.2
66% 36% 100%

1.2.3 Result of Shareholdings by Business Area

Business Area 2302 2001

Ferrous Minerals

ron ore and pellets 1,331 279

Manganese and ferroalloys 230 4
Non-ferrous Minerals (64] {140)
Logistics (384} [334)
Investments

Steel 302 160

Paper and pulp (16) (93]

Aluminum 76 170

Fertilizers 26 14
Others [48) (23]
Total 1,453 37

The numbers reported per area do not necessarily reflect the individual results of each company, but rather the amounts effectively
applicable to the business area.

Equity earnings increased from a gain of R$ 37 in 2001 to a gain of R$ 1,453 in 2002, due to a combination of the following factors:

o The positive effects of the 52.3% devaluation of the real against the U.S. dollar in 2002 [as campared to 18.7% in 2001} on the companies
located abroad, offset by the negative effects on the companies in Brazil with debt denominated in U.S. dollars; and

e Recognition of the provision for losses and full amortization of the goodwill on investments with negative equities (Note 9.10].
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Ferrous Minerals
{a] Iron ore and pellets

Ferteco - An improved equity result of R$ 181 [a gain of R$ 121 in 2002 against a loss of R$ 60 in 2001) due to the better operational
result, in addition to the recording in 2001 of one-time financial expenses and exchange rate variation on loans indexed in dollars for
purchase of the company [occurring in April 2001]. In 2002, R$ 104 was booked as amortization of goodwill, net of income tax and social
contribution on profit.

Caemi - The company was acquired in December 20071. In 2002, a negative equity result of R$ 32 was booked due to the provision for the
loss in QCM. In operational terms, in 2002 total sales volume was 34,148 thousand tons at an average price of US$ 13.07 per ton.

GHC - An improved equity resuit of R$ 3 (a gain of R$ 18 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 15 in 2001) due basically to the effect of exchange
rate variation on the result. In operational terms, sales volume rose 0.7% {3,074 thousand tons in 2002 against 3,053 thousand tons in 2001),
offset by a fall in the average sales price of 1.6% (US$ 40.98 per ton in 2002 against US$ 41.46 per tan in 2001).

itaco/RDE - An improved equity result of R$ 1,071 (a gain of R$ 1,374 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 303 in 2001), caused mainly by the fall
in the value of the real against the dollar [positive exchange rate variation of R$ 812 in 2002 versus positive exchange rate variation of
R$ 11in 2001]. In operational terms, iron ore sales volume rose 27.5% (86,606 thousand tons in 2002 campared with 67,907 thousand tons
in 2001], including sales by the subsidiary CVRD Overseas Litd..

Kobrasco - A reduced equity result of R$ 42 (a loss of R$ 61 in 2002 against a loss of R$ 192 in 2001), due to an increase in the negative effects
of exchange rate variation on debt, @ 2.7 % decrease in the average sales price (US$ 30.09 per ton in 2002 against US$ 30.93 per ton in 2001),
along with 3.6% lower sales volume 4,034 thousand tons in 2002 versus 4,184 thousand tons in 2001).

Nibrasco - An improved equity resutt of R$ 17 (a gain of R$ 10 in 2002 against a toss of R$ 7 in 2001}, due to the recording in 2001 of R$ 15
as a provision for losses on the realization of ICMS (VAT] credits. In operational terms, sales volume rose 3.2% (7,215 thousand tons in
2002 against 6,993 thousand tons in 2001 and the average sales price fell 3.9% (US$ 28.64 per ton in 2002 versus US$ 29.80 per ton in 2001].

Samarco - An improved equity result of R$ 41 {a gain of R$ 100 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 5% in 2001), due to a 28.9% rise in sales
volume (14,442 thousand tons in 2002 against 11,201 thousand tons in 2001), offset partly by @ 3.7% decrease in the average sales price
(US$ 28.60 per ton in 2002 against US$ 29.70 per ton in 2001) and the negative effect of exchange rate variation on debt.

(b] Manganese and Ferroalloys

ROME - An improved equity result of R$ 73 [a gain of R$ 93 in 2002 compared with a gain of R$ 20 in 2001], caused basicatly by the fall
of the real against the euro. Operationally, ferroalloy sales rose 5.6% (225 thousand tons in 2002 against 213 thousand tons in 2001).

Sibra - An improved equity result of R$ 13 {a gain of R$ 84 in 2002 versus a gain of R$ 71 in 2001), due to a 48.6% increase in ferroalloy
sales (327 thousand tons in 2002 against 220 thousand tons in 2001) and positive effects of exchange rate variation on exports, offset
partly by an average sales price decrease of 16.3% [US$ 453.43 per ton in 2002, against US$ 541.77 per ton in 2001].

Urucum - An improved equity result of R$ 17 [a gain of R$ 19 in 2002 against a2 gain of R$ 2 in 2001), basically due to a 92.3% increase
in manganese sales volume (350 thousand tons in 2002 versus 182 thousand tons in 2001).
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Non-Ferrous Minerals

Parg Pigmentos S.A. - An improved equity result of R$ 79 (a loss of R$ 62 in 2002 against a loss of R$ 141 in 2001), caused basically by
the amortization of R$ 83 of goodwill, recorded only in 2001. In operational terms, sales volume remained stable {338 thousand tons in
2002 against 339 thousand tons in 2001], while gross profits rose 24.5% due to the positive effects of exchange rate variation on exports,
offset partly by the negative effects thereof on debt.

Logistics

Docenave - An improved equity result of R$ 148 [a gain of R$ 104 in 2002 against a loss of R$ 44 in 2001), due to the rise in the value of
the dollar against the real, offset partly by a 30.9% decrease in average freight rates (US$ 4.91 per ton carried in 2002 versus US$ 7.11
per ton in 2001}

Docepar - R$ 51 was booked as a provision for losses on assets with no expectation of being realized in the short term.

FCA - A negative result of R$ 346 was booked in 2002 (R$ 137 as a provision for losses and R$ 209 as amortization of goodwill], against
R$ 244 in 2001 [R$ 97 as a provision for losses and R$ 147 as amortization of goodwilll, due basically to the negative effects of exchange
rate variation on debt. CVRD's holding in this company is through its subsidiary Mineracdo Tacuma.

MRS - In 2002, R$ 32 was recorded as a provision for losses, due to the negative effects on debt of exchange rate variation, and amortization of
R$ 17 of goodwill. CVRD's holding in MRS is through Ferteco Mineracdo S.A. and indirectly through Mineracdes Brasileiras Reunidas S.A. - MBR.

Shareholdings

[a] Steel

CS! - An improved equity result of R$ 241 {a gain of R$ 296 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 55 in 2001), due to an increase in sales volume
of 10.2% (2,014 thousand tons in 2002 against 1,828 thousand tons in 2001] and the rise in the value of the dollar against the real [positive
exchange rate variation of R$ 234 in 2002 against a positive exchange rate variation of R$ 67 in 2001].

CSN - R$ 108 of positive equity result was booked in 2001 as a result of the unwinding of the CVRD/CSN cross-holdings carried out
in March 2001.

CST - An improved equity result of R$ 32 (a gain of R$ 46 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 14 in 2001], due mainly to a 13% increase in
the average sales price, partly offset by a 1.5% decrease in the quantity of steel slabs sold (4,651 thousand tons in 2002 against
4,722 thousand tons in 2001) and the effects of exchange rate variation on debt.

Usiminas - A decrease in the equity result of R$ 14 (a loss of R$ 13 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 1 in 2001), due mainly to the increased
negative effects of exchange rate variation on debt. In 2001, R$55 of amortization of goodwill was registered.

(b] Paper and Pulp

Celmar - A provision for losses on assets of R$ 20 was booked in 2002, against R$ 115 in 2001.

[c] Aluminum

Albras - A reduced equity result of R$ 3 (a gain of R$ 14 in 2002 versus a gain of R$ 17 in 2001). In operational terms, sales volume went
up 22.3 % (406 thousand tons in 2002 against 332 thousand tons in 2001], offset by an 8.6% fall in the average sales price (US$ 1,306.38 per
ton in 2002 against US$ 1,428.99 per ton in 2001) and the increased negative effects of exchange rate variation on debt.

Alunorte - A reduced equity result of R$ 66 {a loss of R$ 89 in 2002 versus a loss of R$ 23 in 2001), due to increased negative effects of
exchange rate variation on debt. In operational terms, the average price of alumina fell 11.3% [US$ 164.56 per ton in 2002 against
US$ 185.51 per ton in 2001) and sales volume increased by 3.4% (1,592 thousand tons in 2002 against 1,540 thousand tons in 2001].

MRN - The equity result was virtually the same as the previous year (a gain of R$ 97 in 2002 versus a gain of R$ 98 in 2001}. Operationally,
sales volume fell 9.3% (9,928 thousand tons in 2002 against 10,952 thousand tons in 2001] and the average szales price dropped 8.1%
fUS$ 18.95 per ton in 2002 versus US$ 20.63 per ton in 2001), offset by the increase in export revenue.
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Valesul - An improved equity result of R$ 20 (a gain of R$ 43 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 23 in 2001}, due to an 18.4% increase in sales
volume (90 thousand tons in 2002 against 76 thousand tons in 2001], while the average sales price fell 13.2% (US$ 1,661.77 per ton in 2002
against US$ 1,913.54 per ton in 2001).

Aluvale - The equity result {own operations] fell by R$ 6 (a gain of R$ 25 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 31 in 2001}, basically because of a
reduction in the financial result.

Itaco - A reduction in the result of R$ 38 {a loss of R$ 14 in 2002 against a gain of R$ 24 in 2001), due to increased financial expenses.
In operational terms, the average sales prices of aluminum, alumina and bauxite decreased, respectively, by 8.5%, 51.6% and 30.8%,
while the sales volume for these products increased, respectively, by 28.1%, 46.7% and 30.5%.

1.2.4 Operating Expenses

The operating expenses remained stable [R$ 1,08% in 2002 compared to R$ 1,078 in 2001), with the reduction in ather expenses having
been offset by increases in:

e selling expenses, due to an increase in commissions, in turn caused by higher export sales;
o expenses for research and studies;
o other operating expenses [Note 9.24).

7.2.5 Net Financial Result

The net financial result increased negatively by R$ 2,105 [R$ 3.226 in 2002 compared to R$ 1,121 in 2001), mainly due to the increased
effect of exchange rate variation on the Company’'s net debt in 2002 (Note 9.21).

1.2.6 Discontinued Operations

The result in 2002 refers to gain on sale of assets of Florestas Rio Doce S.A. and in 2001 basically reflects gains on sale of the Company's
holdings in Bahia Sul and Cenibra, of R$ 230 and R$ 1,472 respectively.

1.2.7 Cash Fiow

The operating cash flow measured by EBITDA (earnings before interest, income tax and depreciation, amortization and depletion] was
R$ 4,050 in 2002, reflecting an increase of 24.4% over 2001, which was R$ 3,254 {Note 9.26).

1.2.8 Income Tax and Social Contribution

Income tax and social contribution was a credit of R$ 690 (credit of R$ 357 in 2001), mainly due to the tax deduction on losses from
exchange rate variation in the period and the tax/social contribution benefit based on the payment of interest on shareholders’ equity of
R$ 350 in 2002 (R$ 603 in 2001] (Note 9.9).
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1.3 Comments on the Consclidated Results
1.3.1 Consolidated Gross Revenue

Sales volume and revenues by products and services:

In thousands of tons

{except gold) !n millions of reais
2002 2001 A% 2002 2031 A%
Iron ore 135,187 120,708 12.0 5,987 4,193 42.8
Pellets 28,729 26,261 9.4 2,741 1,726 58.8
163,916 146,969 11.5 8,728 5919 47.5
Transportation services 76,323 56,649 34.7 1,101 1,233 (10.7)
Port services 27,288 22,571 20.9 334 257 30.0
Gold {kg) 10,310 15,815 [34.8) 280 331 [15.4)
Steel 1,925 1,607 19.8 1,713 1.147 49.3
Aluminum 4,341 4,097 6.0 1,767 1,118 58.1
Manganese and ferroalloys 1,187 1.181 . 0.5 845 528 34.6
Potash 731 503 45.3 272 166 63.9
Kaolin 451 317 42.3 179 83 115.7
Other products and services - - - 48 133 {63.9)
15,267 11,015 38.6

Revenue from iron ore and pellets grew 47.5% (R$ 8,728 in 2002 versus R$ 5,919 in 2001] because of the change in the product mix, along
with the 18.9% rise in the average value of the dollar against the real, partly offset by a fall in prices in 2002. New acquisitions also
contributed to the higher revenue (Caemi as of January 2002 and Ferteco from April 2001].

Revenues from transport services fell 10.7% [R$ 1,101 in 2002 against R$ 1,233 in 2001], due basically to a drop in ocean-going shipment
of bulk cargoes by the subsidiary Cocenave, which reduced its fleet from ten to five vessels. The fall in revenue was partially offset by an

increase in railroad transport services.

Revenues from steel products grew 49.3% [R$ 1,713 in 2002 against R$ 1,147 in 2001]. This result refers to the performance of CS| and
CST, discussed in Item 1.2.3 Shareholdings (a) Steel.

Revenues in the aluminum area rose 58.1% (R$ 1,767 in 2002 against R$ 1,118 in 2001] due to the mix of products and refers to the
performance of Albras, Alunorte, MRN, Valesul and Aluvale, discussed in ltem 1.2.3 Shareholdings [c] Aluminum.

Revenues from manganese and ferroalloys grew 34.6% (R$ 845 in 2002 versus R$ 628 in 2001], referring to Sibra, RDME and Urucum,
discussed in Item 1.2.3 Ferrous Minerals {b) Manganese and ferroalloys.

Kaolin revenues increased 115.7% (R$ 179 in 2002 against R$ 83 in 2001). This increase was basically due to the acquisition of the
Company's indirect participation in Cadam, through the investment in Caemi.
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1.3.2 Consolidated Cost of Products and Services
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By Currency

us$ |

}i 87%

By Nature
Denominated

R$ Us$ 2002 2001 A%
Personnel 855 118 973 852 14.2
Material 764 289 1,053 757 39.1
0il and gas 468 382 850 416 38.0
Outsourced services 503 575 1,078 809 333
Energy 408 159 567 451 25.7
Raw material 214 1,187 1,401 697 101.0
Depreciation and depletion 832 77 909 813 11.8
Amortization of deferred charges 101 - 101 38 165.8
Others 358 356 714 551 29.6
Total 4,503 3,143 7,646 5,584 36.9

59% 1% 100%

-

o

The cost of products and services increased 36.9%, due to the following:

s growth of CVRD's costs, which represents 55% of the increase (see item 1.2.2);

increased sales volumes of Samarco, CSl and Sibra [R$ 140}: and

increase in the percentage consolidation of Alunorte from 45.58% to 100% [R$ 201) as from July, 2002;
acquisition of Ferteco in April 2001, leading to its costs being fully accounted in 2002, compared to eight months in 2001 (R$ 140},

acquisition of Caemi, aggregating its corresponding costs in proportion to CYRD's participation {R$ 170);

reduction of Docenave’'s costs relating to partial sale of its assets, which led to a decrease in its operating activities [R$ 168).
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PART Il FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NCTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[A free translation of the original in Portuguese relating to the financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of Brazilian Corporate Law]

2 BALANCE SHEET

Years ended December 31/ In millions of reais

Pzrent Comzany Corselidated
Notes 2302 2087 202 23510
Assets L
Current assets - B o
Cash and cash equivalents 2.5 259 645 4,271 2,808
Accounts receivable from customers 9.6 1,436 920 2,621 1,497
Related parties 9.7 986 1,011 56 130
Inventories 9.8 419 448 1,869 1,326
Taxes to recover or offset 129 96 366 283
Deferred income tax and social contribution 9.9 812 613 B 812 628
Others 305 257 883 534
4,346 3.9%90 10,878 7,206
Long-term receivables o
Related parties 9.7 2,071 1.356 210 894
Loans and financing 269 299 284 316
Deferred income tax and social contribution 9.9 791 297 1,356 669
Judicial deposits 9.14 709 516 927 628
Prepaid leasing expenses - - 108 84
Long-term sales - - 136 -
Others 21 23 312 233
3.861 2,491 3,333 2,824
Permanent assets
Investments 9.10 9,920 8,347 2,938 3,113
Property, plant and equipment g1 8,707 7,581 15.666 12,791
Deferred charges ' - - 651 442
18,627 15,928 19,255 16,346
26,834 22,409 33,466 26,376
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity - “
Current liabilities )
Short-term debt 9.12 398 927 1,124 1,745
Current portion of long-term debt 992 1,828 387 3190 1.063
Payable to suppliers and contractors 684 523 1,386 8323
Related parties 9.7 948 716 141 200
Provision for interest on stockholders’ equity 9.20 9 788 9 788
Payroll and related charges 168 118 305 231
Pension Plan - Valia 9.16 81 65 81 65
Others 102 99 557 381
4,218 3,623 6,793 5.306
Long-term liabilities L
Long-term debt 9.12 4,064 3.326 10,225 6,765
Related parties 9.7 3,300 2,053 26 -
Deferred income tax and social contribution 99 85 87 250 297
Provisions for contingencies 7.14 1,272 894 1.724 1.217
Pension Plan - Valia 9.16 499 429 499 429
Others 645 230 852 429
9.865 7,019 13,576 9,137
Deferred income 9.30 - - 156 159
Minority interests - - 190 7
Stockholders’ equity o
Paid-up capital 9.17 5,000 4,000 5,000 4,000
Capital reserves - 444 - FANA
Revenue reserves 7,751 7.323 7,751 7,323
12,751 11,767 12,751 11,767
26,834 22,409 33,466 26,376

The additional information, notes and attachments | and Il are an integral part of these financial statements.
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[A free translation of the original in Portuguese relating to the financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of Brazilian Corporate Law/

3 STATEMENT OF INCOME

Years ended December 31 / In millions of rears

Parent Company Consolidated

Notes 2002 2001 2002 2001
Operating revenues B o
Sales of ore and metals -
Iron ore and pellets B 6,827 4,966 8,728 57919
Gold 280 331 280 331
Manganese and ferroalloys - - 845 628
Potash and kaolin 272 166 451 249
7,379 5,463 10,304 7,127
Railroad, port and shipping services ~ 1,142 1.067 1,435 1,490
Sales of aluminum products - - 1,767 1,118
Sales of steel products - - 173 1147
Others 49 87 48 133
8,570 6,617 15,267 11,015
Value Added Taxes {333) [232) (589) {441)
Net operating revenues 8,237 6,385 14,678 10,574
Cost of products and services . _
Ores and metals {3,698) (2,847  [4.,483] {3,024]
Railroad, port and shipping services . (402} 396 (926) (946)
Aluminum products - - (966) [563]
Steel products e - (1,229) [931)
Others (33) (57) (42] (120)
(4,133) (3,300 (7,648) [5,584]
Gross profit 4104 3,085 7,032 4990
Gross margin L o 49.8% 48.3% 47.9% 47.2%
Operating expenses - o o
Selling 9.24 {184 (118]) (228 (149)
Administrative - (374) (339) (681) o le22)
Research and development (147) (1013 (148 (101
Other operating expenses 9.24 (382] [520) (844) (891)
{1,089) {1,078) 11,901) {1,783
Operating profit before financial result and
result of equity investments 3,015 2,007 5,131 3,207
Result of equity investments 9.10 .
Gain on investments accounted for by the
equity method B 2,346 708 42 102
Amortization of goodwill o (472) [437) [523) [437)
Provision for losses - (424) [245) - -
QOthers 3 11 8 36
1,453 37 {473) {299)
Financial result, net 9.21
Financial expenses, net (756) 1522] (1,050) (783]
Monetary and exchange rate variation, net (2,470] {599] (2,431) (1,144)
{3,226) (1.121) {3,481 (1,927)
Operating profit 1,242 923 1177 981
Discontinued operations 111 1,771 111 1,771
Income before income tax and sociatl contribution 1,353 2,694 1,288 2,752
Income tax and social contribution 9.9 690 357 634 259
Income before minarity interests 2,043 3.051 922 3.011
Minority interests - - 121 40
Net income for the year 2,043 3,051 2,043 3,051
Number of shares outstanding at the end of
the year [in thousands) 383,839 383,839
Net earnings per share outstanding at the
end of the year (R$) 5.32 7.95
The additional information, notes and attachments | and Il are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(A free translation of the original in Portuguese relating to the financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of Brazilian Corporate Law]

& STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Years ended December 31 / In millions of reais

Capitel reserves

Result of Price-levet Other
Paid-up share restatement capital
Motes capital exchange Law 8,230/91 reserves
On December 31, 2000 3,000 - 440 301
Treasury shares 9.19 - - - -
Capitalization of reserves 1,000 - - {301]
Provision for pension plan liabilities - - - -
Result on exchange of shares - - - -
Realization of reserves involving Samitri - 4 -
Net income for the year - - - -
Proposed appraopriations:
Interest on stockholders’ equity - - - -
Appropriation to revenue reserves - - - -
On December 31, 2001 4,000 4 440 -
Capitalization of reserves 9.17 1,000 4y (440) -

Realization of revenue reserves - -

Actuarial deficit - pension fund - associated companies - -

Net income for the period - ] -

Proposed appropriations:

Interest on stockholders’ equity 9.20 - -

Appropriation to revenue reserves - -

On December 31, 2002 5,060 -

The additional information, notes and attachments | and |l are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Unreatlized Fiscal Treasury Retained

Expansion Depletion income Legal incentives stock earnings votal
3,022 1,506 1,710 600 60 (74) - 10,565

- - - - - (57) - (57)

. [639] - - - {60) - - -
- - (438) - - - 438 -

- - - o {22) {22)

- - - - - - - 4

- - - - - - ~ 3,061 3,051
- - - - - - (1,774 11,774)

1,486 - - 153 54 - (1.693) -
3,869 1,5d6 1,272 753 54 (131) - 11,767

- lse2) - . (54) - - -

- 1528) - - - 526 -

- - - - - - (30} {30)

- - - - - - 2,043 2,043

- - - - - - 1.029) {(1,029)

1,408 - - 102 - - (1,510} -
5,277 1,004 746 855 - (1311 - 12,751
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(A free translation of the original in Portuguese relating to the financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of Brazilian Corporate Law/

5 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION

Years ended December 31 / In millions of reais

Parent Cemany

Ccnselidated

2702 2001 2022 2027
Funds were provided by: o
Net income for the year 2,043 3,051 2,043 3,051
Expenses [income] not affecting working capital:
Result of equity investments [1.453) (37) 473 299
Depreciation, amortization and depletion 552 503 1.009 827
Deferred income tax and social contribution 1496) [16) {706} [24)
Provision for contingencies 96 164 251 244
Discontinued operations (111) (1,771) f1i) (1,771)
Net monetary and exchange rate variations
on long-term assets and liabilities 2,858 600 3,533 1114
Provision for losses - ICMS credits - 142 - 142
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 136 39 23 1,139
Sale of investments - 802 - 2,274
Amortization of goodwill in the cost of
products sold 98 38 101 38
Unrealized derivative losses, net 194 96 167 80
Others 32 (52) 42 45
Total funds from operations 3,949 3,559 6,825 7,458
Loans to related parties, transferred to
current assets 292 642 854 82
Loans and financing obtained 594 547 2,418 1.121
Loans from related parties 162 533 22 -
Dividends/interest on stockholders’
equity received 199 291 17 98
Others 255 293 375 115
Total funds provided 5,451 5,865 10,511 8,874
Funds were used for: _ )
Long-term debt transferred to current ligbilities 1,742 810 2,989 1,242
Related parties 505 571 70 169
Additions to property, plant and equipment 1,818 1,345 3.236 2,021
Capital subscription in subsidiary and
affiliated companies 405 1,538 371 2,239
Interest on stockholders equity 1,029 1,774 1,029 1,774
Guarantees and deposits 191 207 292 218
Treasury stock - 57 - 57
Others - 18 339 232
Total funds used 5,690 6,320 8,326 7,952
increase [decrease) in working capital {239} {455) 2,185 922
Changes in working capital are as follows:
Current assets: o
At the end of the year 4,346 3,990 10,878 7,206
At the beginning of the year 3,990 4,205 7,206 6,111
356 {215} 3,672 1,095
Current liabilities:
At the end of the year 4,218 3,623 6,793 5,306
At the beginning of the year 3,623 3,383 5,306 5,133
595 240 1,487 173
Increase [decrease) in working capital (239} {455} 2,185 922

The additional information, notes and attachments [ and Il are an integral part of these financial statements.




| p—

N

CVRD Annual Repor

[A free translation of the original in Portuguese]

6 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (ADDITIONAL INFORMATION])

Years ended December 31/ In millions of reais

Parent Compeny Consolidated
2002 2001 2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities: _
Net income for the year 2,043 3,051 2,043 3,051
Adjustments to reconcile net income for the year
with cash provided by operating activities:

Result of equity investments (1,453] (37) 473 299
Depreciation, amortization and depletion 552 503 1,009 827
Deferred income tax and social contribution (695) __357) (815 {356)
Provision for contingencies 96 164 251 244
Discontinued operations (111) (1,771) (111 (1,771)
Financial expenses and monetary and exchange
rate variations on assets and liabilities, net 3.324 838 4,727 1,544
Provision for losses - ICMS credits - 142 - 142
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 136 19 23 30
Amortization of goodwill in the cost of products sold 98 38 101 38
Net losses on derivatives 194 96 167 80
Dividends/interest on stockholders’ equity received 154 283 17 98
Others 50 88 538 363
4,388 3,057 8,423 4,589
Decrease [increase) in assets: o
Accounts receivable [572) 533 (1.104] (137)
Inventories 31 (154) 1487) (100)
Others [5) {60) 1230) {82)
(546) 319 (1,821) (319)
Increase in liabilities:
Suppliers and contractors 161 33 504 {20]
Payrotl and related charges and others 50 o 26 72 82
Qthers 191 31 356 (2)
402 90 932 60
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,244 3,466 7,534 4,330
Cash flows from investing activities: L o
Loans and advances receivable o l1s2) (1,185) 229 (215}
Guarantees and deposits [191) (207} [292) (218)
Additions to investments (14} (1,471) {8} (19
Additions to property, plant and equipment {1.523] {1,304) [2,941] {1,980)
Deferred charges - - (224] [124]
Net cash used to acquire or capitalize subsidiaries - - (316) [1,839)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and investments 5 1,039 5 2,281
Net cash used in investing activities (1,885) (3,128) (3,547) (2,114)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Short-term debt o vesy 373 {1,582] 117
Long-term debt 756 1,080 2,421 1121
Repayments:
Related parties [51) - - -
Financial institutions [411) (389} (1,558] (1.331)
Interest on stockholders equity paid {1,807) (2,269) {1.807) (2,269}
Treasury shares - (57) - (57
Net cash used in financing activities {2,745]) {1,262) (2,526) (2,419)
Increase [decrease] in cash and cash equivalents (386) (924) 1,461 (203)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year, consolidated in 2002/2001 - - 2 369
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 645 1,569 2,808 2,642
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 259 645 4,271 2,808
Cash paid during the year for: o o
Short-term interest (53) (78) 1469 [106)
Long-term interest net of capitalization (270) {281) 376 (549)
Income tax and social contribution paid {4) (82) (120) [146)
Non-cash transactions: B
Conversion of loans into investments D 63 401 63
Additions to property, plant and equipment: _ o o
With incorporation of Valepontocom 26 - 28 -
With capitalization of interest 268 B 41 28  4r

Obligation to Valia settled by transfer of CSN shares ] , - T o1 - 521
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(A free translation of the original in Portuguese]

7 STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED (ADDITIONAL INFORMATION]

Years ended December 31 / In millions of reais

2302 % 2027 %
Generation of Value Added o
Sales revenue 8,570 100 6,617 100
Less: Acquisition of products (1,039} (12) (823) (12}
Outsourced services [854]) {10) {785) (12)
Materials (647) (7) (410) (6)
Fuel oil and gas (393) (5) {328) (5)
Research and development, commercial
and administrative costs (372) (4] (251) (4]
Other operating expenses (293] (3) (641) (1]
Gross Value Added 4,978 59 3,379 51
Depreciation and depletion (650) (8} (541] 8l
Net Yalue Added 4,328 51 2,838 43
Received from third parties e
Financial revenue 597 7 508 8
Result of equity investments 1,453 i7 37 T
Discontinued operations 111 1 1,771 27
Pension plan actuarial deficit {*) - - (22) -
Total Value Added 6,489 76 5,132 77
Distribution of Value Added D :
Employees 699 11 555 mo
Government 101 2 188 4
Third-party capital 3,646 56 1360 26
Stockholders’ remuneration 1,029 16 1,774 35
Retained earnings 1,014 15 1,255 24 _
6,489 100

{*] Recorded as prior year adjustment directly to stockholders’ equity

5,132 100




Consolidated

2302 % 2001 %
15,267 100 11,015 100
(1.401) (9 (429) (4]
(1,832 (12) (1,544] (14)
(1,216 (8) (735) (7)
(850) (6] (612) (6)
(849) () 681) (6}
(496) (3] (1,322) (12)
8,623 56 5,692 51
(1.110] (7) (865) (8)
7,513 49 4,827 43
3,967 26 573 5
(473) (3) (299) (3]
11 1 1,771 16

- - {22 -
11,118 73 6,850 61
1,153 1 981 14
554 5 572 9
7.348 66 2,248 33
1,029 9 1,774 26
1,014 9 1,255 18
11,118 100 6,850 100

CVRD Annual Repe

Parent
Company Consolidated
R$ 11,118
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N
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R$ 6,489 $
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8 LABOR AND SOCIAL INDICATORS {ADDITIONAL iNFORMATION]

Years ended December 31/ In millions of reais

Parent Cempany

Basis for computation 2002 200t
Gross revenues 8,570 6,617
Operating profit 3,015 - 2,007
Gross payroll 457 375

2352 23T
% of % of
Cress Jr=zrating Bross Ooerating

Laber indicators Amoynt zayroll profit Amount zayrel predit
Food 18 4 1 17 4 T
Compulsory social charges 174 38 b 147 39 5
Private pension plan (al 55 12 2 45 12 2
Health 28 b i 24 6 1
Education 22 5 o 21 6 T
Profit sharing 84 18 3 72 19 b
Other benefits 48 " 2 44 12 2

Total - Laber indicators 429 4 16 370 98 16

2002 2008
% of % of
CSpereting Gross 2 Sress

Social indicators Ameount profit revenues Arount zrofit revenuss

Taxes (b) 633 21 7 305 15 5

Social investments 38 1 - 27 1 -

Social projects and actions 27 1 - 20 - o -
Indigenous communities 11 - - 7 - -
Environmental expenditures 78 2 1 60 3 1
Operational 66 2 i 56 3 [
On outside programs and/or projects 12 - - 4 - -

Total - Social indicators 749 24 8 392 19 6

Headcount 2002 2385
No. of employees at end of year 14,289 ] N ”1_3_,__6§ﬂ4_
No. of new hires during year 1,518 2,558

(a) In 2007, the contributions to the private pension plan did not include the transfer of shares from CSN to Vatlia in the amount of R$ 521
(Note 9.10 {j}]; also not included is the provision for the early-retirement programs of R$ 78 in 2001 and R$ 63 in 2002.

[b) Excluding social charges and the income tax and social contribution to the limit of the amount of tax credits.
{c) Includes companies not consotidated in 2001 (Caemi, KSG and MSE], which added 4,319 employees in 2002,

Amounts relate to the percentage of participation of Parent Company's shareholdings.



Consclidated {unaudited)

2002 2001

15,267 11,015

5,131 3,207

740 626

2062 2001

% of % of

Gross Operating Gross Gross

Amnount payroll orofit Amount payroll arefit
37 5 1 31 5 1
277 37 ) 221 35 7
66 9 1 51 8 2

44 b 1 38 6 1

34 5 1 32 5 1
117 16 2 112 18 3
74 10 1 65 11 2
649 88 12 550 88 17
2002 2001

% of % of

Operating Gross Operating ross

Amount profit revenues Amount profit revenues
1,159 23 8 718 22 7
. 52 1 - 34 1 -
41 1 - 27 1 -
a1 : : 7 : :
109 2 1 85 2 1
97 2 1 80 2 1

12 - - 5 - -
1,320 26 9 837 25 8
2602 2001

[c) 29,349 22,370

5,089 3,122

O
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9 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

Expressed in millions of reais

9.1 Operations

Companhia Vale do Rio Doce is a publicly traded corporation whose predominant activities are mining, processing and sale of iron ore,
pellets, gold and potash, as well as port and railroad transportation services and power generation. In addition, through its direct and
indirect subsidiaries and jointly controlled companies, CYRD operates in manganese and ferroalloys, steel, aluminum and kaolin and in
logistics and geological studies and technological research.

9.2 Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared according to the accounting principles provided for in Brazilian corporate legislation as well
as the rules and guidelines issued by the Comissdo de Valores Mobilidrios - CVM {Brazilian Securities Commission] and Ibracon -
Instituto dos Auditores Independentes do Brasil (Brazilian independent Auditors Institute].

In order to provide better information to the market, the Company is presenting the following additional infarmation regarding the Parent
Company and Consolidated: Statements of Cash Flow, Value Added and the Labor and Social Indicators. The Statement of Value Added
presents economic infarmation on the wealth created by the Company (aggregate values) and the distribution of this wealth in accordance
with its production factors. The presentation of this statement is encouraged by the CVM to inform society of the application of the
Company’s resources in projects with important social effects. The Labor and Social Indicators, developed from a model suggested by the
CVM, present‘information about the Company's application of resources in social programs.

Certain amounts and classifications in the 2001 financial statements have been adjusted to the criteria used at 12/31/02 for better comparability.

9.3 Principles of Consolidation

(a) The consolidated financia. statements show the balances of assets and liabilities on December 31, 2002 and 20071 and the operations
of the Parent Company, its direct and indirect subsidiaries and its jointly controlled companies;

[b] All significant intercompany balances and the Parent Company's investments in its direct and indirect subsidiaries and jointly
controlled companies were eliminated in the consolidation. Minority interests are shown separately on the balance sheet and
statement of income;

{c) In the case of investments in companies in which the control is shared with other stockholders, the components of assets and
liabilities and revenues and expenses are included in the consolidated financial statements in proportion to the participation of the
Parent Company in the capital of each company in which investments were made;
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{d) Starting in 2002, Salobo and Alunorte, became subsidiary companies. In 2001, they were consolidated in proportion to CVRD's
shareholding participations, which were 50% and 45,58%, respectively, and as a result, we reclassified the balance sheet of 2001. Below
is the balance sheet for 2001 with the same bases as 2002. Salobo is in the pre-operating phase.

Year ended
December 31,

2001
Pro forma Balance Sheet
Assets
Current assets 7.409
Long-term receivables 2,376
Permanent assets
Investments 3,113
Property, plant and equipment 13,514
Deferred charges 605
17,232
27,017
Liabilities and stockholders equity
Current liabilities 5,277
Long-term liabilities 9,475
Deferred income 158
Minority interests 254
Stockholders’ equity 11,853
27,017
Pro forma Statement of Income
Operating revenues 11,439
Value added taxes {450)
Cost of products and services ‘ (5,764)
Gross margin _ 5,225
Result of equity tnvestments 102
Operating income (expenses) {2,600]
Income before income tax and social contribution 2,727
income tax and social contribution 257
Minority interests 62
Net income for the year 3,046

(e} The principal figures of the companies included in the consolidation are presented in Attachment |.
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9.4 Significant Accounting Policies

[a) The Company adopts the accrual basis of accounting:
[b] Assets and liabilities that are realizable or due more than twelve months after the financial statements date are classified as long-term;

{c] Marketable securities, classified as cash and cash equivalents, are stated at cost plus accrued income earned to the financial
statements date;

{d] Inventories are stated at average purchase or production cost, and imports in transit at the cost of each item, not exceeding market
or realizable value;

(e] Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates in effect at the financial statements date, and those in
tocal currency, when applicable, are restated based on contractual indices;

[f} Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled companies and affiliated companies are accounted for by the equity method, based on
the stockholders' equity of the investees, and when applicable increased/decreased by goodwill and negative goodwill to be amortized
and provision for losses. Other investments are recorded at cost, less provision for unrealized losses when applicable;

(g) Property, plant and equipment, including interest incurred during the construction period of large-scale projects, are recorded at
historic cost {increased by monetary restatement up to 1995) and depreciated by the straight-tine method, at rates that take into
consideration the useful lives of the assets. Depletion of mineral reserves is based on the ratio between production and estimated capacity.

[h) Pre-operating costs except for financial charges related to large-scale projects are deferred and amortized over a period of 10 years.
The deferred charges (consolidated] refer basically to the Sossego and Salobo copper projects;

(i} The financial statements of the Parent Company reflect the Board of Directors’ proposal for appropriation of the net income for the year,
for the approvat of the Annual General Meeting.

9.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Parent Comzany Consolidaied

2002 2201 2202 2001

Marketable securities related to CDI (%) 157 292 324 292
Marketable securities: Time / overnight deposits - - 2,908 1,536
Fixed-yield bond investments {funds) 24 163 518 563
Government securities [NBC-E, NTN-D, LFTI} 74 189 88 200
Others 4 1 433 217
259 645 4,271 2,808

[*] For part of these investments the Company contracted swap operations with financial institutions
related to interest rate and/or currency variations.

9.6 Accounts Receivable from Customers

Parent Company Consolidated

2002 2001 2002 2001

Domestic 523 360 571 349
Export 978 600 2,252 1,220
1,501 9260 2,823 1,569

Allowance for doubtful accounts {42) {22) {100} (53]
Allowance for ore weight credits (23} (18] (102} (19)
1,436 920 2,621 1,497
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9.7 Transactions with Related Parties

Derived from sales and purchases of products and services or from loans under normal market conditions, with maturities up to the year
2010, as follows:

Assets Liabilities
2002 2001 2002 2001
Subsidiaries
ALUNORTE - Alumina do Norte do Brasil S.A. 1,055 741 53 176
Brasitux 5. A. 15 56 30 15
Caulim do Brasil Investimentos S.A, 136 - - -
CELMAR S.A. - IndUstria de Celulose e Papel 169 - 4 6
CVRD Overseas Ltd. 163 76 1,375 838
Docepar S.A. 144 66 - -
tabira Rio Doce Company Limited - ITACO 667 398 559 235
Mineragdo Andiré Ltda. [participates in Mineracdo Serra do Sossego S.A.) 312 - - -
Mineracdo Tacuma Ltda. (participates in Ferrovia Centro-Atléntica S.A)] 124 215 - 1
Rio Doce International Finance Ltd. 326 675 1,855 1,153
Saltobo Metais S A. 209 164 - -
SIBRA - Eletrosiderirgica Brasileira S.A. 80 58 7 37
Vale do Rio Doce Aluminio S.A. - 32 58 123
Others 161 121 270 179
3,561 2,602 4,211 2,763
Jointly controlled companies
Companhia Coreano-Brasileira de Pelotizacdo - KOBRASCO 139 80 23 58
Companhia Hispano-Brasileira de Pelotizacdo - HISPANOBRAS b4 48 89 65
Companhia Nipo-Brasileira de Pelotizagdo - NIBRASCO 91 46 61 [
Companhia italo-Brasileira de Pelotizacdo - ITABRASCO 65 41 50 40
Samarco Mineragdo S A, 47 12 - -
Others 236 274 169 56
642 501 392 230
Affiliates 38 37 - -
4,241 3,140 4,603 2,993
Represented by:
Trade balances [sales and purchases of products and services] [*) 1.184 773 355 224
Short-term financial balances 986 1.0 948 716
Long-term financial balances 2,071 1,356 3,300 2,063

4,241 3,140 4,603 2,993

{*] Included in "Accounts receivable from customers™ and "Payable to suppliers and contractors”.
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The principal results arising from commercial and financial transactions carried out by the Parent Company with related parties,
classified in the statement of income as revenue and costs from sales and services and financial income and expenses, are as follows:

Parent Company

Income Expense / cost
2032 2001 2002 2991t
ALUNORTE - Alumina do Norte do Brasil S.A. 426 180 18 20
Brasilux S.A. 13 54 168 111
Companhia Coreano-Brasileira de Pelotizagdo - KOBRASCOD 237 184 104 154
Companhia Hispano-Brasiteira de Pelotizagdo - HISPANOBRAS 222 181 225 182
Companhia [talo-Brasileira de Pelotizacdo - ITABRASCO 215 166 116 82
Companhia Nipo-Brasileira de Pelotizacdo - NIBRASCO 422 333 437 325
Companhia Sidertrgica de Tubarao 500 348 - -
CVRD Overseas Ltd, 1,193 804 552 190
Ferteco Mineragdo S.A. 135 105 195 2
{tabira Rio Doce Company Limited ~ ITACO 3,693 2,223 221 24
Rio Doce international Finance Ltd. 347 72 488 71
Usinas Siderlrgicas de Minas Gerais 5.A. - USIMINAS 221 133 - -
Others 839 367 199 213
8,463 5,150 2,723 1,376

9.8 Inventeries
Parent Company Consolidaied
2002 2001 2002 2001

Finished products

fron ore and pellets 158 167 436 361
Manganese and ferroalloys - - 184 127
Aluminum - - 108 69
Steel products - o 359 173
Others 10 32 94 5%
168 199 1,181 789
Spare parts and maintenance supplies 251 249 688 537
419 448 1,869 1,326




9.9 Deferred income Tax and Social Contribution

Income of the Company is subject to the normal tax system. The balances of deferred assets and liabilities are presented as follows:

Deferred assets

Deferred liabilities

4.
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2002 2001 2002 2001
Tax loss carryforward (a) 397 225 - -
Temporary differences:
Pension Plan 208 168 - -
Contingent liabilities 338 243 - -
Provision for losses on assets 486 192 T -
Provision for losses on derivative financial instruments 92 26 o -
Others 82 56 - -
1,206 485 - -
Inflationary profit - - 5 3
Capital reserve - special monetary restatement - Law 8,200 - - 2 19
Accelerated depreciation - - 10 1
Long-term sales - - 68 44
Total 1,603 910 85 87
Consolidated companies [b} 565 387 165 210
Total Consolidated 2,168 1,297 250 297
Parent Company short-term 812 513 - -
long-term 791 297 85 87
1,603 910 85 87
Consolidated short-term 812 628 - -
long-term 1,356 669 250 297
2,168 1,297 250 297

(a) Fiscal credits related to tax losses and negative tax bases for social contribution, which should be realized in 2003.

(b] Comprised basically of tax losses in the aluminum area and temporary differences.

The deferred assets and liabilities regarding income tax and social contribution arising from tax losses, negative social contribution

bases and temporary differences are recognized from an accounting standpoint considering an analysis of likely future results, based on

ecenomic and financial projections prepared in tight of internal assumptions and macroeconomic, commercial and fiscal scenarios.

These projections can change in the future. The temporary differences will be realized upon the occurrence of the corresponding taxable

events, and have the following expectations:

Met amount of crediis

Years Parent Company Consolidated
2003 812 812
2004 139 244
2005 115 149
2006 17 152
2007 116 190
2008 39 85
2009 39 78
2010 to 2012 141 206

1,518 1,918
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In addition to the credits recorded, the Company has a lawsuit pending claiming an additional 51.83% monetary restatement for tax
purposes applied to the months of January and February 1989 ("Plano Verdo” monetary plan]. A favorable ruling has already been
obtained for compensation of credits corresponding to 42.72% instead of the 51.83% requested. The amount of these credits covered by

the ruling totals approximately R$ 405 and the accounting effects have not yet been recognized in the financial statements.

Since the income tax and social contribution are based not only on the net income before tax but also on the Company’s structure, its
non-taxable income, non-deductible expenses, fiscal incentives and other factors, there is no direct relation between the net income of
the Company and the income tax and social contribution. Therefore, the projection for the use of tax credits should not be taken as an

indication of CYRD's future net income.

The amounts reported as inceme tax and social contribution which affected income for the year are as follows:

2022 2801
fncome before income tax and social contribution 1,353 2,694
(-] Equity in results of subsidiaries and affiliated companies (2,346) (708]
[-] Result from discontinued operations I [111) [1,540)
{+] Non-deductible goodwill and provisions for losses 251 245
{B53) 691
Income tax and social contribution at combined tax rates 34% 34%
Federal income tax and social cantribution at statutory rates 290 (235)
Adjustments to net income which modify the effect on the result for the year:
Income tax benefit from interest on stockholders’ equity 350 403
Fiscal incentives - 54
Others 50 {65)
Income tax and social contribution 690 357
Income tax and social contribution - consolidated companies 156) {98}

Total consolidated 634 259
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Adjusted
Adjusted nef income Equity Result of equity
Participation stockholders’ [loss) for investmenis investmenis
% eguity the year 2002 2001 2002 2001
Subsidiaries
CELMAR S.A, - Industria de Celulose e Papel 100.00 - - - - - [56)
Florestas Rio Doce S.A. [c} 99.85 177 4 177 91 4 10
Ferteco Mineragdo S.A. (d, n) 100.00 619 94 1,208 1,214 121 {60)
Itabira Internacional Servicos e Comércio Lda. (a, h) 99.99 1,144 430 1,144 759 430 242
Mineracdo SOCOIMEX S.A. [c, d) 100.00 - - 44 60 - -
Navegacéo Vale do Rio Doce S.A. - DOCENAVE (¢] 100.00 454 104 454 351 104 {44]
Rio Doce Europa - S.a.r.l. (a, h) 99.80 3,460 1,278 3,453 2,218 1,275 202
S.A. Mineracao da Trindade - SAMITRI (d) 100.00 - - 711 792 - 1
SIBRA - Eletrosidertrgica Brasileira S.A. [c, d, n) 99.27 293 82 517 509 84 71
TVV - Terminal de Vila Vetha S.A. (¢l 99.89 55 3 55 54 3 6
Urucum Mineracdo S.A. [c] 100.00 69 28 69 44 28 7
Vale do Rio Doce Aluminio S.A. (c, f, i, n) 9474 916 90 868 783 85 138
Others (k| - - - 238 160 22 6
8,938 7,035 2,156 523
Jointly controlled companies
Companhia Coreano-Brasileira de Pelotizacdo
- KOBRASCO [b, ¢, n} 50.00 (107) [121) - 7 (7) {19)
Companhia Hispano-Brasileira de Pelotizac&o
- HISPANOBRAS (b, ¢, n) 50.89 86 25 YA 41 13 13
Companhia ltalo-Brasiieira de Pelotizacao
- ITABRASCO [b, ¢, n) 50.90 56 27 28 30 14 14
Companhia Nipo-Brasileira de Pelotizag3o
- NIBRASCO (b, ¢, n] 51.00 84 19 43 42 10 17)
Companhia Siderdrgica de Tubar3o (b, d, e] 22.85 2,913 203 517 504 46 14
Companhia Siderdrgica Nacional {j! - - - - - - 108
Minas da Serra Geral S.A. - MSG {b,c] 51.00 55 10 28 26 5 6
Samarco Mineracado S.A. (b, nl 50.00 494 200 247 226 100 59
Others (b] - - - 46 96 1 3
953 972 182 191
Affiliated companies
Fertilizantes Fosfatados S.A. - FOSFERTIL [c, e} 11.12 660 235 73 56 26 14
Usinas Siderirgicas de Minas Gerais S.A. - USIMINAS [d, e] 11.44 3,191 [113) 366 415 (13 1
Others - - - - 4 {5) (21)
439 475 8 (6)
Investments at cost 7 4 - -
10,337 8,486 2,346 708
Provision for losses
CELMAR S A. - Industria de Celulose e Papel [c] {145) {59] 120) 159)
Companhia Coreano-Brasileira de Pelotizacdo
- KOBRASCO [b, ¢, n] [54) - [54] -
Companhia Ferroviaria do Nordeste - CFN (b, c] (38] [33) (10} [33]
Docepar S.A. {c) (115] (37) (78] 20
Ferrovia Centro-Atlantica S.A. [c, g) - - (137 [97)
MRS Logistica S.A. [n, ] - - (32 -
Pard Pigmentos S.A. (62 - (62) (58]
Sepetiba Tecon S.A. [c] - - (16) -
Others (3] (10) {15] {18)
(417) {139) {424) (245)
Amortization of goodwill (d] - - 1472) 1437)
Others - - 3 11
Total 9,920 8,347 1,453 37
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(a) Equity in companies located abroad is converted into local currency at rates in effect on the financial statements date. The calculation
of the equity method adjustment comprises the difference due to exchange rate variations as well as participation in results;

(b} Notwithstanding the size of stockholdings, the classification as a jointly controlled company considers the degree of control exercised
by the Company, which is shared with other partners;

{c} Companies whose financial statements were audited by independent accountants other than PricewaterhouseCoopers.

{d) Goodwill and negative goodwill are presented along with the respective investments:

2002 2004
Goodwitl
SIBRA - Eletrosiderdrgica Brasileira S.A. linclui R$ 26 de agio na CPFL] 251 332
Caemi Mineracao & Metalurgia S.A. lindiretamente através da ltaco) 465 517
Ferteco Minera¢do S.A. 877 1,028
S.A. Mineracdo da Trindade - SAMITRI (incorporada em 01/10/01} 711 792
Mineracdo SOCOIMEX S.A. [incorporada em 31/08/00) 46 60
ALUNORTE - Alumina do Norte do Brasil S.A. 50 -
Salobo Metais S.A. [k} 89 -
Others 95 94

2,582 2,825
Megative goodwill
Companhia Siderdrgica de Tubardo [149) (149)
Goodwill was amortized as follows:

2002 2081
Ferrovia Centro-Atlantica 5.A. [c, g (209] {147)
Ferteco Mineracdo S.A. [d, n) (104} -
Gulf Industrial Investment Co. - GIIC (c, h} - {60)
Pard Pigmentos S.A. - (83]
SIBRA - Eletrosidertrgica Brasileira S.A. [inclui R$ 3 da CPFL] [c] (81) 81
MRS Logistica S.A. [l (17) -
Caemi Minerag3o e Metalurgia S.A. (indiretamente através da ltaco) [52) -
Others {a, h) (9) (46)

[472) [437)




(e] Investments in companies that were listed on stock exchanges in 2002:

Book Value Market Yalue

Companhia Siderlrgica de Tubardo . 517 458
Fertilizantes Fosfatados S.A. - FOSFERTIL 73 17
Usinas Siderurgicas de Minas Gerais S.A. - USIMINAS 366 164
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The market value of these investments does not necessarily reflect the value that could be realized from selling a representative group

of shares. The other investments refer to untisted companies:

(f] Indirect holdings through Aluvale:

Adjusted Equity Result of

Participation stockholders’ investments equity investmenis

% equity 2002 2001 2002 2001

ALBRAS - Aluminio Brasileiro S.A. (¢, n) 51.00 257 128 114 14 17
ALUNORTE - Alumina do Norte do Brasil S.A. [c, d, n) 57.03 445 303 240 (89) (23)
Mineracdo Rio do Norte S.A. (¢, n} 40.00 672 269 242 97 98
Vatesul Aluminio S.A. [c, n} 54.51 261 142 123 43 23
Mineracao Vera Cruz S.A. [c] 100.00 10 10 - - -
Own operations (c! - - 16 b4 20 23
868 783 85 138

On June 27, 2002 Aluvale acquired the entire interest detained by its affiliated company Minera¢do Rio do Norte S.A. in
ALUNORTE - Alumina do Norte do Brasil S.A., equivalent to 12.62% of the total capital, for R$ 119;
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{g] The investment of CVRD in Ferrovia Centro-Atlantica S.A. is held through its subsidiary Mineragcdo Tacuma S.A.;

[h) Indirect holdings through ltabira Internacional Servicos e Comércio Lda. and Rio Doce Europa - S.a.r.L.:

Fesult of
Partizization :
% 2332 2222

Caemi Mineracdo e Metalurgia S.A. (d) 168 574 562 670 (32] -
California Steel Industries, Inc. [a, c) N 50,00 792 396 256 296 55
CVRD Overseas Ltd. [a] 100,00 409 409 173 145 102
Camelback Corporation (c] 700,00 116 116 ot - -
Gulf Industrial tnvestment Co. - GIIC (a, ¢, n) 50,00 258 129 38 18 15
Rio Doce Manganése Europe (g, n) 100,00 175 175 . B2 93 20
Vale do Rio Doce Aluminio S.A. [c, i, nl 5,26 216 o .ZIB_ Mi 5 8
Other participations |a, ¢} o {9) 65 35) 19
Itabira Rio Doce Company Limited - ITACO/

ltabira Internacional {a) ey 1.735 203 53
Rio Doce Europa - 5.3.r.l. {a] 3.453 (252) 1.012 172

4.59L 2.977 1.705 bLbd

Provision for losses - Sepetiba Tecon S.A. - R A 1) -
Provisian for losses - MRS

lindirectly through Caemi) ) o - - (10! -
Amortization of goodwill - MRS

lindirectly through Caemi) e - - {7) -
Amortization of goodwill - Caemi

Mineracdo e Metalurgia S.A. e - - [52) -
Amortization of goodwill - Gulf Industrial

Investment Co. - GIIC - - - (601

4.597 2.977 1.620 384

In July 2002, tabira Rio Doce Company Limited - ITACO was sold to Itabira Internacional Servicos e Comércio Lda.;

(i) The consolidated shareholding in Vale do Rio Doce Aluminio S.A. is 100%. The subsidiary ltabira Rio Doce Company Limited - ITACO
owns 5.26% of the capital;

(j) In March 2001, CVRD withdrew from CSN by unwinding the cross-holding relationship between the companies;

[k} On June 19, 2002 CVRD acquired from Anglo American Brasil Ltda., a subsidiary of Anglo American Plc, 44,172,369 common shares,
corresponding to 50% of the total capital of Salobo Metais S.A., for R$ 134, This transaction was carried out through the
intermediation of Caulim do Brasil Investimentos S.A., a wholly owned CVRD subsidiary. With this acquisition, CVRD became sole
owner of Salobo;

(] CVRD s interest in MRS Logistica S.A. is held through Ferteco Mineracdo S.A., Belém Administracdo e Participacdo Ltda. and Caemi
Mineracao e Metalurgia S.A;;

(m) The total of R$ 2,938 [R$ 3,113 in 2001) of investments on the cansolidated balance sheet is represented mainly by investments in
affiliated companies and goodwill in subsidiary and jointly controlled companies, presented in item [d};

{n] Attachment Il presents additional information about the companies in the areas of iron ore and pellets, aluminum, manganese and ferroalloys.



9.11 Property, Plant and Equipment

la) By business area:
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Parent Company Consolidated
2002 2001 2002 2001
Accumuiated Accumulated
Cost cdepreciation Net Net Cost depreciation Met Met
Ferrous — Northern System o o .
Mining 1.682 784} 928 800 1.682 _ (754) 928 800
Railroads 2.737 [1.078) 1.659 1.676 2.737 [1.078) 1.65¢9 1.676
Ports 534 244} 290 273 B34 (244) 290 273
Construction in progress 546 - 546 385 546 - 546 385
5.4%99 [2.076) 3.423 3.134 5.499 {2.076) 3.423 3.134
Ferrous - Southern System o o o -
Mining 2.487 [1.446) 1.041 1.013 3.19%4 [1.865) 1.329 1.492
Railroads 3.117 (1.824)  1.293 1.190 3.152 (1.827) 1.325 1.190
Ports 585 1433) 152 130 766 {451) 315 290
Construction in progress 394 - 394 386 394 - 394 427
6.583 (3.703) 2.880 2.719 7.506 [6.143) 3.363 3.399
Pelletizing .
Southern System 620 [446) 174 169 1.965 [1.227) 738 601
Northern System 521 {5) 516 - 521 {5) 516 -
Construction in progress 185 - 185 388 305 - 305 412
1.326 {451) 875 557 2.791 {1.232) 1.559 1.013
Non-ferrous
Potash 130 (46) 84 75 130 (48] 84 75
Gold 433 [389) 44 197 433 (389} 44 197
Research and projects 212 [1786) 36 20 o2 o179} B2 139
Kaolin - - - - 263 t6o] 203 183
Construction in progress 75 - 75 58 527 - 527 84
850 [611) 239 350 1.584 [674] 910 680
Logistics 953 [539] 414 386 1.460 [689) 771 909
Construction in progress 84 - 84 51 94 - 94 86
1.037 {539] 498 437 1.554 [689) 865 995
Holdings
Steel - - - - 2.443 [963) 1.480 1.115
Aluminum - - - - 2.964 {1.348) 1.616 1.115
Manganese and ferroalloys - - - - 780 (425) 355 312
Others - - - - 48 2] 3% 32
Construction in progress - - - - 1.256 - 1.256 600
- - - - 7.491 [2.748) 4,743 3174
Energy 205 {20) 185 175 218 [22) 196 187
Construction in progress 477 - 477 149 477 - 477 149
682 [20) 662 324 695 {22) 673 336
Corporate 129 [47) 82 47 130 (48] 82 47
Construction in progress 48 - 48 13 48 - 48 13
177 [47) 130 60 178 [48) 130 60
Total 16.156 (7.447) 8.707 7.581 27.298 (11.632) 15.666 12.791
[b) By classification of asset:
Parent Company Consolidated
2002 201 2082 2001
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost depreciation Net Net Cost depreciation Met Net
Buildings 1.547 [687) 860 88 295 (1.2¢5) 1.689  1.687
Installations 4,764 (2.641) 2123 1.569 8.997  [4.555) 4.442 3.343
Equipment 945 (565) 380 359 3.390 [1.815) 1.575 1.172
Railroads 5297 [2.774) 2517 2445 8422 (2.825) 2597 2.806
Mineral rights 434 177 o257 268 587 (221] 366  4B6
Others 1.364 [603) 761 652 2.301 [951) 1.350 1.372
14.345 (7.447) 6.898 6.151 23.651 {11.632) 12.019 10.636
Construction in progress 1.809 - 1.809 1.430 3.647 - 3.647 2.155
Total 16.154 7.447) 8.707 7.581 27.298 [11.632) 15.666 12.791

The average annual depreciation rates are 3% for buildings, from 2% to 5% for installations, from 5% to 20% for equipment, and from 2% to 20% for railroads.
Mineral reserve depletion is calculated annually as a function of the volume of ore extracted in relation to the proven and probable reserves.
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Depreciation, amortization and depletion have been allocated as follows:

- ~
Parent Company

2002 23001

2532 23071
Cost of production and services in the year 536 475 909 813
Inventory variation {7] 9 {7) (42}
Cost of production and services 529 484 902 771
Administrative expenses 23 19 9 28
Amortization of deferred charges - - 38 28
552 503 1.009 827
9.12 Loans and Financing
Short-term
Parent Company Consolidaied
2082 2037 2002 2001
Trade finance 398 927 976 1.713
Warking capital - - 148 32
1.124 1.745

398 927

Long-term

Parent Company

Consolidated

Current {ahilities

P
Current ehiiltles

Leng-term liediiities

2002 2391 2002 2081 20382 2991
Foreign operations
Loans and financing in:
U.S. dollars 998 282 2.461 1.774 1.787 686 4.312 3.178
Yen 2 19 104 63 110 83 211 191
Other currencies 1 1 1 1 4 4 5 179
Notes in U.S. dollars 707 - 1.060 1.160 707 - 2.120 1.160
Securitization of export receivables - - - - 150 9 1.487 722
Perpetuat notes - - - - - - - 129
Accrued charges 55 46 - - 77 b4 38 -
1.763 348 3.624 2.998 2.835 846 8.173 5.559
Local operations
Indexed by TJLP, TR and IGP-M 15 8 57 48 96 137 369 261
Basket of currencies 42 27 56 63 45 35 138 92
Loans in U.S, dollars 3 2 315 210 179 38 1.295 826
Non-convertible debentures - - 10 7 5 - 250 27
Accrued charges 5 2 - - 30 7 - -
65 39 438 328 355 217 2.052 1,206
4,064 3.326 3.190 1.063 10.225 6.765

1.828 387
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{al Foreign currency loans and financing were converted into reais at exchange rates effective on the financial statements date, with
US$ 1.00 = R$ 3.5333 on 12/31/02 (R$ 2.3204 on 12/31/01] and ¥ 1.00 = R$ 0.029779 on 12/31/02 [R$ 0.017082 on 12/31/01};

(b) Certain loans and financing have specific guarantees. Regarding the balance payable on 12/31/02, these guarantees include:

Parent
Company Consolidated

Federal Government guarantees 903 1.258
Third-party guarantees 97 97
Mining rights and mortgaged lands - 146
Shares and securities pledged in guarantee - 507
Other assets - 201

1.000 2.209

{c) Amortization of principal and finance charges incurred on long-term loans and financing obtained abroad and domestically mature as
follows as of 12/31/02:

Parent
Company Consolidated

2004 2,139 3,498
2005 657 1,973
2006 675 1.380
2007 203 1,747
2008 onward 390 1,293
No due date [perpetual notes} - 334

4,064 10,225

{d) Long-term foreign and domestic loans and financing were subject to annual interest rates on 12/31/02 as follows:

Parent
Company Consolidated

Up to 3% 1,373 1,996
3.1% to 5% 2,155 4,054
5.1% to 7% 308 1,922
7.1% to 9% 115 3,054
21% to 11% 1,796 1,904
Over 11% 145 376
Variable [perpetual notes] - 109

5,892 13,415
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(e] The estimated market values of long-term loans and financing calculated to present value based on available interest rates as of
12/31/02 are close to their book values;

(f] Loans and financing of the Parent Company, by currency/index:

2% Yen

2% Basket of currencies
1% Others

95% DollaJ

R$ 6,290

(g) Consolidated loans and financing, broken down by currencies/index:

2% Yen

1% Basket of currencies }
[} \3% Others

96% DollaJ

R$ 14,539

(h) On March 8, 2002, the Company, through its subsidiary CVRD Overseas Ltd., issued US$ 300 million in series A notes bearing interest
at 8.625% per annum, which fall due on March 8, 2007 and may be extended to September 2008. This transaction is guaranteed by the
Company for political risk, with no restriction on transfer to retail investors, and is registered with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

9.13 Securitization Program

On September 29, 2000, CVRD finalized the financial conditions for @ US$ 300 million securitization program based on existing and future
receivables generated by its subsidiary CVRD Overseas Ltd.. This transaction, relating to exports of iron ore and pellets to six of CVRD's
major customers in Europe, the United States and Asia, was structured by Bank of America Securities LLC, and is divided into three
tranches as follows:

Yield te

Amouni Grace Perisd investeor

Tranche {US$ million] Meturity lyears! Imer anpum!
1 25 10/15/2007 2 8.682%
2 linsured] 125 10/15/2007 2 Libor+0.65%
3 150 10/15/2010 3 8.926%

The balance of this operation on 12/31/02 totals R$ 1,074 (R$ 104 in current liabilities and R$ 970 in long-term liabilities) end is included
in related party liabilities to the subsidiary CVRD Overseas Ltd. [Note 9.7].
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9.14 Contingent Liabilities

At the financial statement dates the contingent liabilities of the Company were:

(a) Provisions for contingencies and respective judicial deposits (booked under long-term liabilities and long-term assets, respectively),
considered by management and its legal counsel as sufficient to cover possible losses from any type of lawsuit, were as follows:

Judicial deposits Provisions for contingencies

2002 200 2002 2001
Tax contingencies 454 284 603 308
Labor and social security claims 138 109 345 300
Civil claims 113 118 303 273
Others 4 5 21 13
Total 7 709 516 1,272 894
Consolidated companies 218 112 452 323
Total consolidated 927 628 1,724 1,217

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to labor, civil, tax and other suits and have been contesting these matters both
administratively and in the courts. When necessary, these are backed by judicial deposits. Provisions for eventual losses are estimated
and restated monetarily by management upon the advice of the legal department and outside counsel,

Tax contingencies relate principally to a suit claiming unconstitutionality of the change in the calculation basis of PIS and Cofins social
contributions introduced by Law 9,718/98, and to CPMF (tax on bank transactions].

Labor-related actions principally comprise employee claims in connection with disputes about the amount of indemnities paid upon dismissal.

Civil actions principally relate to claims made against the Company by contractors in connection with losses alleged to have been
incurred as a result of various past government economic plans during which full indexation of contracts for inflation was not permitted.

(b) Guarantees given to jointly controlled companies (normally in proportion to the Company's percentage of participation) are as follows:

2002 2001
ALBRAS - Aluminio Brasileiro S.A. ez 840
Companhia Coreano-Brasileira
de Pelotizacdo - KOBRASCO 47 93
Ferrovia Centro-Atlantica S.A 398 271
Sepetiba Tecon S A. 80 59
Others - 5

1.746 1.268

The breakdown of gquarantees by currency is:

2002 2001
U.S. Dollar 1.361 1.000
Real 385 268

1.746 1.268

[

L
\
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(c) Upon privatization of the Company in 1997, the Brazilian government stipulated the issuance of non-convertible debentures
{Debentures) to the stockhalders of record, including the federal government. The maturity dates of these Debentures were
established to guarantee that pre-privatization stockholders, including the federal government, would share any future benefits from
mineral resources held by the Company and its subsidiary and affiliated companies that were not evaluated at the time of setting the
minimum price of CYRD shares at the privatization auction.

A total of 388,559 056 Debentures were issued at a par value of R$ 0.07 [ene centavo), whose value is to he restated in accordance with
the variation in the General Price Index [IGP-M], as set forth in the lssue Deed.

On October 4, 2002, the Comissdo de Vatores Mobilidrios - CYM [Brazilian Securities Commission} approved the Company's registration
request, filed on June 28, 2002, for public debentures trading. As of October 28, 2002, the Debentures can be traded on the secondary market.

The debenture holders are entitled to receive twice-yearly payments equivalent to a percentage of the net revenue deriving from
determined mineral resources owned in May 1997 and included in the Issue Deed, as per Tables | and Il below.

The Debenture Issue Deed establishes that, in the event that the updated and accrued premium the debenture holders are entitled to
receive on the respective payment dates falls below R$ 6.01 (one centavo] per Debenture, such payment may be held in abeyance and
accumulated until the next payment date, or until some future period when the accrued value surpasses the minimum determined above.
In this case, the amount of the premium must be accrued and increased by monthly interest equal to the Selic rate [Central Bank
reference ratel, calculated as of the determination dates until the month prior to effective payment, and 1% per month during the month
when the money is paid to the debenture holders.

In view of the criteria and parameters for applicability of this premium, and although gold sales from the Fazenda Brasileire mine reached
the accumulated volume stipulated in the Ceed of 26 tons in June 2002, the amount of the premium was determined at approximately R$ 2
{i.e., less than R$ 0.01 per Debenture]. Therefore, from the issue date to present, no remuneration has been paid to the debenture holders.

Based on the estimates for start-up of operations of the copper projects, such premiums are forecast to begin in 2004. Considering iron
ore sales, the threshold established in the Deed should be reached in approximately 2030 for the Southern System and 2020 for the
Northern System. Regarding the remaining minerals, such as bauxite and nickel, estimates for start of extraction are after 2005, and
according to the criteria established in the Deed, payment will be due an the net revenues starting in the fourth year after the first mineral
sales. The obligation to make these payments to the debenture holders will terminate when the pertinent mineral resources are depleted.

Criteria and Parameters for Composition and Applicability of the Premium:

Table !

Y

Mineral Preduct

Iron ore 1.8% of net revenues Payment calculated on net revenue from sales occurring as of
the date the accrued sales volume since May 1997 reaches 1.7
billion tons in the Southern System, including Urucum, and 1.2
billion tans for the Northern System.

remivm Arnzlicasility

Gold, copper and byproducts 2.5% of net revenues Payment starting from the beginning of commercialization,
observing the following conditions and excepting the areas of
Carajas-Serra Leste and Salobo, among others:

(i} The premium will be due considering the fractions
corresponding to the participation that the Company and/or its
subsidiaries detained in areas under joint ventures on April 15,
1997 (e.g., Igarapé Bahia, Alemao, Pojuca, Andorinhas, Liberdade
and Sossegol.

[ii] The premium relative to |garapé-Bahia/Alem&o will be owed
starting on the date accrued sales since May 1997 surpass 70
tons of gold.

(iii) The premium relative to Fazenda Brasileiro will be owed
from the date accrued sales since May 1997 surpass 26 tons of gold.

Other Minerals 1% of net revenues Payment on net revenues from sales starting in the fourth year
after the date of first commercialization of the minerals.
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Table It
Other Criteria Premium
Sale of mineral rights 1% of the sale price of each mineral product.
Lease of mineral rights The premium will be owed in full by the Company and/or its subsidiary companies, under the
same terms applicable to each product if the lease had not occurred.
Substitution of mineral rights The permutation of the mineral rights involving any of the products included in Table | above

shall be considered for composing the premium as originally set forth in the Deed.

(d] The Company has commitments under a take-or-pay contract to acquire approximately 207,060 tons of aluminum per year from Albras
at market prices. This estimate is based on 51% of the predicted output of Albras at a market price of US$ 1,348.00 per ton on
December 31, 2002, representing an annual commitment of R$ 817 based on the average exchange rate for 2002. The same applies to
705,533 tons of alumina per year produced by Alunorte, which at a market price of US$ 171.36 per ton on 12/31/02 represents a yearly
commitment of R$ 361 at the same exchange rate mentioned. The effective take of Albras was R$ 751 and R$ 510 in 2002 and 2001,
respectively, and directly from Alunorte [net of the take assigned to Albras), was R$ 125 and R$ 84 in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

9.15 Environmental and Site Reclamation and Restoration Costs

Expenditures relating to ongoing compliance with environmental regulations are charged to production costs or capitalized as incurred.
The Company manages its environmental policies according to the specifications of 15014001 and maintains ongoing programs to
minimize the environmental impact of its mining operations as well as to reduce the costs that will be incurred upon termination of
activities at each mine. On 2002, the provision for environmental liabilities amounted to R$ 52 [R$ 66 on 12/31/01], which was recorded
in "Others” in long-term liabilities.

9.16 Pension Plan - Valia

The Fundacdo Vale do Rio Doce de Seguridade Social - Valia is a closed non-profit supplementary social security entity, legally separate
from CVRD, founded in 1973 to provide supplementary social security benefits to the employees of the Company, its subsidiaries,
affiliated companies and others that participate or may in the future participate in plans administered by the Foundation.

The Company and various of its subsidiaries and affiliated companies are sponsors of Valia, in the following benefit plans:
(a) Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Plan - “BD"”

This is a pure defined benefit plan, now being phased out, instituted in 1973 upon establishment of Valia. This plan has been closed to
new members and is maintained only for existing retired participants and their beneficiaries and a few residual active participants.

Mixed-Benefit Plan - “Vale Mais”

This is a mixed plan that offers programmable retirement income benefits of the defined contribution type, independent of government
social security. It also includes a deferred severance benefit [vesting), as well as risk benefits: retirement for disability, death benefits
and sick-leave assistance. This new plan has more modern, transparent and flexible rules that make it more attractive for employees and more
economical for the spansors. "Vale Mais™ was established in May 2000 and nearly 98.7% of the active participants migrated to this new plan.

The contributions of the sponsors are as follows:

e Ordinary contribution - Destined to accumulate the resources necessary to grant income benefits, sponsor contributions are matched
equally by participants, up to 9% of their participation salaries, which may not exceed ten “plan reference units” [this limit was
R$1,480.73 and R$1,383.86 in December 2002 and 2001, respectively].

o Extraordinary contribution - This can be made at any time, at the discretion of the sponsors.
e Normal contribution - To fund the risk plan and administrative expenses, fixed by the actuary based on actuarial appraisals.
e Special contribution - Destined to cover any special commitment that may arise.

During the year, the Company made contributions to Valia in the amount of R$ 50 [R$ 45 in 2001) to fund the benefit plans it sponsors.
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(b] Reserve to be amortized

On March 15, 2001, CVRD fully paid the total of reserve to be amortized to that date in the Defined Benefit Plan by transferring its total
share ownership in Companhia Siderirgica Nacional, in the amount of R$ 521, and gave guarantees of minimum gains until Valia sells
them. The guarantee consists of the variation of the INPC inflation index plus interest of 6% per annum.

[c) Actuarial liability

This provision is the result of the Company’s responsibility to provide supplementary pensions relating to the early retirement programs
of 1987 and 1989, known as Complementary Bonus, in the amount of R$ 577, and an additional amount of R$ 3 as required by CVM
Deliberation 371. These liabilities were calculated by an independent actuary for the year 2002 and represent the current value of the
benefits and pensions. Part is recorded under "Pension Plan - Valia” in current liabilities - R$ 81 (R$ 65 on 12/31/01) and part in long-
term liabilities - R$ 499 {R$ 429 on 12/31/01].

Below is a reconciliation of the assets and liabilities recognized on the balance sheet:

2002 20301
Present value of totally or partially covered
actuarial obligations (3,831) [3,222)
Fair value of assets 3,763 3,189
Net value of gains not recognized on the
balance sheet 45 -
Liability recognized on the balance sheet (3] {33)

The amounts recognized on the statement of income for 2002 are:

2002
Current service cost 3
Interest cost 352
Expected return on assets [350)
Total 5
The main actuarial assumptions at December 31 are:
2002 203%
Economic assumptions
Discount rate 11.3% p.a.[nominal] 6% p.a. {real]
Expected return on plan assets 11.3% p.a. 6% p.a.
Future salary increases 6.91% p.a. until 47 years 1.82% p.a. until 47 years
Growth in benefits and limits 0% p.a. since 48 years 0% p.a. since 48 years
Inflation 5.0% p.a. 0% p.a.
Capacity Factor
Salaries 99% 99%
Benefits 99% 99%
Demographic assumptions
Mortality table AT 1949 GAM 1971
Mortality table of invalids ) AT 1949 IAPC - 57

Table of initial invalid status Alvaro Vindas Alvaro Vindas




9.17 Paid-~up Capital

The Company's capital is R$ 5 biltion, carresponding to 388,559,056 book entry shares, of which 249,983,143 are common shares and
138,575,913 are preferred class A shares, the latter including one special preferred share ["Golden Share™), all with no par value. On Aprit
29, 2002, the Extraordinary Stockholders” General Meeting approved a capital increase, without new share issue, through capitalization
of reserves in the amount of R$ 1 billion.

Preferred shares have the same rights as common shares, except for the right to elect the members of the Board of Directors. They have priority
to a minimum annual dividend of 6% on the portion of capital represented by this class of share or 3% of the book value of the share, if greater.

The special "Golden Share” created during the privatization in 1997 belongs to the Brazilian government. This share gives it the right to
a permanent veto of changes in the Company’s name, headquarters location, nature as a mining enterprise, continuous operation of the
integrated mining, transportation and loading systems and other matters determined in the Bylaws.

On December 31, 2002 the Company's capital is comprised as follows:

Number of shares

Stockholders Common % Preferred % Totzl %

Valepar S.A. 130.715.711 52 - - 130.715.711 34

Brazilian Government [National Treasury /

BNDES / INSS / FPS) (a] - - 5.075.342 4 5.075.342 1
American Depositary Receipts - ADRs 58.064.311 23 65.669.177 47 123.733.488 32
FMP - FGTS 17.823.255 7 - - 17.823.255 4
BNDESPar 17.667.640 7 1.401.980 1 19.069.620 5
Foreign - institutional investors 6,136,230 3 35,112,372 25 41,248,602 11
Brazil - institutional investors 8,414,301 3 15,131,436 1 23,545,737 6
Brazil - retail investors 6,446,525 3 16,181,125 12 22,627,650 6
Treasury stock 4,715,170 2 4,481 - 4,719,651 1
Total 249.983.143 100 138.575.913 100 388.55%.056 100

(a] The Nationatl Bank for Economic and Social Development {BNDES], in its own name and on behalf of the Brazilian Government,
continuing the privatization process started in 1997 as per the terms of the Privatization Rules, on March 21, 2002 sold 78,787,838
common CVRD shares to the public.

As of December 31, 2002, the number of holders of record who are residents of Brazil was 30,653, These stockholders owned 224,716,646
shares, representing 57.8% of the capital stock.

The members of the Board of Directors and Executive Board together own 10,555 common shares and 11 preferred shares.

On December 31, 2002, the Company had an excess of revenue reserves. In compliance with corparate legislation [Art. 199 of Law No. 6404/76],
management will propose at the Annual General Meeting a capital increase from revenue reserves in the amount of R$ 1.3 billion, without
issuing new shares.

9.18 American Depositary Receipts {ADR] Program

On June 20, 2000, the Company obtained ADR registration from the United States Securities and Exchange Commission [SEC), beginning
a process for its preferred shares to be traded on the New York Stock Exchange {NYSE). On March 21, 2002, in connection with the sale
of shares held by the BNDES and Brazilian government, the common shares began to be traded on the NYSE. Each ADR represents |}
fone) preferred Class A or common share, traded under the code "RICPR” and "RIO", respectively.

C
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9.19 Treasury Stock

The Board of Directors, under the terms of subparagraph XV of Article 13 of the Bylaws and based on Article 30 of Law 6,404/76 and CVM
Instructions 10 of 02/14/80and 268 of 11/13/97, approved the acquisition by the Company of its own shares to be held in treasury for later
sale or cancellation.

As of December 31, 2002 were purchased 4,715,170 comman shares and 4,481 preferred shares, which are held in treasury, in the ammount of R$ 131.

Shares Average

Class Quantity Unit acquisition cost suoted market price
2002 2091 Average Low High 2002 2001

Preferred 4.481 21 51,41 14,02 52,40 96,99 52,44
Commaon 4.715.170 47158170 27,80 20,07 52,09 102,88 50,21

4.719.651 4£.715.261

9.20 Remuneration of Stockholders

Interest on stockholders' equity declared by the Board of Directors for the year ended December 31, 2002 was R$ 2.48 per outstanding
common and preferred share [R$ 4.61 in 2001), totaling R$ 1,029 (R$ 1,774 in 2001). Payment was in a single instatlment, starting on 12/10/02.

Interest on stockholders’ equity proposed for 2002 was calculated as follows:

Net income for the year 2.043
Legal reserve [102)
Reealization of unrealized income reserve 526
Adjusted net income 2,667
Mandatory amount - 25% {R$ 1.61 per outstanding share) 617
Statutory dividend on preferred shares (3% of net equity, R$ 1.00 per outstanding share} 138
Statutory dividend on preferred shares [6% of paid-up capital, R$ 0.77 per outstanding share) 107
Interest on stockholders’ equity (R$ 2.68 per outstanding share) 1.029

Pursuant to Ruling No. 207/96 of the Brazilian Securities Commission (CVM), the Company decided, as required by tax regulations, to
account for interest on stockholders’ equity under the heading of "Financial expenses” and to reverse the same amount in a specific
account. This, however, does not appear in the financial statements because it had no effect on the final net income, except for the tax

impact recorded as “Income tax and social contribution”.
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9.21 Financial Result

2002 2001
Financial expenses
Foreign debt {223) (227)
Local debt (79 (80}
Related parties, net (60] {13
Others (*) [496) [291)
(858) 1611)

Monetary and exchange rate variation

on liabilities 12.903) (814)
Financial income
Marketable securities 43 &7
Others 39 22

102 89

Monetary and exchange rate

variation on assets 433 215
Financial income (expenses), net (3.226) {1.121)
Consolidated companies

Financial expenses (534) {354)

Financial revenues 241 92

Manetary and exchange rate variation, net 38 [544)
Consolidated financial result, net [3.481) 11.927)

{*] Includes net losses on derivative financial instruments [Note 9.22].

9.22 Financial instruments - Derivatives

The main market risks the Company faces are related to interest rates, exchange rates and commodities prices. CVRD has a policy of
managing risks through the use of derivative instruments.

The Company’s risk management follows policies and guidelines reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors and Executive Board.
These policies and guidelines prohibit speculative trading and short selling and require diversification of transactions and counterparties.
The policy of the Company is to settle all contracts financially without physical delivery of the products. The credit limits and
creditworthiness of counterparties are also reviewed periodically and are defined according to the rules approved by management. The
results of hedging are recognized monthly in the CVRD result.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk derives from floating-rate debt, mainly from trade finance operations. The portion of floating-rate debt denominated in
foreign currency is mainly subject to fluctuations in the Libor - London Interbank Offered Rate. The portion of floating-rate debt
expressed in reals refers basically to the Brazilian long-term interest rate [TJLP], established by the Brazilian Central Bank. Since May
1998, CVRD has been using derivatives to limit its exposure to fluctuations in the Libor.

The interest rate derivatives portfolio consists mainly of options trades aiming to cap exposure to interest rate fluctuations, establishing
upper and tower limits. Some operations are subject to knock-aut provisions which, if triggered, eliminate the protection provided by the cap.
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The table below provides information regarding the interest rate derivatives portfolio for 2002 and 2001.

2002 2001

Unrealized Unrealized

Notional value gain (loss) Final  Notionat value gain (loss)

Type {in US$ million] Rate range  {in R$ million) maturity  lin US$ mittion} Rate range (in R$ million]
Cap 500 5,7 -11.0% 1 May/07 1.375 50-80% 6
Floor 500 5,7-63% (48) May/05 1.000 5,0 -6,5% {66)
Swap 475 5,8 -6,7% [1686) Oct/07 125 55-7.5% (23}
Total (213) {83)

Exchange Rate Risk

Exchange rate risk arises from foreign currency debts. On the other hand, a substantial part of the Company's revenues are denominated
or indexed in U.S. dollars, while the majority of costs are in reafs. This provides a natural hedge against possible devaluation of Brazilian
currency. Events of this nature have an immediate negative impact on foreign currency debt, offset by the positive effect on future cash flows.

The Company adopts a strategy of monitoring market fluctuations and, if necessary, carrying out derivatives operations to cover risks
related to these variations.

The portion of debt denominated in euros and Japanese yen is protected by derivatives to cover risks of exchange rate movements of
these currencies.

The table below shows the exchange rate derivatives portfolio for 2002 and 2001. These operations are forwards and range forwards which
were structured to ensure the purchase price of the following currencies:

2002 2001
Unrealized gain Unrezalized gain
Motional value [loss) Final Motional vaiue (loss)
Type [in US$ million) Rate range (in R$ miltion} maturity  {in US$ million] Rate range {in R$ million)
Yen purchased 3,543 ¥0011-0012 ¥70-110
per US$ 1) May/05 5 per US$ [4)
Euros purchased 5 Euro1.18-1.23 Euro 1.10 - 1.30
per US$ (3l May/05 8 per US$ [5)
Euros sold Euro 0,90 - 1,20
N - - 12 per US$ (2)

Total (4) (11}

Commodities Price Risk

The prices of iron ore, the Company’s main product, are set in annual negotiations between producers and consumers and are notably
stable over time. The Company does not enter into derivatives operations to hedge iron ore price exposure,

The Company uses hedge instruments to manage its exposure to changes in the price of gold and aluminum. These derivatives operations
allow establishment of a minimum profit level for future output. The Company actively manages its open positions, with the results
reparted manthly to senior management to allow adjustment of targets and strategies in response to market conditions.
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The following table shows the gold derivatives portfolio of the Company in 2002 and 2001.

2002 2001
Unrealized gain Unrealized gain
Price range {loss) Final Price range {loss)
Type Quantity [0z} US$/oz  lin R$ miltion) maturity Quantity loz] Us$/oz [in R$ million}
Puts purchased 428.000 270 - 355 1 Dec/07 422.000 270 - 340 25
Calls sold 595.000 316 - 407 {(63) Dec/07 718.000 308 - 366 ,_@L
Hybrid instruments 20.000 - (1) Nov/06 25.000 -
Total (53} 17
The table below shows the aluminum derivatives portfolio of Albras in 2002 and 2001:
2002 2001
Unrealized gain Unrealized gain
Quantity Price range floss] Final Quzntity Price range floss)
Type (tons) US$/ton  {in R$ mitlion] maturity (tons) Us$/ion lin R$ million)
Puts purchased 46.500 1.390 - 1.500 19 Jun/04 80.000  1.400 - 1.600 22
Forwards sold 39.250 1.400 -1.600 21 Dec/03 57.000 1.400 - 1,600 18
Calls sold ' 59.500 1.580-1.700 (1) Jun/04 56.000 1.600 - 1.8060 (2]
Others instruments 106.000 (3) Dec/08 132.000 (6]
Total 36 32
The following table shows the alumina derivatives portfolio of Alunorte in 2002 and 2007:
2002 2001
Unrealized gain Unrealized gain
Quantity Price range loss] Final Quantity Price range {loss)
Type [tans} US$/ton {in R$ million) maturity ftons) US$/tan (in R$ million)
Puts purchased 27.250 1.400 - 1.530 8 Jun/04 15.000 1.400 - 1.600 6
Forwards sold 12.006 1.400 - 1.578 6 Dec/06 26.000 1.400 - 1.400 10
Calls sold 27.250 1.710- 1.732 (1) Jun/04 23.000 1.600 - 1.800 -
Others instruments 69.500 (2) Dec/08 74.000 (4)

Total 11 12
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9.23 Exchange Rate Exposure

The exchange rate exposure is predominantly in U.S. dollars, as follows:

Pareni Company

Subsidieries end

Affitiated Companies (¥}

Assets 2032 2881 2002 28201
Current
Cash and banks and marketable securities 189 508 410 86
Others 1.953 1,709 1,237 821
2,142 2,217 1,647 907
Long-term receivables 1,230 1,238 52 71
investments 4,438 2,524 26 72
Total 7,810 5,979 1,725 1,050
Liabitities
Current
Short-term loans and financing 2,210 1,304 1,604 1,191
Others 921 398 384 203
3,131 1,702 1,988 1,394
Long-term liabilities
Loans and financing 4,000 3,271 2,262 1.961
Others 2,999 1,760 848 178
6,999 5,031 3,110 2,139
Total 0130 6733 5098 3,833
Liabilities - R$ (2,320) 1754} (3,373) {2,483)
Liabilities - US$ (657) 1324) {955) {1,070)

{ * ] Proportional to the percentage of participation.

9.26 Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative (Parent Company) 2002 2091
Personnel 136 103
Technical consulting 100 130
Advertising and publicity 25 16
Depreciation 23 19
Travel expenses 19 17
Rents and taxes 16 14
Telephone 10 7
Donations to Funai/lnternal social activities 12 6
Others 33 27

374 339




Others 2002 2001
Provision for write-off of property,

plant and equipament - gold mine 147 91
Provision for environmental costs - 40
Provisions for contingencies 96 53
Provision for loss on ICMS credits - 142
Provision for profit sharing 84 72
Others 382 122
Total Parent Company 709 520
Provisions for contingencies 102 73
Provision for loss on assets 171 114
Provision for loss on ICMS credits 73 9
Others 116 175
Total consolidated 844 891

9.25 Effects on the Statements if Price-Level Restatement Were Applied (Unaudited]

[
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The main difference between the financial statements prepared according to statutory accounting practices and those according to the

price-level restatement method is due to no recognition of the net monetary restatement of permanent assets and stockholders’ equity.

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Income by monetary restatement, according to prices on December 31, 2002 {indexed by the IGP-M

of Fundacdo Getulio Vargas) are as follows:

Balance Sheet

Years ended December 31

Parent Company

Consolidated

2002 2001 2002 2001
Assets
Current assets 4,346 5,000 10,878 9,029
Long-term receivables 3,861 3,141 3,333 3,538
Permanent assets
Equity Investments 18,202 15,923 5,822 6,041
Property, plant and equipment 14,901 15,584 26,787 25,077
Deferred charges - - 1.122 913
33,103 31,507 33,731 32,031
41,310 39,648 47,942 44,598
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities o 4,218 4,539 6,793 6,648
Long-term liabilities 11,103 9.00~0A 14,814 11,633
Deferred income - - 156 199
Minority interests - - 190 9
Stockholders’ equity
Paid-up capital 8,713 7,413 8,713 7,413
Capital reserves - 1,689 - 1,689
Revenue reserves 17,276 17,007 17,276 17,007
25,989 26,109 25,989 26,109
41,310 39,648 47,942 44,598
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Statement of Income

Years ended December 31

Pzrent Company Consolidated
2002 2001 2082 2031
Net operating revenues 8,524 8,347 15,190 13,823
Cost of products and services (4,277) (4,263) [7.912) [7,249)
Gross profit 4,247 4,084 7,278 6,574
Gross margin 49.8% 48.9% 47.9% 47.6%
Operating expenses 126 108 [2,972) [2,369)
Income before income tax and
social contribution 4,373 4192 4,306 4,205
Income tax and social contribution [233] 282 [291] 219
Income before minority interests 4,140 4,474 4,015 4,424
Minority interests - - 125 50
Net income for the year - R$ 4,140 4,474 4,140 6,674
Net income for the year - US$ 1,172 1,266

9.26 Segment and Geographic information

The Company’s business areas are as follows:

Ferrous - mining of iron ore and manganese and production of pellets, as well as their commerciatization and respective rail transport
and port handling [both for the Northern and Southern Systems}.

Non-ferrous - includes gold production, potash, geological prospecting and other non-ferrous minerals.
Logistics - activities related to railroads and ports together with investments in the area of maritime and rait transport and port services.

Equity investments - includes commercialization of aluminum products and investments in joint ventures and affiliates involved in the
production of bauxite, alumina refining and aluminum smelting, as well as holdings in companies in the steel making business.

Corporate center - comprises the functional areas of control, finance, legal affairs, human resources, administration, information
technology and investor retations.



Parent Company

2002
Ferrous MNon-Ferrous Corporate
Minerals Minerals Logistics Others Center Total
Results .
Sales classified by geographic destination
External market
Latin America 327 - - - - 327
United States 288 88 - - - 376
Europe 2,005 192 - - - 2,197
Middle East/Africa/Oceania 515 - - - - 515
Japan 671 - - - - 671
China 796 - - - - 796
Asia, other than Japan and China 499 - - - - 499
Operating revenues - external market 5,101 280 - - - 5,381
Operating revenues - internal market 2,154 272 763 - - 3,189
Total operating revenues 7,255 552 763 - - 8,570
Value added taxes [225) {33) {75} - - (333]
Net operating revenues 7,030 519 688 - - 8,237
Cost of products and services (3,539] (302 {292 - - [4,133)
Selling and administrative expenses (186) - - - (374 (560)
Research and development (25] {116} (6) - - 1147)
Other operating expenses, net [96) [126) - - (160] [382)
QOperating profit before financial result and
result of equity investments 3,184 [25) 390 - [534) 3,015
Financial result, net - - - - {3,226) 13,226)
Result of equity investments 1,561 {64) (384] 388 (48] 1,453
Income taxes - - - - 690 690
Discontinued operations - - - 1M - M
Net income for the year 4,745 (89} [3 499 (3,118) 2,043
EBITDA demonstration: o
Operating profit before financial result and
result of equity investments 3,184 [25) 390 - {534) 3,015
Depreciation, amortization and depletion 551 7 24 - 13 659
Dividends received - cash 74 - 5 75 - 154
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Provision for contingencies 96 - - - - 96
Write-off of property, plant and equipment - 126 - - - 126
EBITDA 3,905 172 419 75 {521) 4,050
EBITDA % of total 96.4% 4.2% 10.3% 1.9% 12.8% 100.0%
EBITDA margin % 55.5% 33.1% 60.9% - - 49.2%
The information related to year 2001 is as follows:
2001
Ferrous WMon-Ferrous Corporste
Minerals Minerals Logistics Others Center TOTAL
EBITDA (LAJIDA) 2,968 166 332 138 (350} 3,254
EBITDA % of total 91.2% 5.1% 10.2% 4.3% {10.8%) 100.0%
EBITDA margin % 55.5% 34.3% 60.1% - - 51.0%

!
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Consolidated

Ferrous Nen-F s Peper and
Yirerais nerals Legistics Puin Aluminum
Results
Sales classified by geographic destination
External market o
Latin America 1,285 25 b4 - 174
United States 1,023 88 7 - 291
Europe 5,478 310 24 - 1,370
Middle East/Africa/Oceania 1,059 1 - - i o .
Japan 1,618 26 2 - 380
China 1,953 10 4 - 34
Asia, other than Japan and China 1,313 3 4 - -
DOperating revenues - external market 13,729 4663 105 - 2,249
Operating revenues - interna! market 3,565 293 1,221 i0 653
Total operating revenues 17,2%4 756 1,326 10 2,902
Value added taxes (352) (38) {121) - (71
Net operating revenues 16,942 718 1,205 10 2,831
Cost of products and services {11,566) (412] (7811 (7] {2,116}
Selling and administrative expenses (441) (24] (54) (1) {150} o
Research and development [26] (116] (6] - -
Other operating expenses, net (588) (138) [98) (56) 66
Operating profit before financial result and
result of equity investments 4,321 28 266 {54} 631
Financial result, net [549) (183) (142) 4 (825)
Result of equity investments 784 (64) {529) (16] 151 o
Income taxes (113) - (27) (34) 52 -
Discontinued operations - - - 11 -
Minority interests (7) - - - 33
Net income for the year 4,436 1219) §432) 11 42
EBITDA demonstration:
Operating profit before financial result and
result of equity investments 4,321 28 266 (54) 631
Depreciation, amortization and depletion 691 83 76 3 117
Dividends received-cash - - 2 - -
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Provision for contingencies 148 - 57 - -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment - 126 - - -
Others 205 - 33 52 22
EBITDA 5,365 237 434 1 770
EBITDA % of total 78.2% 3.5% 6.3% - 11.2%
EBITDA margin % 31.7% 33.0% 36.0% 10.0% 27.2%
The information retated to year 2001 is as follows:
Ferrous Neon-Ferrous Pzner enc
Minerals Minerais Logistics Pu.p Alyminum
EBITDA (LAJIDA) 4,001 204 459 5 544
EBITDA % of total 78.0% 4.0% 8.9% 0.1% 10.6%
EBITDA margin % 33.4% 36.2% 36.9% 25.0% 28.7%




2002
Zoldings
Cerporate

Steel Cthers Center Eliminations Total
101 - - [684] 965
1,384 - - [734]) 2,061
94 - - (2,847) 4,429

- - - (227) 833

- - - (688) 1,338

51 - - (797) 1,255
141 - [519] 942
1,773 - - (6,494) 11,823
26 - - (2,324) 3,444
1,799 - - (8,820) 15,267
(8) - - 1 (589}
1,791 - - (8,819) 14,678
(1,438) - - 8,674 (7,646)
(81] - (374) 216 (909]

- - - - [148)
(61) - (162) 193 (844)
211 - (536) 264 5,131
(168) - [3,227) 1,609 (3.481])
L 302 26 (48] (1,079 [473]
[26) - 691 91 634

- - - 111

- - - 95 121
319 26 (3,120} 980 2,043
211 - (536) 264 5,131
134 - 13 - 1,117

6 9 - - 17

- - - - 205

- - - - 126

53 - - {104) 261
404 9 (523) 160 6,857
5.9% 0.1% (7.5%) 2.3% 100.0%
22.6% - - - 46.7%
2001

Holdings
Corporate

Steel Others Center Eliminations Total
165 (17) 1351) 118 5,128
3.2% (0.3%) (6.8%) 2.3% 100.0%
13.6% - - - 48.5%

2

CVRD Annual Report




30

D Annual Report 2002

9.27 insurance
Operational Risks

CVRD has an extensive risk management program that provides coverage and protection for all its assets as well as against possible
losses from production interruptions, through an all risks policy. This program includes on-site inspection and training carried out by the
various risk committees constituted by the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies. The Company tries to harmonize risks
in all areas and provide single and uniform treatment, seeking coverage in the domestic and international markets at levels compatible
with an enterprise the size of CVRD. Besides assets and lost production, there is coverage against personal injury, third-party liability,

environmental damages and dameges to freight carried by the Company.

Insurance

In order to provide the best instruments for more efficient risk management and to seek alternatives due to the crisis in the international
insurance market, CVRD in 2002 established a captive reinsurer. This entity was created for the purpose of improving risk management
and to provide a more efficient instrument for negotiation and market penetration, serving exclusively to underwrite the risks of the
companies of the Group, in Brazil and abroad. Besides this, intensified action by the risk committees is being undertaken to improve the
cperation and maintenance of the Company's equipment and installations.

9.28 Profit Sharing Plan

The employee profit sharing ptan is linked to the results as measured by indicators such as ROCE [return on capital employed] and by the
meeting of performance targets for each unit.

In 2002, the Company set aside R$ 84 (R$ 63 in 2001) for profit sharing (Note 9.24).

9.29 Concessions and Leases

{a} Railroads

The Company and some of its affiliated companies entered into agreements with the Brazilian government, through the Ministry of
Transport, for concession, exploitation and development of public rail cargo transport services and for lease of the assets used to render
these services.

The concession periods are, by railroad:

End of concession

Railroad geriod
Vitéria a Minas (direct) June 2027
Carajas [direct] June 2027
Centro-Atléntica (indirect) August 2026
CFN lindirect} December 2027
Ferroban (direct] December 2027
MRS lindirect] December 2026

The concessions will expire in one of the following events: termination of the contractual term, cancellation, forfeiture, rescission,

annulment and bankruptcy or extinction of the concessionaire.




{b] Hydroelectric Projects

CVRD Annual Repor:

Currently, the Company acts as an agent in the Brazilian energy market and at the same time it is developing projects for electricity
generation and improving its ability to operate competitively in this market.

The projects in which the Company has investment are:

Start-up of

Project operations % Participation
lgarapava In operation 38.15
Porto Estrela In aperation 33.33
Funil January 2003 51.00
Candonga November 2003 50.00
Aimorés December 2003 51.00
Capim Branco ! February 2006 48.42
Capim Branco |l June 2006 48.42
Foz do Chapecd Juty 2007 40.00
Santa |sabel August 2007 43.50
Estreito July 2007 30.00
{c) Ports

The Company owns specialized port terminals as listed below:

End of concession

Terminal Location period
Tubarao Terminal Vitéria - ES 2018
Praia Mole Terminal Vitéria - ES 2020
Sundry Products Terminal Vitéria - ES 2018
Vila Velha Terminal Vila Velha - ES 2023
Paul Quay Vitéria- ES 2004
Liquid Bulk Terminal Vitéria - ES 2018
Ponta da Madeira Maritime Terminal - Pier | Sao Luis - MA 2018
Ponta da Madeira Maritime Terminal - Pier |l Sdo Luis - MA 2010
Indcio Barbosa Maritime Terminal Aracaju - SE 2004

9.30 Deferred Income

Refers basically to the negative goodwill on the acquisition of CST.

9.31 Subsequent Events

Shareholder Remuneration Policy

On January 30, 2003, the Company reported that in conformity with its Shareholder Remuneration Policy, the Executive Board will submit
to the approval of the Board of Directors a proposal to pay remuneration to the shareholders in the form of dividends and/or interest on
stockholders’ equity of at least US$ 400 million, corresponding to US$ 1.04 per share, in two equal installments, on April 30 and October 31,
2003 respectively. The Board of Directors will deliberate on this proposal at two different meetings, scheduled for April 16 and October 15, 2003.

Acquisitions

)

On February 14, 2003, the Company concluded acquisition of 100% of the capital of Etlkem Rana AS ~ Rana, a Norwegian producer of ferroalloys,

for US$ 17.6 million. Rana was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Elkem ASA, also a Norwegian firm.
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9.32 Shareholding interests {Organizational Chart at 12/31/02)
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Main Companies of the CYRD Group
Holding in total stock (%)

7 .
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PART I

10 ATTACHMENT | - STATEMENT OF INVESTMENTS [N SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Years ended December 31, 2002 / In millions of reais

Pariicipation (%) Assets
Totat Yoting Current Leng-term Permanent
Subsidiaries (a) . o .
Amazon Iron Ore Overseas Co. Ltd. 160.00 100.00 - 10 562
ALUNORTE - Atumina do Norte do Brasil S.A. 57.03 62.09 336 241 1,705
Brasilux S.A. 100.00 160.00 172 70 T
Caulim do Brasit Investimentos S.A. - CBI 100.00 100.00 - - 136
Celmar S.A. - Industria de Celulose e Papel 100.00 100.00 7 - 80
CVRD QOverseas Ltd. 100.00 100.00 830 973 -
Docepar S.A. 100.00 100.00 3 113 -
Ferteco Mineracdo S.A. ) 100.00 100.00 590 295 383
Florestas Rio Doce S.A. 99.85 100.00 90 154 5
Itabira Internacional Servicos e Comércio Lda. 99.99 99.99 - - T14d
Itabira Rio Doce Company Limited - {TACO 99.99 99.99 1,329 1291 2,364
Mineracdo Serra do Sossego S.A. 100.00 100.00 - 1 406
Navegacdo Vale do Rio Doce S.A. - DOCENAVE 100.00 100.90 560 163 12
Pard Pigmentos S.A. 75.50 80.00 sg - 192
Rio Doce América Inc. 100.00 100.060 149 4b4 399
Rio Doce Europa S.a.r.l. 99.80 99.80 135 - 3378
Rio Doce International Finance Ltd. 100.00 100.00 3,012 2,388 7
Rio Doce Manganése Europe 100.00 100.00 231 9 90
Salobo Metais S.A. 100.00 100.00 - - 543
SIBRA - Eletrosiderurgica Brasileira S.A. 99.27 100.00 331 1 273
TVV - Terminal de Vila Velha S.A. 99.89 99.89 7 4 55
Urucum Mineracdo S.A. 100.00 100.00 38 25 38
Vale do Rio Doce Aluminio S.A. 94.74 100.00 77 4 853
Others 55 59 475
Jointly controlled companies (a) - o
ALBRAS - Aluminio Brasileiro S.A. 51.00 51.00 583 417 L1
Caemi Mineracdo e Metalurgia S.A. [b) 16.86 50.00 1,102 204 174
California Steel Industries, Inc. 50.00 50.00 _ 945 10 915
Companhia Coreano-Brasileira de Pelotizagdo - KOBRASCO 50.00 50.00 78 61 215
Companhia Ferrovidria do Nordeste - CFN 32.40 32.40 7 12 43
Companhia Hispano-Brasileira de Pelotizacdo - HISPANOBRAS n 50.89 51.00 125 30 38
Companhia Italo-Brasileira de Pelotizac&o - ITABRASCO 50.90 51.00 120 35 22
Companhia Nipo-Brasileira de Pelotizagdo - NIBRASCO 51.00 51.11 148 42 73
Companhia Siderdrgica de Tubardo 22.85 20.51 1,446 364 4953
Ferrovia Centro - Atléntica S.A. 45.65 20.00 89 315 413
Gulf Industrial Investment Co. - GIIC 50.00 50.00 330 10 121
Minas da Serra Geral S.A. - MSG 51.00 51.00 53 6 31
Mineragdo Rio do Norte S.A. 40.00 40.00 160 21 1.066
Sepetiba Tecon S.A. 50.00 50.00 32 38 03
Samarco Mineragdo 5.A. 50.00 50.00 634 86 838
Valesul Atuminio S.A. 54.51 54.51 164 4 144
Others 39 - o
Remarks:
[a) The balances above represent the amounts presented in the financial statements of those companies
on December 31, 2002 and not only the part included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
(Rl Tha fimamrcial ctatarmante ~f Canmm: ara ~nmcnlidatad amd mediida PE 90/ Af reim;mre v mbarect
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Accounting information

Liabilities Stetement of income

Adjusted

Adjusted Cost of Operating Mon- Income tax net

stockholders’ Net nreducts income operating end secial income

Current Long-term equity revenues and services {expenses) result contribution {toss)
- 572 - - {446) - [446)

283 1,554 445 785 (576] (492) - 60 (183]
211 - 32 312 [315] %o - - 1
- 134 - - - - - -

62 170 [145] - - - {20] - (20}
322 1,072 409 1.274 (1,106) (23) - - 145
145 86 [115) - - (78) - - (78)
319 330 619 918 (525} (291) o 6 {14] 94
38 34 177 10 [7) - 38 (37) 4

- - 1,144 - - 278 - 278
1,445 2,395 1,144 5,049 (4,708) [735] - - (394)
29 378 - - - -
86 195 454 260 (234) 115 (37) - 104
15 248 (83) 155 (89) [149) - - {83)
214 27 751 295 (283) 57 (10] 59
53 - 3,460 - - 83 - - 83

_ 405 1,624 3,378 154 (33) 42 (80) 83
116 39 175 324 (300] 3 - - 27
- 437 106 - - - - -
279 123 293 523 [307] (107) (8] {19) 82
10 1 55 55 (50) (1] - (1) 3
21 1 49 88 {37) (11 (5) (7 28

1 17 916 2 - 96 - (8] 90

&4 321 224 78 (74) (2) - - 2
697 1.177 257 1,545 (932) [724) (1] 139 27
837 1,069 574 1,822 (1,069 [882) (82) (80) (291)
324 754 792 2,240 {1,949) (98) 1 (70) 124
148 313 {107] 354 [285) (231) - 41 {121)
33 146 [117) 23 [33) (21) - {31)
81 26 86 320 (276) 9 [13) {15) 25
30 31 56 290 (259) 10 (2) {12] 27
156 23 84 615 {553) (26) - (17 19
1.877 1,973 2,913 2,840 (1,896} (782) 2 39 203
165 1,153 (501) 341 (333) (307) (1) - (300)
43 140 258 369 [294) (39 - - 36
13 22 55 51 {28 U - 5} 10
203 32 672 539 (251} (20) 17 (42) 243
16 189 (32) 30 [36) (58] {2) - {66)
734 330 494 1,169 (515) {392] (4 (58) 200
39 2 261 410 [284) [27) 20 79
23 16 101 92 (57) [16) - [6) 13
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11 ATTACHMENT U - EQUITY INVESTEE INFORMATION
11.1 Aluminum Area [(Adjusted and Unaudited]

Data Alzras Alunerle
2082 2301 2302 2001
Quantity sold - external market Tons {thousand] 393 317 720 819
Quantity sold - internal market Tons (thousand] 13 15 872 721
Quantity sold - total Tons (thousand) 406 332 1,592 1,540
Average sales price - external market Uss 1,304,&_ 1,426 .64 _1‘5-3.39 179.47 :
Average sales price - internal market Us$ 1,355.55 1,477.68 173.79 192.36
Average sales price ~ total Us$ 1,306.38 1,628.99 164.56 185.51
Long-term indebtedness, gross Us$ 466 450 481 425
Short-term indebtedness, gross Us$ 20 183 - 46
Total indebiedness, gross uss$ 486 633 481 471
Stockholders’ equity RS 257 223 445 526 :
Net operating revenues R$ 1545 1.095 785 587
Cost of products R$ (932) (646) (576) (498]
Other expenses/revenues R$ {45) [79) (22} (23]
Depreciation, amortization and depletion R$ 68 68 52 51
EBITDA R$ 636 438 239 217
Depreciation, amortization and depletion R$ (68] (68) {52) (51) _
EBIT RS 568 370 187 166
Other expenses - non cash R$ () - - -
Gain on investments accounted for by the equity method R$ - - - -
Non-operating result R$ (1) 22 - -
Net financial result R$ (673) (263) (470) {204)
Income before income tax and social contribution R$ (112) 129 (283) (3s}
Income tax and social contribution R$ 139 (97) 100 {11]

Net income R$ 27 32 {183) {49)




in miltlions

Aluvale ¥IRN VYatesut

2002 2001 2002 2001 2602 2001
- - 2,616 3,413 42 23

- 16 7,312 7.539 48 53

- 16 9,928 10,952 90 76

- - 19.93 22.27 1,459.01 1,590.39
1,843.43 19.06 20.36 1,837.32 1,662.01

- 1,843.43 18.95 20.63 1,661.77 1,913.54

- - 76 22 i 2

- - 29 1 1 1

- - 105 23 2 3
216 827 672 605 261 225
2 2 539 504 410 303

- - (251) (222) (284} (214)
16 " {(11) (9] {25]) (21)
- - 52 45 13 14
18 13 329 318 114 82
- - (52) (45] (13) (14)
18 13 277 273 101 68
{11) - - - - -
78 116 (3] (1) - -
- - 17 - - (2]
13 16 (6] (8 {2} (9)
98 145 285 264 99 57
(8] 1 (42) (20) (20} (14)
90 146 243 244 79 43

@ 0
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11.2 iron Ore and Pellets Area (Adjusted and Unaudited)

tn miliions
Data Hispanshras a3rasco {obrasco Ribrases
2802 2631 2552 2304 26352 2004 2302 2087
Quantity sold - external market Tons (thousand] 1.321 1,218 2,180 2,247 2,894 2,135 2,166 2.311
Quantity sold — internal market - CVRD Tons {thousand} 2,246 2,390 L 1,127 17,0740‘7 1,171:0* 2,049 4,949 4,541
Quantity sotd - internal market - others  Tons (thousand] - - - - - - 100 141
Quantity sold - total Tons [thousand) _37.'5;6771__ 3,608 3,307 3,287 4,034 lo 184 7,215 6,993
Average sales price - external market uss$ 2971 31.44 29.71 31.63 29.88 ’ 30 56 29.60 30.20
Average sales price - internal market uss$ 30.15 31.41 29.13 31.93 30.51 31.32 28.77 29.70
Average sales price - total us$ 29.77 31.42 29.51_ 31.72 30.09 30.93 28.64 29.80
Long-term indebtedness, gross Uss - - - - 114 129 1 4
Short-term indebtedness, gross Us$ - - - - - - 2 2
Total indebtedness, gross Us$ S - - - 114 129 3 [
Stockholders’ equity RS 86 80 56 58 {107) 14 84 83
Net operating revenues R$ 320 269 290 246 352~— o 307 1671.5;“ - Agg?
Cost of products R$ [276] (223) [259) (203} (285) {238) [553) {423)
Other expenses/revenues R$ (3] (2] (1) (5] (2) (3 3 (7)
Depreciation, amortization and depletion RS 10 10 1 1 9 9 17 16
EBITDA R$ 51 54 31 39 76 75 82 68
Depreciation, amortization and deptetion R$ (10) (10] {1) (1) 9] (9] a7 (161
EBIT R$ 41 (13 30 38 67 66 65 52
Other expenses - non cash R$ - - (5) - [46) (38 (21) [45]
Gain on investments accounted for by the
equity method R$ T - - - 1 1 - -
Non-operating result R$ (13] {10 (2] (2] - - - -
Net financial result R$ ] 2 16 1 [184] [67) (8] (7}
Income before income tax and social contribution R$ 40 36 39 37 (162) (38]) 36 -
Income tax and social contribution R$ [15) {11) {12) {9) 41 - (17) (14}
Net income R$ 25 25 27 28 (121} (38) 19 (14)
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In millions
Data Samarco Ferteco glc
2002 2001 2002 2007 2202 2001
Quantity sold - external market Tons {thousand) 14,442 11,201 12,027 11,164 3,074 3053
Quantity sold - internal market - CYRD Tons (thousand] - - 6,259 1,752 - -
Quantity sold - internal market - others Tons [thousand) - - - - - -
Quantity sold - total Tons (thousand) 14,4642 11,201 18,286 12,916 3,074 3,053
Average sales price - external market us$ 28.60 29.70 18.17 17.05 40.98 41,66
Average sales price - internal market Us$ - 12.95 9.40 - -
Average sales price - total Us$ 28.560 29.70 16.39 16.11 40.98 41,66
Long-term indebtedness, gross Us$ 66 1o 8 9 - -
Short-term indebtedness, gross Us$ 142 171 23 53 - -
Total indebtedness, gross Us$ 208 281 105 149 - -
Stockholders’ equity R$ 4694 452 619 194 258 176
Net operating revenues R$ 1,169 764 918 544 369 295
Cost of products R$ (515) (353] (525) (372] (294] (258)
Other expenses/revenues R$ (53] (67) (74) [64] (45) (10)
Depreciation, amortization and depletion R$ 3% 26 28 ? 17 14
EBITDA R$ 636 370 347 117 47 41
Depreciation, amortization and depletion R$ (35} (26] (28) (9] (17) {14)
EBIT R$ 601 3464 319 108 30 27
Other expenses - non cash R% (57) {32) (89) - - -
Gain on investments accounted for by
the equity method R$ (36) {2) [27) (8] - -
Non-cperating result R$ (4] (20] b - - -
Net financial result R$ (246) (157) (101} (63) b 3
Income before income tax and social contribution R$ 258 133 108 39 36 30
Income tax and social contribution R$ (58] {27] (14] 8 - -
Net income R$ 200 106 94 47 36 30
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11.3 Manganese and Ferroalloys Area [Adjusted and Unaudited)

‘n millions
Data Sikre IDME
2232 208" 2022 o
Quantity sold - external market - ferroalloys Tons {thousand) 160 99 225 213
Quantity sold - internal market - ferroalloys Tons [thousand) 167 121 - -
Quantity sold - total - Ferroalloys Tons {thousand) 327 220 225 213
Quantity sold - external market - manganese Tons [thousand) 828 1093 68 85
Quantity sold - internal market - manganese Tons [thousand) 198 72 - -
Quantity sold - total - Manganese Tons (thousand) 1,026 1,165 68 85
Average sales price - external market - ferroalloys Us$ 47‘.?—65 i "513.30 o -7”363.63 370.40
Average sales price - internal market - ferroalloys us$ 428.31 565.06 - -
Average sales price -~ total - Ferroalloys us$ £53.43 541.77 363.63 376.40
Average sales price - external market - manganese Us$ 46.96 46.58 86.60 77.68
Average sales price - internal market - manganese Us$ 46.47 58.89 - -
Average sales price - total ~ Manganese us$ 46.86 47.35 86.60 77.68
Long-term indebtedness, gross US$ 22 27 2 3
Short-term indebtedness, gross Uss 36 32 - -
Total indebtedness, gross Us$ 58 59 2 3
Stockholders’ equity RS 293 210 175 82
Net operating revenues R$ 523 387 324 214
Cost of products R$ (307] (241) (300) (197)
Other expenses/revenues RS (75] (39) 2 (3)
Depreciation, amortization and depletion R$ 15 15 16 8
EBITDA R$ 156 122 42 22
Depreciation, amartization and depletion R$ (15] (15] (16) (8
EBIT R$ 141 %07 26 14
Other expenses - non cash R$ (6] 6l - (2)
Gain on investments accounted for by the equity method R$ - - e
Non-operating result R$ N (9) - -
Net financial result R$ (26) {20] 1 (2}
Income before income tax and social contribution RS 101 72 27 10
Income tax and social contribution R$ (19) [4) - -
Net income RS 82 68 27 10
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(A free translation of the original opinion in Portuguese expressed on financial statements prepared in accordance with

the accounting principles prescribed by Brazilian Corporate Law/

12 REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

February 21, 2003
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Companhia Vale do Rio Doce

1 We have audited the balance sheets of Companhia Vale do Rio Doce as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the corresponding
statements of income, of changes in stockholders’ equity and of changes in financial position for the years then ended, and the
consolidated balance sheets of Companhia Vale do Rio Doce and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled companies as of December
31, 2002 end 2001 and the corresponding consolidated statements of income and of changes in financial position for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements. The audits of the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, jointly controlled companies and
affiliates mentioned in Note 9.10, accounted for by the equity method, were carried out by other independent accountants and our
opinion in regard to these investments, amounting to R$ 2,413 million {2001 - R$ 2,505 million) and the earnings therefrom of R$
401 mitlion {2001 - earnings of R$ 316 mitlion), is based exclusively on the reports of these independent accountants.

2 We conducted our audits in accordance with approved Brazilian auditing standards, which require that we perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fairly presented in all material respects. Accordingly, our
work included, among other procedures: {a) planning our audits taking into consideration the significance of balances, the volume
of transactions and the accounting and internal control systems of the company, {b] examining, on & test basis, evidence and
records supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and [c) assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

3 In our opinion, based upon our audits and on the opinions of the other independent accountants, the financial statements audited
by us present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Companhia Vale do Rio Doce and its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled companies as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the results of its operations, the changes in its stockholders’ equity
and the changes in its financial position, as well as the consolidated results of operations and the changes in consolidated
financial position, for the years then ended, in conformity with the accounting practices adopted in Brazit.

4 Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph,
taken as a whole. The statements of cash flows and of value added of Companhia Vale do Rio Daoce and its subsidiaries and jointly
controtled companies and the labor and social indicators of Companhia Vale do Rio Doce are presented for purposes of additional
information, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures described in the second paragraph and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

PRICEAMATERHOUSE(QOPERS

Auditores Independentes
CRC-SP-000.160/0-5-5-RJ

Douglas H. Woods Ronaldo Matos Yalifo
Partner Director
Accountant CRC-SP-101.652/0-0-S-RJ Accountant CRC-RJ-069.958/0
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i3 OPINION OF THE FISCAL COUNCIL ON THE ANNUAL REPORT
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, ON DECEMBER 31, 2002

The Fiscal Council of Companhia Vale do Rio Doce, in carrying out its legal and statutory duties, after examining the Company’s Annual
Report, Balance Sheet, Statement of Operations, Statement of Changes in Stockholders™ Equity, Statement of Changes in Financial
Position and the respective Notes to the Financial Statements relative to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, and based on the
opinion of the independent accountants, is of the opinion that the mentioned information, examined in light of applicable corporate
legisiation, which does not require information to be stated in currency of constant purchasing power, should be approved by the Annuat
Stockholders’ General Meeting.

Rio de Janeira, February 26, 2003

Pedre Carles de Mello Ricarde Wiering de Barros Eliseu Martins

Claudio Bernardo Guimaries de Moraes Marcos Fabio Coutinho

14 OPINION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE ANNUAL REPORT
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON DECEMBER 31, 2082

The Board of Directors of Companhia Vale do Rio Doce, having examined the Annual Report, Balance Sheet and other Financial
Statements of the Company relative to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, unanimously approved said proposat.

In view of this, the Board holds that the mentioned documents should be approved by the Annual Stockholders” General Meeting.

Rio de Janeiro, February 26, 2003

Luiz Tarquinio Sardinha Ferre Erik Persson José Marques de Lima

Chairman

Renato da Cruz Comes Romeu de Nascimento Teixeira Renato Augusto Zagallo Villela dos Santes
Francisco Valadares Pdvoa JoZo Moisés de Cliveira Eleazar de Carvatho Filho

Ctto de Souza Margues JUnior

Antdnio Jodc Martins Torres




15 ADVISORY COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Audit Committee

Antonio Joao Martins Torres
José Ricardo do Carmo
Romildo Ferreira

Strategic Committee

Roger Agnetli

Gabriel Stoliar

Claudio Roberto Frischtak

José Roberto Mendonca de Barros

Samir Zraick

Governance and Ethics Committee
Luiz Tarquinic Sardinha Ferro

Renato da Cruz Gomes

Ricardo Simonsen

Executive Development Committee
Francisco Yaladares Povoa

Jodo Moisés de Oliveira

Mauricic Viotti de Barros

Olga Lofiredi

Paule Pavarini

Finance Committee
Roger Agnelli

Fabio de Oliveira Barbosa
Lauro Alberto De Luca
Ricardo Carvalho Giambroni

Romulo de Mello Dias

16 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND FISCAL COUNCIL

Board of Directors

Luiz Tarquinio Sardinha Ferro

Chairman

Eleazar de Carvalho Filho

Erik Persson

Francisco Valadares Povoa

Joao Moisés Oliveira

José Marques de Lima

Renato Augusto Zagallo Villela dos Santos

Renato da Cruz Gomes

Romeu do Nascimento Teixeira

Fiscal Council

Claudio Bernardo Guimaraes de Moraes
Eliseu Martins

Marcos Fabio Coutinho

Pedro Carlos de Mello

Ricardo Wiering de Barros

Executive Officers

Roger Agnelli
Chief Executive Officer

Antonio Miguel Marques
Executive Officer for Equity Holdings and Business Development

Armando de Oliveira Santos Neto
Executive Officer for Ferrous Minerals

Carla Grasso
Executive Officer for Human Resources and Corporate Services

Diego Cristobal Hernandez Cabrera
Executive Officer for Non-Ferrous Minerals

Fabio de Oliveira Barbosa
Chief Financial Officer

Gabriel Stoliar
Executive Officer for Planning

Guilherme Rodolfo Laager
Executive Officer for Logistics

Eduardo de Carvalho Duarte
Chief Accountant

Accountant CRC-RJ 57439
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COMPANHIA VALE DO RIO DOCE

Av. Graca Aranha, 26

20.030-900 R o de Janeiro RJ Brazil
Phone: 55 (211 3814-4477

Fax: 55 (21] 3814-404C

Internet: www.cvrd.com.br

OFFICES ABROAD

o PapwA g m e g &4
N $ A

Chaussée de la Hulpe, 130
Bte 18, 7eme étage

B-1000 Brussels Beigium
Phone: 32 (2] 679-7311
Fax: 32 {2) 679-7300

Landic Teranomon Building 2 - 91" floor

7-8 Teranomoen 3 Chome
Minato-ku Tokyo (105-0001] Japan
Phone: 81 {3) 5401-2971

Fax: 81 {3} 5401 2989

Room 318, Svanghai Centre
1376 Nan Jirg Xi Lu
Shangnai 200043 Chira
Phane: 86 [21] 6279-8289
Fax: 86 {271] 5279-8293

546 Fifth Avenue, 12t floor
New York, N.Y. 10036 U.S.A.
Phone: 1(212) 589-98G0
Fax: 1212, 391-1000

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Av. Graca Aranha, 26/ 17€ andar
20030 900 Rio de Janeiro RJ Brazil
Phcone: 95 (21) 38714-4477

Fax: 55 (21] 3814-4040

E-mail: ric@cvrc.com.br
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Av. Graga Aranha, 26 / 132 andar
20030 900 Rio de Janeirc RJ Brazil

E-mail: acoes@cvrd.com.br

PricewaterncuseCoopers
CRC-SP-160-5-RJ

Rua da Canrdelaria, 65/ 159 andar
20091 0?20 Rio dc janeiro RJ Brazil

anco Braoesco S.A.
Cidade de Deus Prédio Amareto Vethe 29 andar
06G29-900 Csasco SP Brazil

C-maii: 4070.acecusiodia@bradesco com.br

J.P. Morgar Chase Bank
60 Wall Street
New York, N.Y. 10260 0060 UJ.S.A.

E-mail: marmetlo roy@pmorgan.com

Sgear, Leeds & Kellogg
120 Broadway
New York, N.Y. 10271 J.S.A.

E mail: jolake@slk.com
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